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OUR VISION

To be the most sustainable
and competitive
company in our industry

OUR MISSION-
CREATE VALUE FOR ALL

Delighted customers
Inspired employees
Enlightened partners
Energised society
Loyal shareholders
Healthy environment
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GIVE A MAN ORDERS
AND HE WILL DO THE TASK
REASONABLY WELL.
BUT LET HIM SET HIS
OWN TARGETS,
GIVE HIM FREEDOM
AND AUTHORITY
AND HIS TASK BECOMES
A PERSONAL MISSION:
‘| CAN..
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CHAIRMAN'S LETTER

Dear Shareholders,

Last year was a difficult year for the nation. India's economic growth rate continued its downward
journey to a nine-year low of 6.5% for 2011-12, This was caused by many factors including the global
crisis, high inflation and interest rates, and a slowdown in investment and industrial growth,

For the cement industry, the year started out positively with robust demand from housing and
infrastructure sectors. However, demand in the second half of 2012 slowed down due to the shortage
of construction materials and labour, and an extended monsoon which brought flooding and drought
to many parts of the country.

The Indian cement industry, which is highly fragmented and competitive was subjected to the
Competition Commission of India's order that imposed a penalty of over Rs.6,300 crores on some
cement manufacturers, including us. The Company has taken legal steps to challenge the order and is
confident of a positive outcome in the matter.

It is challenging and difficult times that bring out the best in our people. Last year was no exception.
As a result, the Company performed well with production and sales growing by 3% and 4% respectively
in volume. Net Sales and Profits were also higher by 14% and 6% at Rs.9,675 crores and Rs.1,297 crores
respectively.

Qur people focused their attention on cutting costs, reducing fuel consumption and improving
efficiency and productivity. Every little cost was analysed. Mo detail was too small to be ignored.
The result? While input material costs, including fuel prices, have increased by 12-15% (CAGR 2009-12),
the Company’s costs were restricted to an increase of only 7% (CAGR over from 2008-12).

Ambuja has been a pioneer in marketing and brand building in the cement industry. To maintain an
unrelenting focus on the consumer, we launched the MaCX (Marketing and Commercial Excellence)
program. It will help us further our brand dominance and commercial edge in the market place.

We've always believed our passionate and committed workforce is our competitive advantage. That
is why we continually invest in our people. Last year we launched an HR initiative - STEP (Sustainable
Talent Enhanced Performance) for leadership development and strengthening our People Power
program, Our HR systems and processes are now aimed not only at making us an employer of choice,
but a sustainable employer as well,

Last year we amended our vision statement to be the industry’s ‘most sustainable and competitive
company’. This puts into sharp focus what is core to Ambuja, and will be the basis of our growth in
the future.
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| am particularly pleased with the efforts our people have put in to improve the quality of life in
neighbouring communities.

The Ambuja Cement Foundation (ACF) has achieved much in water resource management in
Rajasthan. lts initiatives to revive traditional water harvesting have created a long-term impact for
communities across Rajasthan. While our Rabrivawas plant bagged one of the most respected
national awards for excellence in water management,

Our efforts in sustainability have been recognised with many awards, the most recent of which was
the ‘Cll Sustainability Award 2012, awarded to us by the Honorable President of India himself.

The coming year will be as challenging for the Company as last year was. But with our people's
efforts to further strengthen logistics, sales and distribution, and commercial services, we are confident
that the Company should do even better in 2013,

Our people have proved time and again that their 'l can’ spirit has the power to turn adversity into

opportunity. | am confident that they will continue to rise to overcome every challenge that the
year brings.

With warm regards,

_,,N\-S. Sellasons oo

N. S. Sekhsaria

Tth February, 2013



FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS OF 5 YEARS

Amaunt in T orores

2012 2011 2010 2009 2008

INCOME STATEMENT
MNet Sales 9,675 8,504 7,390 7077 6,220
Operating EBITDA 2473 1,977 1,951 1.9M 1,804
Profit Before Tax 1,902 1,703 1,662 1,803 1,870
Profit After Tax 1,297 1,229 1,264 1,218 1,402

BALANCE SHEET
Net Worth 8,805 8,068 7,330 6,468 5,669
Borrowings 35 43 G5 166 289
Capital Employed 9,414 8,778 7,926 7120 6,338
Fixed Assets - Gross Block 10,184 8,702 8,779 6,224 5,707
Fixed Assels - Net Block 5862 6,186 5,628 3,440 3,193
Current Assets 5,275 4,264 3,135 1,979 2,339
Current Liabilities 3,01 2,764 2,394 1,741 1,474

CASH FLOW STATEMENT
Net Cash Generated from Operations 1,858 1,533 1,876 2,126 968
Cash and Cash Equivalents 3,860 2,899 2,289 1,415 949

SIGNIFICANT RATIOS

Operaiing EBITDA / Net Sales 26% 23% 26% 28% 29%
Return on Capital Employed (EBIT/ Avg.CE) 22% 21% 23% 27% 34%
Debt Equity Ratio (Debt/ (Debt+NW)) 0.00 0.01 0.01 0.03 0.05
Price Earning Ratio” 23.83 19.37 17.28 12,96 157
Book Value Per Share () 57.24 52.67 48.01 42,47 3r.23
Basic Earning Per Share (T) §.43 g.02 B.28 8.00 g.21
Dividend Per Share (T) 3.60 3.20 2.60 240 2.20
Dividend Payout Ratio 50% 46% 37% 35% 28%
Current Ratio 1.75 1.54 1.31 1.14 1.59
OPERATIONS
Cemeant Capacity - Million Tonnes 27.95 27.35 25.00 22,00 22.00
Cement Praduction - Million Tonnes 21.62 20,97 2013 18.83 17.76

# Market Price as per BSE on last day of year,
Figunes for year 2092 and 2011 are based on Revised Schedule W1






In India, and around the world, it is acceptable for a cement plant to shut down on an average, every
300 hours for unscheduled repairs, Complex machines, no matter how well maintained, do fail after all,

But for the engineers at the Ambujanagar plant, this was an unacceptable statistic. They took it upon
themselves to go look beyond the benchmarks and create new ones. This would require devising a whole
new approach to plant maintenance.

Qur engineers started with a study to determine what had caused plant stoppages in the past. An analysis
revealed 10 major causes ranging from mechanical breakdowns to instrument failure. Instead of waiting
for a breakdown, they devised a plan to tackle each one of these causes pro-actively,

The result was astounding: unplanned stoppages reduced from 16 in 2011, to 6 in 2012, The plant operated
an average of 1437 hours between failures — over 4 times longer than the accepted benchmark.

Qur people have proved once again that the pursuit of excellence and an °l can’ spirit can overcome
any limitation.

THE ENGINEERS AT OUR
AMBUJANAGAR PLANT MADE AN
IMPORTANT DISCOVERY:

MACHINES HAVE LIMITATIONS.
PEOPLE DON'T.







The farmers of Chandrapur, Maharashtra cultivated cotton as their main crop. Over time, the cost of
production increased, but their yield remained low. They bought maore fertilisers and pesticides in the
hope of a better harvest. In spite of their efforts, nothing changed.

The Ambuja Cement Foundation started the Better Cotton Initiative to implement scientific and
sustainable methods to increase cotton productivity. The soil was tested and various crop-friendly
methods of farming were tried. We also assessed use of neem pellets and certain insects that support the
growth of cotton.

Some enterprising farmers in Chandrapur accepted our farming technigues. However, there was a bigger
hurdle ahead of us. Many farmers were unwilling to change methods they had followed for generations.

We bepan a program to educate farmers about our new techniques. Farmers who benefitted from the
program became advocates for the new technigues. And as the word spread, so did prosperity.

From its humble beginnings in Maharashira, the Better Cotton Initiative has spread to Gujarat,
Punjab and Andhra Pradesh, benefitting over 7000 farmers. The yield per hectare has increased by
over 50%. It's just another example of how the 'l can' spirit has changed the ideas and fortunes of people

HOW DID WE HELP
COTTON FARMERS IMPROVE
THEIR HARVEST?

WE SOWED AN IDEA.







What do talented and motivated engineers do when they've achieved every target? The team at Maratha
Cement Works, Chandrapur, Maharashtra, set themselves impossible targets. Their goal: to run the plant
for more than 65 days. A record that had stood for 25 years.

Their target of 100 days seemed ambitious. Not only would they have to keep the kiln running, but all of its
support units as well, from mining and crushing, to coal supply and power generation.

With single-minded determination, they set themselves to the task. Problems that would normally require
a shutdown to fix, were handled with ingenuity: the team managed to rectify damaged parts while
keeping the plant running.

Sixty-five days went by, then a hundred. Finally, after 156 days of continuous running, they shut the plant.
They had broken the record, reached their goal and continued on to set an impossibly high benchmark.

Qur committed people showed once again that with an 'l can' spirit, achievements are only limited by

SOME ENGINEERS
MEET TARGETS.

OURS FOUND A PLACE
IN THE HISTORY BOOKS.




DIRECTORS' REPORT AND MANAGEMENT
DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Dear Members,
It is a pleasure to present the Annual Report of the
Company for the year 2012.

1. THE JOURNEY OF EXCELLENCE CONTINUES
The Company continues to occupy an important and
benchmarked position in the cement industry
through continual capacity enhancement, operational
efficiencies, financial excellence and focussed
sustainability efforts which promote the well-being of
society. With sound tactical and strategic initiatives
and the indomitable spirit of I can” the Company is
well poised to continue its journey of excellence in
the short and long time frame.

2. BRAVING THE SLOWDOWN

INDIAN ECONOMY LOOKING FOR SILVER LINING
IN SPATE OF REFORMS

The Indian econemy has shown remarkable
resilience compared to other global economies.
However, the stress was visible in below 6% projected
GDP growth in 2012 vis-a-vis aspirations of over 7%
growth, in stark contrast to an average of 8% growth
achieved during 2007 - 2011.

Economic growth declined across all the sectors due
to domestic and external factors, high inflation, wide
fiscal deficit and unfavourable domestic savings and
investment rate. Despite strong fundamentals and
structural support, uncertainty and consequent lack
of confidence held back investments in capital
formation. Output was disrupted due to power
outages and stalled projects. Services also slowed
down due to both cyclical and structural factors.

High inflation was a cause of worry, with wholesale
price index hovering over 7%. The weak rupee,
settling around ¥ 55 against USD, increased the
import bill of crucial fuel supplies, thus driving up the
current account deficit.

In an attempt to rekindle India's economic slowdown,
the Government unveiled a series of economic
reforms. These have certainly led to a revival in
investors' sentiment. Though the first half of the

financial year 2012-13 grew by just 5.4%, the reforms-
driven positive sentiment is expected to help achieve
growth rate of approx 5.5% by the end of the financial
year. Manufacturing PMI data for December 2012
published by HSBC, reflects this sentiment as it
surged to G-month high, backed by strong factory
output and a spike in new orders,

Steps taken by the Government to reform the
economy has given a positive tone to the challenging
scenario.

A MIXED YEAR FOR THE CEMENT INDUSTRY

The first half of 2012 augured well with robust
demand backed by states holding elections and
due to extended construction period owing to
a delayed monseoon. This demand was largely driven
by rural housing and road construction while other
infrastructure activities remained sluggish,

In the second half, demand faltered as construction
activities remained subdued with the onset of the
monsoan, which extended till late October, and
uneven distribution of rain across the country,
leading to floods in some parts of the country while
some areas faced drought/ drought-like situation.

Cement industry also suffered due to shorlage of
essential construction materials like sand, bricks,
water (due to drought), etc. High interest rates and
an overall slowdown in the economy kept demand
suppressed.

In spite of slowing down of capacity additions, supply
side pressures continued to remain. Adverse demand
supply situation, mainly post monsoon, resulted in
lower capacity utilisation.

On the cost front, India's cement industry continues
to reel under the pressure of rising input costs
and high inflation rates. In March 2012, the railways
rationalised freight rates, by effecting major changes
in freight slabs which resulted in approximately
20-25% increase in freight charges. The Government
also hiked diesel prices by T 5/ per litre (excluding
VAT) in the middle of September, putting further
pressure on freight & distribution costs, Some respite
came in the form of reduced imported coal prices in
the later part of the year, however, the cost benefit



was restricted by a volatile rupee. Overall, the cost
of coal increased in double digits.

3. FINANCIAL RESULTS 2012

AT A GLANCE (STAND ALONE RESULTS):

Cement production increased modestly by
3.1% to reach 21.62 million tonnes, from 20.97
million tonnes while clinker production went
up to 15.81 million tonnes registering growth of
7.5% over 14.70 million tonnes in the year 2011.

Domestic cement sales volume reflected
sluggish demand scenario by growing at
3.8% to reach 21.31 million tonnes from
20.54 million tonnes a year ago. Cement exporis
fell to 0.12 million tonnes from 0.37 million
tonnes a year ago. Clinker sales (including
exports) grew by 2.4%, settling at 0.55 million

tonnes from 0.54 million tonnes in 2011,

Met sales at ¥ 9,675 crores were 13.8% higher
than that of previous year ¥ 8,504 crores,
Average sales realisation improved by around
11% at T 4,400 per tonne against approx
73,960 per tonne in 2011,

Total (operating) expenses for the year 2012
increased by 11.4% over that of year 2011.

The company achieved an absolute EBITDA
of T 2473 crores in 2012. This is higher by
25.09% over the corresponding regrouped figure
(¥1,8977 crores) of 2011.

MNet Profit at ¥ 1,297 crores improved by 5.6%

over corresponding figure of T 1229 crores for
previous year,

Amount in ¥ crores

Stand alone Consolidated
Current Year Previous Year Currant Year Previous Year
ar.12.2012 Jr2:201 322012 3112201

Sales (net of exclse duty) 0674.94 B504.32 9739.54 8521.03
Profit before interest and depreciation 2821.84 22249 282195 222513
Less: Interest 75.66 52.63 T8.46 53.44
Gross profit 274618 217221 2143.49 2171.69
Less: Depreciation 565,22 445,15 568.68 446,20
Profit before tax and exceptional items 2180.96 172712 217481 1725.49
Less: Exceplional items 279.13 24.25 27913 24.25
Profit before tax 1801.83 1702.87 1885.68 1701.24
Less: Pravision for tax 604.77 474.01 603,86 473.75
Profit after tax but before minority interest 1297.06 1228.86 1291.82 1227.49
Less: Minority interest - - (1.39) [0.25}
MNet profit after tax 1297.06 1228.86 1293.21 1227.74
Add: Balance brought forward

from previous year 2B4.75 325.35 598,72 640,44
Profit available for appropriation 1581.81 1554.21 1891.93 1668.18
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Amount in 2 crores

Stand alone Consolidated
Current Year Previous Year Current Year Previous Year
J2.2012 31122011 3.a2:z2012 31.12.20m
Appropriations:
Consequent to change in group's interest = - (0.96) -
General reserve 200.00 700,00 200.00 T00.00
Provision for dividend distribution
Tax written back - 0.83 - 0.83
Dividend on equity shares (including interim) 554,80 490,69 554,80 490,69
Dividend distribution tax 90.00 T79.60 40,00 T9.60
Total Appropriations B44.80 1269.46 B43.84 1269.46
Balance carried forward lo Balance Sheet 137 284.75 1048.09 598.72

4, DIVIDEND

The Company has paid an interim dividend of 70%
(1.40 per share) during the year. The Directors are
pleased to recommend a final dividend of 110%
(T 2.20 per share). Thus the aggregate dividend for
the year 2012 works out to 180% (T 3.60 per share)
and the total payout will be ¥ 644.80 crores,
including dividend distribution tax of ¥ 90 crores.
This represents a payout ratio of 50%.

5 MARKET DEVELOPMENTS

The Company's domestic cement sales in 2012 grew
by 3.8% to 21.31 million tonnes as compared to 20.54
million tonnes achieved in 2011. Total cement sales
(including exports) grew by 2.5% to 21.43 million
tonnes as compared to 20.91 million tonnes achieved
in 2011. The company’s clinker sales in 2012 grew
by 2.4% to 0.55 million tonnes as compared to 0.54
million tonnes achieved in 2011,

REGION WISE SALES VOLUME / GROWTH

In the Morth region, domestic cement sales of the
Company grew by 8.9% to 8.79 million tonnes in 2012
as compared to 8.07 million tonnes in 2011. Clinker
sales during 2012 were at 0.10 million tonnes as
compared to 0.12 million tonnes achieved in 2011.

In the Eastern region, the Company achieved sales
of 422 million tonnes of cement in the domestic

market, registering a growth of 7% over the previous
year sales of 3.95 million tonnes. Clinker sales also
grew by 7% to 0.45 million tonnes in 2012 as
compared to 0.42 million tonnes in 2011.
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In the West & South region, the Company’s domestic
cement sales in 2012 declined by 2.6% to 8.30 million
tonnes as compared to 8.52 million tonnes achieved
in 2011. This was mainly on account of poor demand
owing to the drought-like situation in many parts
of Maharashtra, extended shortage of essential
construction materials, poor liquidity, fewer new
projects, efc.,

Cement exports were reduced further to 0.12 million
tonnes as compared to 0.37 million tonnes in 2011
due to adverse international market and diversion
of material to domestic market. The Company
continues to develop and leverage its large and able
netwaork of around 8000 dealers and 25,000 retallers
across India. Their reach and penetration helps the
Company across the country in core rural and
semi-urban markets. This, coupled with the strong
brand equity and efficient channel management,
helped the Company to withstand severe competition
in an over-supply market.

While the company's network of ports, bulk cement
terminals and captive ships on the west coast has
supported a sustainable and strong market position
in Mumbai, Surat and Cochin, the Mangalore Bulk
Cement Terminal, which is expected to commence
commercial operations in the first half of 2013, will
further strengthen Company's position and enhance
footprints in the southern region.

With the support of Holcim's rich experience of
operating in 70 countries, the Company has now
added sophisticated IT and channel management
tools to its traditional Indian model. This has
enhanced Company's capability to face stiff
competition more convincingly and maintain a
strong market paosition,

The Company has embarked upon Marketing and
Commercial eXcellence program (MaCX) to further
sharpen its marketing, sales and distribution
functions, This ambitious program is part of
comprehensive Holcim Leadership Journey (HLJ),
announced by Holcim management across the
globe, to deliver substantial tangible and intangible
gains and create value in competitive environment
over next few years. MaCX aims to supplement
in-house skills with global expertise of Holcim

and that of advisory firms, to revamp customer
interfacing functions by focusing on core value
levers. This is an investment to future proof the
company and to promote environment of innovation
and excellence.

6. COST DEVELOPMENTS

The major cost elements of the Company continued
their upward movement in line with unyielding
inflation in the economy and volatile foreign
exchange rates.

MAJOR COST MOVEMENTS:

i) Cost of major raw materials, namely, fly ash and
gypsum, increased by 14% and 25% respectively
on per tonne basis, mainly on account of
increase in transportation costs. Excise burden
on fly ash introduced in the Union Budget 2011
continues, Overall, the absolute raw material
costs increased by approx 16% over the previous
year. During the year, the Company did not
purchase clinker from open market, Costs on
account of raw materials consumed, excluding
purchased clinker, increased by a little over 18%
as compared to over 2011 costs.

iiy Power and fuel costs registered an increase
of around 16% in terms of absolute costs over
last year. These costs account for approximately
30% of total operating costs of the Company and
are mainly driven by movement in cost of fuel,
especially coal.

Cost of coal used in kilns and power plants
increased by 12.5% and 8.6% respectively on an
average basis, over the year 2011. Concerns
associated with linkage coal, like non-availability
commensurate with increased production,
inordinate delay in conversion of allotted linkages
into Fuel Supply Agreements (FSA) and
deteriorating quality continues to be an issue.
The Company is proactively taking measures to
mitigate expenses by trying cost-effective fual
mix, exploring energy efficient technologies,
and increasing the use of pet coke in lieu of coal.
Significant volatility and devaluation in Indian
currency in 2012, especially in the second half,
has made imported coal costlier, even when
USD denominated coal prices relaxed.



Cost of grid power continued its upward
movement with per kwh rate increasing at
approximately 6% over the previous year
Expensive thermal power was substituted by
relatively cheaper grid power. Captive power
generation supported 60% of total power
requirements of the Company in 2012 as against
70% in 2011,

Savings on account of efficiency in operations
helped reduction of costs by 2% of total energy
coslts.

iy Freight forwarding costs, makes around 29% of
total operational cost, also hardened by approx
18% in absolute terms over previous year.

iv) Cost of packing went up by around 15% driven
by increase in PP granule prices in line with
oil price increase.

COST MITIGATION MEASURES / EFFICIENCY

IMPROVEMENT INITIATIVES:

i) The Company continued to focus on production
of fiy ash based PPC and maintained an average
blending ratio of approximately 1.48.

ii} The Company has embarked upon an ambitious
journey, named ‘Holcim Leadership Journey’
(HLJ), as a part of global efforts launched by
its parent, Holcim, to add higher value for its
shareholders.

The Company is channelising its efforts into
exploring and ulilising excellence in the areas
of customer development and cost leadership.
Focus on customers, products and services
innovation, constructive pricing policies and
empowered sales force is expected to deliver
customer excellence. Incisive studies have been
initiated to find the most efficient use of energy
resources, maximising usage of Alternative Fuels
and Raw materials (AFR), optimisation of clinker
and cement movement to save on logistics costs.

i) Railway siding at Bhatinda grinding unit was
made operational in mid January 2013, This will
help us to optimise transportation costs for the
unit and reduce dependence on road transport.

iv) A dedicated corridor {road), measuring 8.5 km,
connecting highway to our captive jetty at
Muldwarka port has been completed to enable
the company to shift the entire transport to
Muldwarka port through own road. This would
ensure seamless flow of despatches to coastal
markets using jetty at Muldwarka port, which
makes 60% of total despatches from Ambujanagar
plant. Besides, this would also address some
serious concerns of road safety.

¥ Dumas Channel, the shorter sea route to BCT
Surat explored in year 2011, is being used
extensively and facilitating transportation cost
savings in coastal freight.

7. EXPANSION PROJECTS AND

NEW INVESTMENTS

The Company took up several projects to serve
its customers in a more efficient, cost-effective,
reliable and environmentally-friendly manner, while
bolstering its market position in the industry.

CAPACITY EXPANSION DURING THE YEAR:

In the Eastern region, the Company commissioned
a pre-grinder at its Bhatapara unit in the State of
Chhattisgarh at an approximate cost of ¥ 40 crores
resulting in an increase in total cement capacity
by 0.60 million tonnes per annum. With the above
addition, the Company has achieved cement
grinding capacity of 27.95 million tonnes as at
31st December 2012,

EFFICIENCY IMPROVEMENT MEASURES:

The Company focussed on consolidation and
optimisation of its existing capacities in all the three
regions. Capital investments kept flowing in during
the year, to ensure the highest standards of safety in
order to meet the company policies of ‘Zero Harm',
clean and energy efficient infrastruciure, cost
efficient and environment-friendly material handling
systems and process optimisation.

i} Waste Heat Recovery (WHR) project at
Rabriyawas unit in Rajasthan was initiated in
year 2011 to bring efficiency in fuel utilisation
and optimise power cosls. This is expected to
complete by September 2013 at a total cost of
T 75 crores. The Maratha Cement Works unit



i}

in Maharashtra has also taken up this project
for implementation in 2013-14 at approximate
cost of 90 crores.

In order to strengthen logistics capability and
extend reach to customers, a new railway siding
project has been initiated al Rabrivawas unit in
Rajasthan,

i) An automatic wagon loading system at Farraka

unit in West Bengal being built at a cost
of approximately ¥ 32 crores, is nearing
completion. This will reduce the cost and
improve the efficiency of material handling.

UPCOMING CAPACITIES AND INVESTMENTS:

i)

i}

A new Bulk Cement Terminal (BCT) is nearing
completion at Mangalore. With operations to
commence early 2013, it will help the company
to expand its footprints in southern markets
of India.

A new brown-field expansion project was
announced in 2011 at Sankrail Grinding Unit in
the eastern region comprising of a roller press

fii}

and related logistics. The project has started
progressing, with extended scope to include
advanced technical specifications. This would
add 0.80 million tonne grinding capacity to the
unit, along with other facilities.

Significant cement capacity addition of
approximately 4.50 MT at proposed integrated
plant (with extended grinding capacities) is
coming up at Marwar Mundwa, Magaur district
in Rajasthan, with associated clinkerisation
capacity of 2.20 million tonnes. Environmental
clearances for the project are already in
place while mining land acquisition is in an
advanced stage. The Company is also in the
process of tying-up water sources required for
construction and operations. Full-fledged
construction work is expected in the later part
of year 2013.

iv) The Company has taken up 13 new ambitious
projects at different locations worth T 272
crores to optimise and enhance efficiency, These
projects have a quick payback of 2.5 to 4 years
and likely to be completed in first half of 2014,




v] A new brown-field expansion project at the
Rabriyawas unit in Rajasthan, for commissioning
a roller press at a cost of T 70 crores, will add
0.30 million tonne grinding capacity by the end
of the year 2013.

vi) Plans are afoot to set up a state-of-the-art
blending facility at Sanand in Gujarat with
grinding and mechanised packing facilities at
an investment of T 267 crores. This facility,
once operational by the 3rd quarter of 2015, will
lend a competitive edge in the nearby central
markets of Gujarat.

The year 2013 would see capital expenditure
waorth ¥ 1100 crores, over and above T 600 crores
investment made in the year 2012. The entire proposed
expenditure would be financed by internal accruals.

ALTERNATIVE FUELS - THE GREEN ENERGY

An ambitious project, named 'Geo20’, taken up by the
Company to substitute costlier traditional fossil fuels
by Alternative Fuels (AF), is progressing well and
supporting cost-cutting. Holcim is actively supporting
our efforts by making available its world-wide
experience and technical expertise in the area of clean
and green technology and burning all sorts of wastes
without corresponding release of harmful gases and
C0Oz in the air. Besides, Holcim's rich experience in the
area has helped devise innovative ways of sourcing.

The Company envisions being the most sustainable
Company in the cement industry and draws heavily
on Holcim's sustainability policy on COz and energy,
eco-efficient products, atmospheric emissions,
sustainable construction, etc. The strategic stress on
environmentally-friendly and cost effective resources
resulted in the establishment of the Geocycle
department to focus on Alternative Fuels and Raw
Material (AFR).

In order to optimise the furnaces at 5 of the
integrated plants, to support higher utilisation of
lower cost, environmentally-friendly, alternative fuels,
the Company has planned investments involving
capital expenditure of ¥ 200 crores. Some work on
these ambitious projects has already started.

During 2012, the Company increased use of

alternative fuels in its kilns from 0.59% in 2011 to
1.40% in 2012. The company is determined to achieve
higher thermal energy substitution rates in the
coming years.

8. OUTLOOK

REFORMS WILL RESULT IN ECONOMIC REVIVAL
India’'s growth story remains attractive in
comparison with many developed and developing
economies, although the nation's adverse fiscal
deficit and negative current account balance calls
for some bold rectification measures from the
Government, The Government appears to be
focussing on consolidation of the economic
recovery through expeditious clearances for the
projects, selective disinvestment and accelerating
foreign direct investments through policy reforms.

While the impact of some recently announced
progressive reforms would reflect only in a year and
a half, the Company agrees with experts and expects
GDP to grow in 2013 at around 6% plus and the
cement industry at 7.5 - 8%, This optimism relies
on the positive outlook for infrastructure and
construction, upcoming state and national elections,
improvement in monetary conditions and also
possible upturn in investments post the structural
reforms. Higher agricultural income, lower interest
rates, pre-election welfare and Five Year Plan induced
spending by the Government is expected to raise
private consumption growth and improve capacity
utilisation in the economy.

GROWTH PROSPECTS FOR THE CEMENT INDUSTRY
Cement demand emanates from four key segments.
Namely housing, which accounts for approx 67% of
cement demand, infrastructure (13%), commercial
construction (11%) and industrial construction (9%).
Economic reforms announced by the Government and
RBI, including the expected lowering of interest rates
in 2013, will surely boost sentiments and rejuvenate
the economy.

The cement industry is looking for an up-cycle after
muted growth for the last three years, backed by an
increase in rural consumption and the recovery in
the infrastructure activity The recent government
measures to fast-track infrastructure projects & with



general elections a year away, construction activity
is expected to pick up steam, leading to strong
demand for cement.

Long-term growth prospects for cement demand
are favourable, riding on the back of a growing
economy and the impetus provided to the housing
and infrastructure construction activities in the
12th Five-Year Plan period (2012-17). The total
investment in infrastructure sectors in the Twelfth
Five Year Plan is estimated to be % 56 lakh crores
{one trillion USD),

Rising input costs, particularly energy, raw material,
freight & distribution, will remain a key challenge
for the cement industry. Any adverse changes to
existing laws/taxes may impact the industry. Land
acquisition, environment clearances, inadequate
supply of raw materials like limestone, linkage coal
& fly ash are likely to hamper expansion plans of
many cement companies,

The Company plans to mitigate such cost escalations
through wvaried measures, including the increased
use of alternative fuels and higher production of
blended cement. The leadership journey adopted
by the company will drive cost efficiency and
customer excellence to increase margins. The
Company will continuously strive to further
strengthen its operational platform to manage
cost, remain competitive and create value-addition
for stakeholders with a long-term perspective.

9. RISKS AND AREAS OF CONCERN

ENERGY COSTS

Coal price escalations, stressed supplies and
faltering guality continue to remain a major area of
concern. Depleting coal linkages and volatility in
the Indian rupee is escalating the cost concern.
The company constantly works on efficiency
improvement by plugging heat loss at every possible
stage of coal consumption, looking at cost effective
fuel mixes and increasing the usage of alternative
fuels. These measures would partly address cost
concerns. As a long term solution to energy security,
capability development in area of utilisation of
alternative fuels involving large investments has
been taken up under the banner of 'Geo20’. Waste

Heat Recovery (WHR) systems that improve fuel
utilisation, and the tapping of renewable energy
sources are top priorities. Going farward the company
realises the importance of technolegical innovations
and the extensive usage of alternative fuels for the
sustainable reduction in energy costs.

A long term solution to the problem resides in the
development of alternative fuel (AF) sources, in
particular industrial and agricultural waste materials,
tar which the Company is making huge investments
under the banner of 'Geo20’. Waste Heat Recovery
(WHR) systems to improve fuel utilisation efficiency
would help mitipate fuel-associated risks. Renewable
energy sources, such as wind and hydro, are being
tapped as far as possible to mitigate the high costs
associated with traditional energy sources. This is in
line with the company's vision and mission and to
fulfil the Renewal Power Chligation (RPO) recently
imposed by many states across India.

ORDER OF THE COMPETITION COMMISSION OF INDIA

On 20th June, 2012, the Competition Commission of
India (CCI) passed an order imposing unprecedented
penalties of more than 2 6300 crores against some
cement manufacturers of the country, including
the Company, in the matter of a complaint filed by
the Builders Association of India for the alleged
contravention of the Competition Law. The penalty
imposed on the Company is ¥ 1164 crores. The
Company has filed an Appeal before the Competition
Appellate Tribunal (COMPAT) against the order
and for granting stay against deposit of penalty.
The matter is pending before the COMPAT The
management, backed up by a legal opinion from the
external legal counsel, strongly believes that the
Company has a good case to succeed before the
COMPAT and accordingly, no provision has been
made in the books of accounts for the year 2012.
However, the amount of penalty has been considered
as contingent liability.

DE-ALLOCATION OF COAL BLOCK
The Ministry of Coal allotted a coal block in the State
of Maharashtra along with IST Steel & Power Ltd.
and Lafarge India Pvt. Ltd. The block was allotted
for the captive consumption of the allottees. A joint
venture company was formed for coal mining with the
company holding 27.27% of shares. The JV company
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was in the process of achieving various milestones as
per the terms of allocation letter. However, alleging
delay in achieving the milestones, the Ministry of Coal
passed an Order on 15th November, 2012 de-allocating
the said coal block and invocation of partial bank
guarantee. The Company immediately filed a writ
petition in the Delhi High Court against the said order
and the Hon'ble High Court was pleased to pass the
stay order on 30th November, 2012 against the
encashment of bank guarantee. The Appeal is
pending before Hon'ble High Court. The Company
believes that the progress made by the JV company
in achieving the milestones was quite satisfactory
The alleged delay is either misconstrued or is for
the reasons beyond the control of the JV company. In
view of these facts, the management strongly believes
that the Company has a good case to succeed in the
writ pending before the Hon'ble High Court.

ECONOMIC SLOWDOWN COUPLED

WITH SURPLUS CAPACITY IN INDUSTRY
Implementation of various reforms and macro-
economic initiatives being initiated by Government
is important. In the absence of the rejuvenation of
the national economy, aspired GDP growth may not
be achieved, leading to restricted growth in cement
demand. It is perceived that, in this scenario,
demand from infrastructure and commercial reality
segments would be constricted. Coupled with
capacity additions, the adverse demand supply
scenario would continue, leading to pressure on
volumes and prices,

The Company, having clear sight of this risk, is well
equipped to continue the growth plan leveraging and
building up on its strong brand equity and channel
network in the core retail segment. Marketing and
Commercial Excellence (MaCX) would give the
desired impetus to achieve excellence and provide
a clear mitigation plan.

TAXATION / ADMINISTRATIVE BURDEN

External and internal pressures in the economy, the
rising fiscal deficit and falling savings and
investment rates are some of the challenges before
the Government calling for strict fiscal discipline,
rollback of incentive and experimentation with tax
laws to mobilise additional sources and improve
Tax to GDP ratio. Retrospective tax proposals still

haunt investors. Introduction of domestic transfer
pricing provisions would necessitate change in the
way business is conducted in many areas besides
entailing administrative costs,

The much awaited reforms in the field of taxation, L.e.
the implementation of Goods and Services Tax (GST)
and Direct Tax Code (DTC) are yet to come in. Though
the Government has taken steps towards GST by
introducing negative list in service tax, aligning
provisions for excise and service tax, these have
incremental cost impact without corresponding
simplification and reduction in the overall
administrative burden on the Industry. Thus, the lack
of uncertainty on tax policies remains a concern.

10. HUMAN RESOURCES

BUSINESS EXCELLENCE THROUGH HR LEADERSHIP

Our HR systems and processes are aimed towards
making us an employer of choice with sustainable
talent, This is in perfect alignment with the company
vision of being the most sustainable and competitive
company in the industry. Towards this end, there have
been constant efforts to ensure a capable talent
pipeline.

The core of achieving business excellence lies in
a dedicated and talented employee base. The first
step towards this is attracting the right talent
through our streamlined and structured recruitment
process. We have structured systems for performance
management and for planning individual
development with a vision of creating a wealth of
high performance employees. The organisation also
believes in home-grown talent through wvarious
management development programs conducted in
association with renowned business schools like
IIM, ISB, NMIMS as well as international B-Schools.
We are focusing on creating leaders across levels
and in the early stages of an employee's career. The
company has recently launched an initiative called
“Sustainable Talent for Enhanced Performance”
(STEP) to develop a sustainable pool of leaders
equipping them with essential leadership skills and
competencies and enhancing their coaching skill
capacity. Our people are also exposed to the Holcim
way of working through leadership development
programs through talent movements to various



Heoleim operating companies across the globe
specially in the areas of finance, safety, projects,
manufacturing and commercial,

We believe that the success and milestones achieved
during this year has been possible because of our
people and robust systems and processes across
the organisation.

PEOPLE POWER
Over the last couple of years, we have initiated
a very important and major Change Management
program called “People Power". This comprehensive
program has evolved to manage plant performance
at each of our locations, as well as to develop a very
strong leadership pipeline. We have completed the
roll out of this program at 16 locations of the
Company and have Invested significant time and
resources for its implementation and to make this
a “way of life"

During 2012, we made significant progress to
strengthen all four basic pillars of this program viz:
*  Organisation Structure and Manning

= Performance Management

= Technical Model and Capability Building

* Cultural Change and Sustainability

This program will make the Company a Continuously
Improving Qrganisation in a true sense. As a part of
this program, we have set up a People Power Academy
at different plant locations and have introduced the
Academy White Paper and the Academy Certification
Program to ensure we get best quality people and
offer them a visible career progression towards future
leadership. This has now been embedded into our
formal HR systems. Like any change management
program, there are still lots of challenges that remain
to be addressed to maintain the level of energy and
commitment of our people and to this end, we have
developed a comprehensive and objective-oriented
‘People Power Excellence Index’. The index comprises
of more than 50 indicators that give a fair idea of
where each location stands in terms of sustaining
The People Power momentum and what specific
actions are required to excel further.

We have also set up a dedicated PMO (Program
Management Organization) at the corporate office for

driving this change management program. Specific
focus is given to capability-building through various
customised programs. We have put in place 7
community practices to replicate proven ideas with
the help of plant champions. Conscious efforts are
being made on unit-specific cultural aspects to build
on their strengths and improve development areas,

We are confident that this program will continue to
contribute very significantly to realise our vision
“to be the most sustainable and competitive Company
in our industry”,

11. SUSTAINABILITY AND ENVIRONMENT

NURTURING SUSTAINABILITY

AT THE CORE OF THE COMPANY

We renewed our commitment to sustainable
development by revising our vision to be the most
sustainable and competitive company in our industry,
We continued to pursue our sustainability goals
under the overarching 'Sustainability Policy’. In
addition we initiated the implementation of
Sustainable Procurement Guidelines aimed at our
supply chain. This is aligned to the Holcim Supplier
Code of Conduct.

To embed sustainability as a strategic factor in our
tramework, Sustainability Steering Committees were
constituted last year, These have continued to assess
sustainability risks and opportunities both at the unit
and corporate level, and monitor the various
sustainability initiatives. The Company's focus among
others is on low carbon growth, being water positive,
use of alternative fuel, renewable energy, bio-mass
etc. Continuing our participation in the Global
Programme of Clean Development Mechanism (CDM)
we are currently pursuing two CDM projects on
Smokeless Chulhas in the Community around our
plants and Waste Heat Recovery.

We released our 5th Corporate Sustainable Development
Report. The report is aligned with Global Reparting
Initiative (GRI) G3 guidelines for A+ Level of reporting,
having been ‘Assured' by an independent certifying
agency. Additionally, this year's report has also been
GRI checked,

We continue to focus on developing our renewable
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energy portfolio in line with Renewable and Clean
Energy Roadmap till 2020. We installed 330 KV of
Solar energy at Bhatapara, Chhattisgarh this year, in
addition to the existing 7.5 MW of wind energy at
Kutch, Gujarat commissioned last year A 65 MW
Waste Heat Recovery based power generation
system is being installed which is expected to be
operational by 2013,

The Company is currently monitoring and reporting
CO2 emissions as per the WBCSD Cement
Sustainability Initiative (CS1) protocol. The Company
is one of the Co-chairs of CSl India and has been part
of the Working Group on a Low Carbon Technology
Road Map for the Indian Cement Industry. The Low
Carbon Technology Roadmap report has been
released in December 2012,

We attained independent third-party assurance for
our water footprint. It was established that we are
water positive by a factor of two. Further, we
meticulously estimated our carbon footprint that
included our all operations, bulk cement terminals,
shipping activity, and offices, as well as offsets due to
our plantation initiatives for the year 2010. This was
verified independently by a third party in accordance
with the international standard 1SQ 14064:2006.

In recognition of our endeavours in streamlining
Corporate Sustainability within our operations, we
have been awarded the Cll Sustainability Award
in the category of commendation for 'significant
achievement' bettering our previous year's
performance where we were adjudged winners in the
category of commendation for 'strong commitment'.
Further, we have been rated at Gold Level in the
Sustainability Plus rating done by CII. The 100 largest
companies by market cap and market share were
rated against ESG indicators by the Cll for the
Sustainability Plus rating. The rating was done across
3 categories, namely Platinum, Gold and Bronze.

PROACTIVE ENVIRONMENT MANAGEMENT
The Company ensured availability of Continuous
Emission Monitoring Systems (CEMS) round the
year at all the 9 kiln stacks above 95% for online
manitoring of all vital pollution parameters.

Three of our grinding units have attained certifications

to the Energy Management System as per 150
50001:2011. Our Rabriyawas unit is in the process of
implementing the standard, In addition to mapping
the energy saved, corresponding greenhouse gas
mitigation achieved through this initiative shall also
be maonitored.

The company has taken steps to ensure it meets its
commitments under the PAT scheme and RPO-REC
abligations. Further, we are anticipating emission
standards to be naotified for S02 and NOx emissions.
We are taking steps to monitor and control our
emissions so that we can meet the requirements of
the new standard as and when they are notified.

Maost of our plants have done well in the Holcim Plant
Environment Profile [PEP] annual assessment. While
the Company average equalled the Holcim average
score in the integrated units, 4 of them scored above
the Holcim average. Both individually and Company
level, all the grinding units have scored above the
Holcim average PEP 2011 score.

As in previous years, this year we participated in
Carbon Disclosure Project to make our carbon
emissions public as per CSIl protocols.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (C5R)

STRENGTHENING COMMUNITIES ACROSS THE COUNTRY
Ambuja Cements Lid. is among very few companies
that invest more than 2% of their net profit in CSR,
much before the new Companies Bill makes it
mandatory for the corporate sector. The Company
has clearly identified the community as one of the
significant stakeholders, and is keenly interested in
responding to their needs in a systematic manner.
This guides our efforts in community development.

Ambuja Cement Foundation (ACF), the CSR arm of
the Company, has identified a broad spectrum of
development initiatives, addressed macro level
issues by strategising at the micro level, and
subsequently replicated and scaled-up work, leading
to larger impact.

When Ambuja Cements initially began identifying
the needs of the communities, water emerged as a
prime requirement in Gujarat and Rajasthan -



amongst the most ecologically fragile regions of the
country. Gujarat faces the problem of sea-water
intrusion and ingress; while Rajasthan faces
perennial droughts and scarcity of water, Qur
multi-pronged approach resulted in several projects
aimed at water conservation and its effective usage,
both for domestic as well as agricultural purposes,
This extensive effort in water resource development
over a period of time, has resulted in contributing to
the water-positive status of the Company. The scale
of work has been possible only due to extensive
networking with other development organisations
and project-based partnerships with various
government departments.

In Gujarat this year, aside from continuing to
build and interlink water harvesting structures,
promoting micro irrigation and creative awareness
on effective utilisation of water, ACF, in collaboration
with the Government of Gujarat completed
construction of a major check dam at Bhekheshwar
to help recharge ground water. The Bhekeshwar dam
has a water storage capacity of 1.01 MCM.

In Rajasthan, ACF's approach consists of reviving

traditional water harvesting systems like village
ponds, khadins - a system of runoff farming,
innovations like sub-surface dykes on sandy river
beds and promoting Roof Rainwater Harvesting
Systems (RRWHS) in the region. These methods
have had an impact on the drinking water availability
as well as the irrigation potential to increase the area
under cultivation. RRWHS has proved itself as a
sustainable solution to address the issue of access to
drinking water at the household level. Ambuja
Cements, with its sustainability agenda, now has a
clear goal for each functional unit to be water
positive. ACF is now focussing its efforts on various
water resource developments in each location.

Lack of employment opportunities and access to skill
up gradation is another complex issue taken up at
ACF through its livelihood promotion programs.
Water agriculture being a primary occupation for the
majority people around our plants, our CSR activities
focus on agro-based livelihood programs which
include promotion of System of Rice Intensification
(SRI), organic farming, mushroom cultivation, honey
collection, horticulture promaotion, training
programme on scientific and recommended




agricultural practices through Krishi Vigyan Kendra at
Kodinar. Additionally, in Rajasthan, with the support of
Rajasthan State Seed Corporation, a large project on
seed production is enabling higher returns for farmers,

By way of promoting weather-based insurance,
ACF is also enabling farmers to better manage risk
in agriculture crops. Since March 2010, ACF has
participated in the Better Cotton Initiative, a global
project to makes cotton production sustainable for
producers and the environment. The projects now
reaches out to over 7000 farmers and about 93%
ot the participating farmers have gqualified as per
BCIl parameters.

To create alternate sources of employment and
bridge the gap between required and available skills,
ACF's 17 Skill and Entrepreneurship Development
Institutes (SEDI) have trained over 9000 candidates
in over 40 different trades. Systematic study,
analysing local demands for skills and maintaining
market and industry linkages has helped these
institutes promote gainful employment with a
placement rate of over 75%,

Health and Sanitation are important indicators for
Human Development Index (HDI), and have prime
significance in ACF's efforts in the area of social
development. The comprehensive program, evolved
over a period of time, places emphasis on clinical,
preventive, as well as promotive healthcare. Across
locations, a large team of 312 Sakhis (Village Health
Functionaries) play a vital role in ensuring improved
access to health facilities for all in the communities,
These Sakhis are periodically trained by ACF to
enhance their knowledge, capacities and skills in
handling primary healthcare needs at the village
level, and working closely with the gram panchayat
and village health and sanitation committees (VHSCs)
to improve health and sanitation facilities in the
villages. Many of our units have taken measures to link
Sakhis with government/government supported
pragrams. Currently over 115 Sakhis have been
absorbed as ASHA workers under NRHM, anganwadi
workers or as anganwadi helpers.

We have continued to work on education and
prevention of HIV/AIDS with truckers and migrant
workers around our plants by providing services

such as STl treatment, counselling and awareness
Sessions.

Ambuja Manovikas Kendra (AMK) at Ropar, is a
centre of special education working for the welfare of
persons with autism, cerebral palsy, mental
retardation and multiple disahilities since 1999, The
school provides various therapies and programmes
for children along with a strong emphasis on cutdoor
games. To reach the maximum number of special
children in need, this year AMK introduced a 'home-
based rehabilitation programme’ under which special
educators from the school visit children at home on
a weekly basis. This way the school creates access
for those children in need of specialised services, but
cannot go to school.

After the stellar performance of 4 of our AMK
students in World Special Olympics 2011 held in
Greece this year, our athletes won 13 Gold, 07 silver
and 02 Bronze medals in athletic events in the
Special Olympics Bharat, Punjab Chapter. Five
students from AMK were adjudged best athletes
of the tournament. AMK also won the "Overall
Championship Trophy” of the tournament and was
adjudged the Best Institution in sports in Punjab for
a record Tth year in a row.

STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT

Clearly Identifying groups of stakeholders helps the
Company to respond to their needs in a focused
manner. We endeavour to evolve active participation
of various stakeholders in the process of planning,
implementation and monitoring of various programs,
We set up a Community Advisory Panel (CAP) at
each of our locations. This panel has representalives
from the Company as well as from the host
communities, including the local administration, and
is constituted to present the views and opinions of
the people and discuss and build consensus on
initiatives for the Company to implement jointly
with the people in the area.

In the year 2012, all operational sites reviewed our
C5R through our Social Engagement Scorecard
(SES). The exercise provided an opportunity for
the community to review and evaluate ACF's work.
The scorecard result this year has been a rating of
75-100% across locations.



The Ambuja Volunteerism Program launched
last year provides an opportunity for our
employees to engage and participate in the
Company’s social development projects. In 2012
Ambuja Cements saw 1695 employees dedicating
their services. Their volunteering efforts amounted
to approximately 16,885 hours.

12, OCCUPATIONAL HEALTH AND
SAFETY (OH&S)

WORKING TOWARDS “ZERO HARM" FOR OUR PEOPLE
We believe OH&S is one of our core values and we
strive for "Zero Harm" to our employees, contractors
and visitors,

A review of the Company's OHAS performance has
led to addition of some key action areas and a further
reiteration of the earlier objectives. The key focus
areas are:

1) Increase visible leadership in OH&S by the
Front Line Management, Apart from the annual
OH4S targets, each operational plant undertook
one additional initiative based on the Fatality
Prevention Element (FPE) of Ambuja Cement.

2) Fatality Prevention Elements include working
at heights, isolation and lockout, vehicle and
traffic safety. These were implemented across
our sites with a target of 40-60%. The quality
of implementation was assessed through an
external certifying agency.

3) A formal OH&S management system, aligned
with the Holcim OH&S Pyramid System and
other directives, has been established over the
past few years across the organisation. All sites
were assessed for implementation of the Holcim
OH&S Pyramid System through an external
certifying agency. The scores from the OHA&S
pyramid assessment were excellent and a
clear demonstration of the implementation of
an integrated OH&S management system in
our operations.

4) Each of our plants has taken steps to ensure
there is no recccurrence of fatal incidents within
the organisation, on the basis of investigation

reports. & similar initiative was also undertaken
far fatalities reported within ACL since 1st
January 2008, potential fatalities reported within
ACL and fatalities reparted within Holcim World
since 1st January 2012.

5) To reduce Risk Exposure through the application
of the OH&S Management system, the following
actions were initiated:

= An interface between ACL OH&S Management
system, Maintenance Cement (MAC) and the
integration of Alternative Fuel & Raw Materials
(AFR) OH&S (ACert requirements) in the ACL
OH&S management system was established.

«= A rpad map was developed for the
implementation of OH&S directive for the
Contractor Safety Management System (CSM).
Implementation of CSM was initiated among
the high-risk category of contractors.

= A process was initiated for the integration of
OH&S requirements during the planning and
execution of a shutdown by applying the ACL
OH&S management system. Risk assessments
were conducted for all activities during the
shutdown.

6) We established risk-specific and competency-
based training as per the requirements of the
targeted Fatality Prevention Elements and other
OHA&S directives.

The Company is committed to reduce OH&S risks
through continuous efforts and the integration of
OHAS requirements with other business processes. It
makes us proud that two of our integrated plants -
Rabriyawas and MCW have received National safety
awards and FICC| Gold respectively, in recognition of
their safety performance,

13. EMPLOYEE STOCK OPTION SCHEME
During the year, the Company has not granted any
fresh stock option to its employees.

CUMULATIVE DISCLOSURE
The particulars as on 31st December, 2012 as required
to be disclosed pursuant to Clause 12 of SEBI
(Employees Stock Option Scheme) Guidelines 1999,
in respect of past ESOS are as follows:
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CUMULATIVE POSITION AS ON 31ST DECEMBER, 2012:

Nature of disclosure Particulars
a. Options granted ATTT6BO0
b, The pricing formula 2007 to 2010
The axercise price was determined by averaging the daily closing price of
the Company's equity shares during 7 (seven) days on the National Stock
Exchange immediately preceding the grant
2004-05 & 2005-06
The exercise price was determined by averaging the daily closing price of the
Company's equity shares during 15 (fifteen) days on the National Stock
Exchange immediately preceding the grant
2003-2004
The exercise price was determined by averaging two weeks' High and Low
price of the Company’s equity shares on the National Stock Exchange
immediately preceding the grant
1999-2000 to 2002-20:03
The exercise price was the average of the daily closing price of equity shares
of the Company on the Stock Exchange, Mumbai during the period of 30 (thirty)
days immediately preceding the date on which the options were granted
c. Options vested 32845925
d. Options exercised 22680900
e, The total number of shares arising as a rasult Total number of shares arising as a result of exercise of options shall be
of exercise of options 44041507 shares of 2 each
f.  Options lapsed / surrendered 4830875
g. Variation of terms of option -
h, Money realised by exercise of options 7 303.91 crores
. Total number of options in force 10165025
j- 11 Details of options granted/exercised Mo, of options granted Mo, of options exercised
by the former Managing Director and
the former Whole-time Directors
32,85,000 26,00,000
i} Any other employee who received a grant MNIL MNIL
in any one year of 5% or more of options
granted during that year
k. Employees who were granted options MIL
during any one year, equal to or exceeding
1% of the issued capital of the Company
at the time of grant
I.  Diluted eaming per share (EPS) pursuant TE4
to issue of shares on exercise of aptions
calculated In accordance with
Accounting Standard AS-20
2003-04 2004-05 2005-06 2007 | 2008 2009 2010
m, Weighted average exercise price of options in ¥ kil 443* 6960 113 ga=- o 1194
Weighted average fair value of options in ¥ 67.44* 96.73% 19,23 20,28 16.95** 26,38 3037

*Qptions relabed to Equity Shares of the face value of € 100 **Optlons related 1o squity shares of the face value of T2
Az required under SEBI gukdelines on ES05, the infosmintion disclosed in respact of itam fm) is for grants made afer June 30, 2003,




14. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The company has complied with the corporate
Governance requirements as stipulated under the
listing agreement with the stock exchanges. A
separate section on corporate governance, along
with a certificate from the auditors confirming
the compliance, is annexed and forms part of the
Annual Report.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE VOLUNTARY GUIDELINES:
The majority of the Corporate Governance Voluntary
Guidelines, 2009, stand complied while complying
with the requirements under the Companies Act,
1956, the Listing Agreement, and the Company's own
governance policies.

15. BUSINESS RESPONSIBILITY REPORT

The Business Responsibility Report for the year
ended 31st December, 2012 as stipulated under
clause 55 of the Listing Agreement is annexed and
forms part of the Annual Report,

16. INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEM

The Company has documented robust and
comprehensive internal control systems for all the
major processes to ensure reliability of financial
reporting, timely feedback on achievement of
operational and strategic goals, compliance with
policies, procedures, laws, and regulations,
safeguarding of assels and economical and efficient
use of resources.

The formalised systems of control facilitate effective
compliance as per Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement,
and article 728 (a) of the Swiss Code of Obligations
applicable to the Holcim Group from 2008,

The Company's Internal Audit department tests,
objectively and independently, the design and
operating effectiveness of the internal control
systems to provide a credible assurance about
their adequacy and effectiveness to the Board
and the Audit Committee, The Internal Audit
function assesses the effectiveness of controls to
provide an objective and independent opinion on the
overall governance processes within the company,
including the application of a systematic risk
management framework.

The scope and authority of the Internal Audit
activity are well defined in the Internal Audit
Charter, approved by the Audit Committee. Internal
Audit plays a key role by providing an assurance

to the Board of Directors and value adding
consultancy service to the business operations.

17. MANAGING THE RISKS OF FRAUD,
CORRUPTION AND UNETHICAL BUSINESS
PRACTICES

Fraud and corruption-free work culture has been the
part of the Company’s DNA all along. In view of the
potential risk of fraud and corruption due to rapid
growth and geographical spread of the operations, the
Company has put even greater emphasis to address
this risk. To meet this objective a comprehensive
Fraud Risk Management Policy (FRMP) has been laid
down. More details on FRMP have been given in the
Corporate Governance Report.

In furtherance to the Company's philosophy of
conducting business in a honest, transparent and
ethical manner, the Board has laid down the Anti-
Bribery and Corruption Directives (ABCD) as part
of the Company's Code of Business Conduct and
Ethics. As a Company, we take a zero-tolerance
approach to bribery and corruption and we are
committed to acting professionally and fairly in all
our business dealings.

To spread awareness about the Company's
commitment to do its business professionally, fairly
and free from bribery and corruption, training and
awareness workshops are conducted through an
independent consulting firm for all the relevant
employees of the Company.

These policies and their implementation are
closely monitored by the Audit and the Compliance
Committees of Directors and reviewed by the Board
fram time to time.

18. DIRECTORS

RETIREMENT BY ROTATION

In accordance with the provisions of Article 147 of the
Articles of Association of the company, (i) Mr. M.L
Bhakta (ii) Mr. Naresh Chandra and (iii) Mr. Onne van
der Weijde will retire by rotation at the ensuing
Annual General Meeting of the Company:.

(i) Mr. M.L. Bhakta,

Mr. Bhakta will retire at the ensuing Annual General
Meeting of the Company. Mr. Bhakta has conveyed
that he does not intend to seek re-election and will
retire upon completion of his term at the ensuing
Annual General Meeting.



Mr. M.L. Bhakta joined the Board in September, 1985.
He was amongst the first Non-executive Independent
Directors on the Company's Board, much before the
term Independent Director became common in the
Indian corporate sector. Over the last two-and-a-half
decades, Mr. Bhakta played an active role by
providing expert advice and guidance to the Board
and its committees on issues ranging from legal,
taxation, governance etc.

(iiy Mr. Naresh Chandra

Mr. Chandra will retire at the ensuing Annual General
Meeting of the Company. Mr. Chandra has conveyed
that he does not intend to seek re-election and will
retire upon completion of his term at the ensuing
Annual General Meeting. Mr. Naresh Chandra joined
the Company's Board in July, 2008 and during this
period he guided the Board and its committees on
the issues of governance, compliance, health and
safety, etc.

The Board placed on record its appreciation for
the valuable services rendered by Mr M.L. Bhakta
and Mr. Naresh Chandra.

In terms of Section 256(4) of the Companies Act, 1956,
the vacancies created by the retirement of Mr M.L
Bhakta and Mr. Naresh Chandra shall not be filled
and a resolution to that effect is proposed for the
approval of the Members at the ensuing Annual
General Meeting.

(iii} Mr. Onne van der Weijde will retire by rotation
at the ensuing Annual General Meeting and being
eligible, offers himself for re-appointment. The
Board recommends his appointment.

APPOINTMENT

Mr. Haigreve Khaitan and Mr. B.L. Taparia have been
appointed as Additional Directors under Section 260
of the Companies Act, 1956 to hold office up to the
date of ensuing Annual General Meeting and being
eligible, has offered themselves for appointment.

(i) Mr Haigreve Khaitan

Mr. Khaitan, aged 42 years is a Law graduate and
is a partner of Khaitan & Co's Mumbai office. He
heads Khaitan & Co's Mergers & Acquisition (M&A)
practice and over the years he has successfully
handled many M&A, private eguity and project
finance transactions. He has published books
and articles on foreign investments and arbitrations
and has been a distinguished speaker at various

conferences. He is also affiliated with various Bar
Councils and Law Institutes of India and abroad.
He has been appointed as Mon-executive
Independent Director on the Board of the Company
w.ef. 27th July, 2012,

(ii) Mr. B.L. Taparia

Mr. Taparia, aged 62 years is Commerce and Law
graduate and a fellow member of the Institute of
Company Secretaries of India. He has over 40 years of
experience in the fields of Legal, Secretarial, Finance
and Accounts, Commercial, Corporate Strategies,
HR, Health and Safety, CSR, Sustainability, etc. He
joined the Company in the year 1983 as a Deputy
Company Secretary and after working at different
positions, he was appointed as Whole-time Director
in the year 1993, where he served till the year 2009.
After stepping down from the Board, Mr. Taparia
continued on the Executive Committee as a Legal
Head, Company Secretary and Head of some key
corporate functions. He superannuated from the
Company in July, 2012, Considering his vast
knowledge and experience and expertise in handling
critical functions, he was appointed as Non-executive
Director on the Board of the Company wef 1st
September, 2012,

The board of directors recommends their
appointment. Further details about these Directors
are givan in the Corporate Governance Report as well
as in the Notice of the ensuing Annual General
Meeting being sent to the shareholders along with
the Annual Report.

19. DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITY

Pursuant to Section 217 (2A4A) of the Companies Act,

1956 as amended, the Directors confirm that;

i} In the preparation of the annual accounts, the
applicable accounting standards have been
followed along with proper explanations relating
to material departures.

ii) Appropriate accounting policies have been
selected and applied consistently, except for the
change in accounting policies stated in notes
to the accounts and judgments and estimates
made are reasonable and prudent, so as to give
a true and fair view of the state of affairs of
the Company as on 31st December, 2012, and
of the statement of profit & loss and cash flow
of the company for the period ended 31st
December, 2012,

iii) Proper and sufficient care has been taken for the
maintenance of adequate accounting records in



accordance with the provisions of the Companies
Act, 1956 for sateguarding the assets of the
Company and for preventing and detecting fraud
and other irregularities.

iv] The annual accounts have been prepared on a
going concern basis,

20. AUDITORS

STATUTORY AUDITORS

M/s 5. R. Batliboi & Co, Statutory Auditors, will retire
at the ensuing Annual General Meeting and are
eligible for re-appointment. M/s 5. R. Batliboi & Co.
have confirmed that their re-appointment, if made,
shall be within the limits specified under Section
224(1B) of the Companies Act, 1956,

The Board recommends their re-appointment as
Statutory Auditors and to fix their remuneration.

COST AUDITORS AND COST AUDIT REPORT
Pursuant to section 233B(2) of the Companies Act
1956, the Board of Directors on the recommendation
of the Audit Committee appointed M/s. PM.
Manabhoy & Co. Cost Accountants, as the Cost
Auditors of the Company for the Financial Year 2013.
M/s. BM, Mapabhoy & Co. have confirmed that their
appointment is within the limits of the Section 224
(1B) of the Companies Act, 1956 and have also
certified that they are free from any disqualifications
specified under Section 233B(5) read with Section
224 sub-section (3) or sub-section (4) of Section 226
of the Companies Act 1956,

The Audit Committee has also received a certificate
from the Cost Auditor certifying their independence
and arm's length relationship with the Company
Pursuant to Cost Audit (Report) Rules 2001, the Cost
Audit Report for the financial year 2012 was filed
on 27th December, 2012 vide SREN No. S19608587 on
the Ministry of Corporate Affairs website.

21, TRANSFER TO INVESTOR EDUCATION
AND PROTECTION FUND

The Company has transferred a sum of ¥ 59.50 |acs
during the financial year 2012 to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund established by the
Central Government, in compliance with 3Section
205C of the Companies Act, 1956. The said amount
represents unclaimed dividends which were lying
with the Company for a period of 7 years from
their respective due dates of payment. Prior to
transferring the aforesaid sum, the Company has

sent reminders to the shareholders for submitting
their claims for unclaimed dividend.

22. ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY AND

FOREIGN EXCHANGE

Information on conservation of energy, technology
absorption, foreign exchange earnings and outgo, is
required to be given pursuant to Section 217 (1) (e) of
the Companies Act, 1956 read with the Companies
(Disclosure of Particulars in the Report of the Board
of Directors) Rules, 1988 is annexed hereto marked
Annexure - |, and forms part of this report.

23. PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES

The information required under Section 217 (2A) of
the Companies Act, 1956 read with Companies
(Particulars of Employees) Rules, 1975 as amended,
in respect of the employees of the Company, is
provided in the Annexure forming part of this
Report. In terms of Section 219(1)(b){iv) of the Act,
the Report and Accounts are being sent to the
members and others entitled thereto, excluding the
aforesaid Annexure, The Annexure is available for
inspection by the memhbers at the Registered
Office of the Company during business hours on
working days up to the date of the ensuing Annual
General Meeting. If any member is interested in
obtaining a copy thereof, such member may write
to the Company Secretary, whereupon a copy would
be sent.

24, SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES

Ministry of Corporate Affairs, Government of India,
vide its circular dated 8th February, 2011 has
exempted companies from attaching the Annual
Reports and other particulars of its subsidiary
companies along with the Annual Report of the
Company required u/s 212 of the Companies
Act 1956. Therefore, the Annual Reports of the
subsidiary companies viz. (1) Chemical Limes
Mundwa Pwt. Ltd. (2) M.G.T. Cements Pvt. Ltd.
(3) Kakinada Cements Ltd. (4) Dang Cement
Industries Pwt. Ltd. (5) Dirk India Pvt. Ltd. and
(6) Dirk Pozzocrete (MP) Pvi. Ltd. are not attached
with this Annual Report. However, a statement
giving certain information as required vide aforesaid
circular dated 8th February, 2011 is placed along
with the Consolidated Accounts,

The annual accounts of the subsidiary Companies
are kept for inspection by the shareholders at the
Corporate (Head) Office of the Company. The
Company shall provide free of cost, the copy of the



Annual Accounts of its subsidiary companies to the
shareholders upon their request.

25. CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
As stipulated by Clause 32 of the listing agreement
with the stock exchanges, the consolidated financial
statements have been prepared by the Company
in accordance with the applicable accounting
standards issued by The Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India. The audited consolidated
financial statements together with Auditors' Report
form part of the Annual Report.

The consolidated net profit of the Company and
its subsidiaries amounted to 7 1293.21 crores for
the corporate financial year ended on 31st December,
2012 as compared to ¥1297.06 crores on a standalone
basis.

26. EQUAL OPPORTUNITY EMPLOYER

The Company has always provided a congenial
atmosphere for work to all sections of the society.
It has provided equal opportunities of employment
to all without regard to their caste, religion, colour,
marital status and sex.

27, AWARDS AND ACCOLADES

(a) It is a matter of great pride that in recognition
to the Company’s efforts in the area of sustainability,
the Company was presented the Cll Sustainability
Award, 2012 (Commendation Certificate for
Significant Achievement) by the Hon'ble President of
India, Shri Pranab Mukherjee.

At the same award ceremony, the company’s
MCW unit at Chandrapur was also presented
with “"Commendation on Strong Commitment” in
sustainability by the Hon'ble President of India.

(b) Our mines continued to be adjudged among
the best mines in their respective regions by the
Director General of Mines on various parameters
such as mine working, maintenance, innovations,
health & safety, training, environment protection, etc.

(c) The Cll conferred the “Mational Award for
Excellence in Water Management" to our Rabriyawas
unit and Marwar Mundwa project site in the 'Beyond
the Fence' Category.

{d) Our Rabariyawas unit won the runner-up prize
at the in Mational Safety Awards from the Ministry
of Labour,

() Our MCW unit at Chandrapur received the
Maharashtra Safety Award from the National Safety
Council,

(i Our MCW unit at Chandrapur also received the
Environment Excellence Award from the Greentech
Foundation,

(o) Ambuja won the "Zee Business Good Homes
Awards" in the “Best Amongst Equals Brand"
category.

28. CAUTIONARY STATEMENT

Statements in the Directors' Report and the
Management Discussion and Analysis describing the
Company’'s objectives, expectations or predictions,
may be forward looking within the meaning of
applicable securities laws and regulations. Actual
results may differ materially from those expressed in
the statement. Important factors that could influence
the Company's operations include: global and
domestic demand and supply conditions affecting
selling prices, new capacity additions, availability
of critical materials and their cost, changes in
government policies and tax laws, economic
development of the country, and other factors which
are material to the business operations of the
Company.
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Annexure - |

DISCLOSURE OF PARTICULARS WITH RESPECT TO CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS
AND OUTGO AS REQUIRED UNDER COMPANIES (DISCLOSURE OF PARTICULARS IN REPORT OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS) RULES, 1988

A) CONSERVATION OF ENERGY

(a)

(b)

Energy Conservation Measures taken:

(1) Optimisation of Process & Equipments at Various
Locations:

()  Modification  of  various
(Bhatapara, Rabriyawas)

sfages  cyclones

(i) Installation of Belt Bucket Elevator in place of
aeropole for Raw Meal Silo feed. (Bhatapara)

(i)  Optimization of fuel mix. (Rabriyawas, Maratha,
Ambujanagar)

(iv)  Optimization of fans, bag filters & compressed air
(Rabriyawas, Suli, Rauri, Dadri, Nalagarh)

(v) Installation of fuzzy logic control Cement Mill, Kiln
and Cooler operation. (Bhatapara)

(vi)  Modification & Optimization of raw mills, clinker
cooler (Rabriyawas, Ambujanagar, Maratha, Rauri,
Suli, Bhatapara)

(vii)  Optimisation of cement mill and packing plant.
(Roorkee, Nalagarh, Dadri)

Mechanised feeding system for Plastic Shredder.
(Ambujanagar)

(viii)
(ix) Maximise AFR usage by installation of AFR bumout
chamber in SLC TA duct. (Rabriyawas)
(2) Installation of Speed Control Devices:

(i) Installation of Grid Rotfor Resistance control in Bag
house fan and AC drives in packing plant. (Dadri)

(i) Installation of speed control devices like VWF drives
in fans of various equipments. (Farakka, Sankrail,
Bhatapara, Nalagarh, Bathinda, Suli)

(i) SPRS Reftrofitting from SLC Fan to Bag House Fan
(Rabriyawas)

(3) Energy Conservation Measures for Plant & Township
lighting:

i) Installation of Light Emitting Diode (LED) and
optimisation  of lighting  voltage.  (Sankrail,
Nalagarh, Maratha, Dadri)

(i) Installation of lighting fransformer. (Sankrail)

(i)  Transparent roof sheet in workshop to utilise day
light. (Ralbriyawas)

(4) Installation Of Energy Efficient Equipments:
(i)  Installation of SPRS. (Rauri, Suli)

(i)  SPRS Retrofitting from SLC Fan to Bag House Fan
(Rabriyawas)

(i) Installation of less capacity compressor. (Dadri)
(iv) Installation of FRP fan impellor. (Bathinda)
(5) Solar and Wind Power Utilization:

(i)  Solar lighting and heating system. (Nalagarh,
Dadri, Roorkee)

(i)~ 3*100 KW SVP solar energy plant. (Bhatapara)

Additional investments and proposals, if any, being
implemented for reduction of consumption of energy:

(1) Optimization of Process &Equipments at various
locations:

(i)  Modification in ILC calciner and better yard
management. (Rabriyawas)

(i)  Coal mill up gradation with Dynamic Separator,
Separate Fly Ash Grinding and Blending System.
(Ambujanagar)

(i) Installation  of
(Ambujanagar)

Expert Opfimiser for Gaj-1.

B)

<)

(c

C)]

(iv)  Raw mix and fuel mix optimization. (Ambujanagar,
Bhatapara and Rabriyawas)

(v)  Energy audit and bag filter optimisation. (Roorkee,
Rabriyawas)

(2) Installation of Speed Control Devices:

(i) Installation of VVF Drives in various equipments.
(Dadri, Rabriyawas, Rauri, Suli, Farakka, Nalagarh,
Bhatapara, Bathinda)

(3) Energy Conservation Measures for Plant & Township
lighting:

(i) Two way belt, lighting arangement for silo tunnel
auto start / stop of HT Capacitor with HT motor from
CCR. (Dadri)

(i)  Energy and compressed air audit for power
consumption. (Farakka, Roorkee)

(i) Installation of Capacitor Banks. (Bhatapara)

(iv)  Tipping of Raw Mill Fan, Kiln inlet enlargement with
inlet seal replacement & riser modification. (Rauri,
Suli)

(4) Installation of Energy Efficient Equipments:

(i) SPRS Installation for raw mill, preheater fan, cooler
fan, ESP fan, coal mill fan. (Dadri, Rabriyawas, Suli)

(i) LED lighting system. (Dadri, Rabriyawas, Sankrail)
(i)  Replacement of cooler fans. (Rabriyawas, Suli)

(iv)  Power Transmission Line to BCT-Muldwarka from
Ambujanagar. (Ambujanagar)

(v)  Sepa Fan impeller replacement. (Bathinda)
(5) Solar and Wind Power Utilization:
(i  Instaling 80 KW solar plant. (Surat)

Impact of the measures at (a) and (b) above for reduction
of energy consumption and consequent impact on the
cost of production of goods:

Measures referred to in (a) will result in saving of % 35.34 crores
per annum. Measures referred fo in (b) is expected to result in
saving of ¥ 26.56 crores per annum.

Total energy consumption and energy consumption per
unit of production:

Information given in the prescribed Form-A annexed.

TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION

Efforts made in fechnology absorption are given in prescribed
Form-B annexed.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO

()

(b)

Activities relating to exports; initiatives taken to increase
exports; development of new export markets for products
& services; and export plans:

In view of good growth in domestic demand and fall
in infernational demand and prices, the Company has
reduced its exports to 0.89 lacs tonnes of cement as against
3.28 lacs tonnes in the previous year. In terms of value, the
exports during this year amounted to % 26.87 crores (FOB) as
against ¥ 76.94 crores (FOB) in the previous year.

Total foreign exchange used and earned:

Category Current Year Previous Year

(X in crores) (% in crores)
Used 881.32 552.43
Eamed 53.34 72.00
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A.

*%

>

FORM - A

(See Rule 2)

Form for Disclosure of Particulars with respect to Conservation of Energy

POWER & FUEL CONSUMPTION

1

Electricity *
(@) Purchased
Units (KWH) Crores
Total amount (% in Crores)
Rate / Unit )
(b) Own Generation
(i) Through DG Generator
Net Units (KWH) Crores
Net Units / Ltr of LDO / Furnace Oil
LDO / Fumace Oil Cost / Unit Generated (%)
(i) Through Steam Generator
Net Units (KWH) Crores #
Net Units / T of Fuel
Qil / Gas Cost / Unit
(i) Through Wind Mill / Solar Power
Net Units (KWH) Crores $
Net Units / T of Fuel
Qil / Gas Cost / Unit
Coal & Other Fuels
Quantity (Million K. Cal)
Total Cost (% in Crores)
Average Rate (X / Million K.Cal)
Light Diesel Oil / HSD
Quantity (K.Litres)
Total Cost (% in Crores)
Average Rate (% / K.Litre)
Others / Internal Generation
Quantity
Total Cost
Rate / Unit

CONSUMPTION PER UNIT OF PRODUCTION
Electricity (KWH / T of Cement) **

LDO (Ltr/ T of Clinker)

Coal & Other Fuels (K.Cal / Kg of Clinker)

Industry Norms
100
N.A.
800

Current Year
Jan to Dec 2012

Previous Year
Jan to Dec 2011

65.82
341.91
5.19

3.31
3.77
10.29

115.57
796
3.84

1.21
NIL
NIL

11643842
1354
1162.99

2577.05
11.01
42742

NIL
NIL
NIL

80.9
0.15
736

Total power consumed includes 0.10 Crore kwh consumed for Capital Work in progress for project work

(previous year 0.34 Crore kwh) and also for distribution activities 0.70 crore kwh. (previous year 0.70 crore kwh)

Does not include Electricity consumed in residential colony which is 0.58 kwh / tonne of cement.

(previous year 0.63 kwh / Tonne of cement). Total specific power consumption has been reworked due to change

in allocation method of indirect power, previous year’s figure has also been restated accordingly.

Includes 0.14 crore units of TG-power sold. (previous year 3.21 crore units)

Includes 0.08 crore units of Wind Mill power sold. (previous year 0.19 crore units)
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53.16
257.85
4.85

5.61
3.77
8.94

120.01
764
3.51

1.04
NIL
NIL

10869166
1124
1034.02

3299.15
13.38
40546

NIL
NIL
NIL

82.6
0.22
739



1)

2)

3)

4)

FORM - B

(See Rule 2)

Form for disclosure of particulars with respect to Technology Absorption

RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT (R&D)

Specific areas in which R & D carried out by the Company:

a.  Developing technology for utilization of industrial waste
plastics, Vacuum cleaning machine - fo reduce fugitive
emission. (Maratha)

b. Imported & indigenous gypsum mix Optimization.
(Bathinda)

c.  Trals with grinding aid. (Maratha)
Benefits derived as a result of above R & D:

a.  Closed system to eliminate dust and other contaminants,
reduction in CO2 emission by sequestration.

b.  Increase TSR%, Reduction in fugitive emission.

Cc.  Reduction in clinker factor, Increase in product quality
and reduction in production cost.

Future plan of action:
a.  Trial for grinding aids. (Surat, Bathinda)

b.  Development of techniques for utilizing industrial waste
like plastics in kilns. (Ambujanagar, Maratha)

c.  Upgradation & installation of energy efficient
equipments.

Expenditure on R&D

Current Year| Previous Year

31.12.2012| 31.12.2011

(X Crores) (X Crores)

Capital Expenditure 1.25 0.50

Recuring Expenditure 0.02 0.27

Total Expenditure 1.27 0.77
Total R & D expenditure as a

percentage of total turnover 0.01% 0.01%

B. TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, ADAPTION & INNOVATION

1)

Efforts, in brief, made towards Technology Absorption,
Adaption and Innovation:

a.  Modification and automation in bulk loading system.
(Surat, Rauri, Suli, Sankrail, Bathinda)

b.  Modification in Raw Mill systems like Dorol initiatives and
DALOG. (Bhatapara, Suli, Ambujanagar)

c. Installation of Laboratory Information Management
System. (Rabriyawas, Maratha, Ambujanagar)

d. Installation of New AFR lab for testing of various AFR
and En-Mass conveyor for AFR feeding to ILC and SLC
Preheater. (Rabriyawas)

e. Usage of Thermal Imaging Camera for determining hot
spots. (Rauri, Suli)

Simulator based training centre for Automation. (Rauri)
Wireless communication system for operation of water
supply pumps. (Suli)

h.  Water heating system from Kiln shell radiations. (Suli)
Replacement of helium gas based XRF machine by
XRF SPECTRO 1Q Il (multi Channel). (Sankrail)

j. Installations of UPS 20 KVA, suspended type weigh
feeders, Automated Grinding aid feeding system,
Dozco. (Sankrail)

K. Implementation of technical Information system,
Cement Mill Expert system, 3x100 KW SVP Solar Energy
Plant. (Bhatapara)

I, Adoption of patented “KFP” technology for rainwater
harvesting / recharging at site. (Bathinda)

m. Installation of new technology bag filter - Torit power
core filter pack. (Bathinda)

«Q —

2)

3)

Benefits derived as a result of the above efforts in the year
2012

a. Improved operational efficiencies, equipment reliability,
productivity and quality.

b.  Reduction in manufacturing cost, increase safety and
protection of environment.

Information regarding Technology Imported during last
5 years

a.  Modification in packing plants like bag printing
machine, increase in spouts etc. (Surat, Rabriyawas,
Maratha, Farakka)

b.  Installation of Silo-level sensor. (Surat)

c. Installation of Coriolis fine coal feeding system.
(Rabriyawas, Ambujanagar)

d.  Replacement of reverse air bag house to jet pulse filters,
MF HRB -12 for clinker crushing to hammer crusher New
Duo flex Burner. (Rabriyawas)

e. Installation of 500 TPD Synthetic Gypsum Manufacturing
plant, VWF drives on various equipments. (Rabriyawas)

f. Installation of Confinuous emission monitoring system
(Maratha, Bhatapara line 1T and 2, Ambujanagar) and
Particle size analyzer. (Maratha, Farakka, Bathinda)

g.  Rofa scale for PC firing. (Maratha)

h.  Installation of Hot Air Generator and High mast fower
lighting. (Farakka)

i. PLC is upgraded by FLS automation fo get all type of
tfrends of equipments, required for proper analysis.
(Sankrail)

o Existing ESP of Cement Mill-l & Il converted into Hybrid
ESP (Bhatapara)

K. Installation of PGNAA. (Rabriyawas, Bhatapara line 1
and 2)

l. Commissioned Mechanical kiln - monitoring  system,
sound level sensor. (Bhatapara Line 1 and 2,
Ambujanagar)

m. Installation of Pfister system for Kiin Feed system and
Coal fiing system. (Bhatapara)

n. Installation of VRPM and Technical Information system.
(Bhatapara)

0. Replacement of existing conventional burner pipe with
third generation Multi Channel Bumer (Novaflam from
Fives Pillard). (Bhatapara)

p. Fuzzy Llogic High level control. (Bhatapara line-1,
Roorkee)

g. Installation of Bag house IPO Raw Mill ESP, Conversion of
2 Fan to 3 Fan systems. (Bhatapara)

I Installation of Kiln shell scanner, Kiln feed actuator, x-ray
analyser. (Ambujanagar)

S. Installation of DALOG System. (Ambujanagar, Bhatapara
line -1 and 2)

1. Variable speed fravel cage and oxy acetylene cutting
machine. (Ambujanagar)

u.  Microscope for  clinker
(Ambujanagar)

V. Procurement of thermal imager-Condition monitoring
tool, vibration analyzer, laser alignment tool. (Bathinda)

w.  Grid Rotor Resistance for bag House Fan Instead of
Liquid Resistance Starter. (Nalagarh)

X. Online Filtration machine installed in VRM gear Box and
Hydraulic Tipplers. (Nalagarh)

y.  TPS Machine for Cleaning the Packing plant. (Nalagarh)

quality  improvement.
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Report on Corporate Governance

The Directors’ Report on the compliance of the Corporate Governance Code is given below.

1.

2.

Corporate Governance

1.1

1.2

Company’s Philosophy on Corporate Governance:

At Ambuja Cements, Corporate Governance has been an integral part of the way we have been doing
our business since inception. We believe that good Corporate Governance emerges from the application
of the best and sound management practices and compliance with the laws coupled with adherence to
the highest standards of fransparency and business ethics. These main drivers, together with the Company’s
ongoing contributions 1o the local communities through meaningful *Corporate Social Responsibility” initiatives
will play a pivotal role in fulfilling our renewed vision to be the most sustainable and competitive company in
our industry and our mission to create value for all our stakeholders.

The Company places great emphasis on values such as empowerment and integrity of its employees, safety
of the employees & communities surrounding our plants, tfransparency in decision making process, fair &
ethical dealings with all, pollution free clean environment and last but not the least, accountability to all
the stakeholders. These practices being followed since the inception have contributed to the Company’s
sustained growth. The Company also believes that its operations should ensure that the precious natural
resources are utilized in a manner that contributes to the “Triple Bottom Line”.

The Governance Structure:

Ambuja’s govermnance structure is based on the principles of freedom 1o the executive management within
a given framework to ensure that the powers vested in the executive management are exercised with due
care and responsibility so as to meet the expectation of all the stakeholders. In line with these principles, the
Company has formed three tiers of Corporate Govermnance structure, viz.:

()  The Board of Directors - The primary role of the Board is to protect the interest and enhance value for
all the stakeholders. It conducts overall strategic supervision and control by setting the goals & targets,
poalicies, reporting mechanism & accountability and decision making process to e followed.

(i) Committees of Directors - such as Audit Committee, Compliance Committee, Capex Committee etc.
are focused on financial reporting, audit & internal controls, compliance issues and critical assessment &
review of large capex.

(i) Executive Management — The entire business including the support services are managed with clearly
demarcated responsibilities and authorities at different levels.

(@) Executive Committee - The Executive Committee comprises of the Managing Director, the CEO,
the Business Heads and certain Corporate Functional Heads. This committee is a brain storming
committee where allimportant business issues are discussed and decisions are taken. This Committee
reviews and monitors monthly performances, addresses challenges faced by the business, draws
strategies and policies and keep the Board informed about important developments having bearing
on the operational and financial performance of the Company.

(b) Managing Director - The Managing Director is responsible for achieving the Company’s vision and
mission, overall business strategies, new projects, acquisitions, significant policy decisions and all the
critical issues having significant business & financial implications. He also ensures implementation
of the decisions of the Board of Directors and its various Committees. He reports to the Board of
Directors.

(c) CEO-the CEOisresponsible for the entire operations of all the regions and for the overall performance
and growth of the Company. He provides strategic directions, policy guidelines and extends support
fo the Executive Committee Members and other Functional Heads. He reports to the Managing
Director.

(d) Business Heads - With a view to decentralize the powers and responsibilities and to build leaders, the
business operations have been divided into three regions, viz. (i) North, (i) West & South and (iii) East.
Each region is headed by a Business Head, who is responsible for the day to day business and related
functions within their respective regions. The Business Heads report to the CEO.

(e) Unit Heads - Unit Head is responsible for operation and maintenance of the plant as well as for all the
other functions at the respective plant locations, including all local issues and compliances as may
be applicable. He reports to the Business Head.

Board of Directors

2.1

Composition:

The Company has a very balanced structure of the Board of Directors, which primarily takes care of the
business needs and stakeholders’ interest. The composition of the Board also complies with the provisions of
the Companies Act, 1956 and the Listing Agreement.
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As at the end of corporate financial year 2012, the total Board strength comprises of the following:

Independent Directors (including Chairman) 8
Non Independent Directors (non executive) 3
Managing Director 1

Total Strength 12

None of the directors is a director in more than 15 public companies and member of more than 10 committees
or act as Chairman of more than 5 committees across all companies in which they are directors. Directors are
appointed or re-appointed with the approval of the shareholders and shall remain in office in accordance
with the retirement policy as laid down by the Board from time to time. The Managing Director and all the non-
executive directors are liable to retire by rotation unless otherwise specifically approved by the shareholders.

The Non-executive Directors including Independent Directors on the Board are experienced, competent and
highly renowned persons from their respective fields. They take active part at the Board and Committee
Meetings and play critical role on strategic issues, which enhances the transparency and add value in the
decision making process of the Board of Directors.

The brief profile of each Director is given below:
(i) Mr. N.S. Sekhsaria (Non-Executive Chairman Independent)

Mr. Sekhsaria is a doyen of the Indian Cement Industry and one of the most respected business personalities
in India. In a career spanning over 32 years, he has infroduced new standards in manufacturing,
management, marketing efficiency and corporate social responsibility to an industry he has helped
fransform.

A first generation industrialist, Mr. Sekhsaria, holds a Bachelor’s Degree with honours and distinction in
Chemical Engineering, from the University of Bombay. As a founder promoter of Ambuja Cement he was
the Chief Executive & Managing Director of the Company since its inception in April 1983 ftill January
2006. Mr. Sekhsaria relinquished the post of Managing Director and was appointed as Non-executive
Vice Chairman when the management control was transferred to Holcim. In September 2009, he was
appointed as Non-executive Chairman after Mr. Suresh Neotia relinquished the post of Chairman.

Mr. Sekhsaria built Ambuja Cement info the most efficient and profitable cement Company in India. He
has been instrumental in creating and developing a result-oriented management team. His extraordinary
business model for the Company was centred on continually fine-tuning efficiencies and upgrading
facilities to meet increased competition and the ever growing challenges in the Cement Industry.

Mr. Sekhsaria also re-defined the industry practices by tuming cement from a commaodity into a brand,
bringing cement plants closer to cement markets and linking plants to lucrative coastal markets by setting
up ports and a fleet of bulk cement ships for the first fime in India. During his tenure as a founder promoter,
the Company grew from 0.7 million fonne capacity to 15 million tonnes, from one location foot print to a
pan-India Company which set the bench mark for the Cement Industry across every significant business
parameters. The market capitalisation of the Company also increased from the original 318 crores in the
year 1985 to about 14,000 crores. These achievements from a first generation industrialist in such a short
span speaks volume of vision, business acumen and leadership qualities of Mr. Sekhsaria.

(ii) Mr. Paul Hugentobler (Non-Executive Vice Chairman - Promoter Director representing Holcim Lid., Non
Independent)

Mr. Hugentobler, a Swiss national, obtained a degree in civil engineering from the Swiss Federal Institute
of Technology, ETH, Zurich, and a degree in economic science from the University of St. Gallen. He joined
Holcim Group Support Limited in 1980 as Project Manager and in 1994 was appointed Area Manager
for Holcim Limited. During 1999-2000, he served as CEO of Siam City Cement, Thailand. He has been a
Member of the Executive Committee of Holcim since January 2002 with responsibility for South Asia and
ASEAN excluding Philippines.

He joined the Board in May 2006. In September 2009 he was made Non-executive Vice Chairman.

(iii) Mr. Bernard Fontana (Non-Executive Promoter Director representing Holcim Lid., Non Independent
w.e.f. 10.02.2012)

Mr. Fontana, a French national, holds a degree in Engineering from the Ecole Polytechnique and the Ecole
Nationale Superieure des Techniques Avancees in Paris. He began his career with Groupe SNPE in France
where he held various positions including the head of its US operations and the member of the Group
Executive Committee. In the year 2004 he joined Arcelor Mittal where he was given the responsibility for
HR, IT and Business Development at Flat Carbon division. From 2006 to 2010 he was a member of the
Management Committee of Arcelor Mittal with responsibility for the Automotive Worldwide Business Unit
and then Group HR. In the year 2010 he was appointed the CEO of Aperam, a company spun off from
Arcelor Mittal.

He was appointed as the CEO of Holcim Ltd. from 1" February, 2012,
He joined the Board in February, 2012.
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(iv)

v

(vi)

(vii)

Mr. M. L. Bhakta (Non-Executive, Independent Director)

Mr. Bhakta is a Senior Partner of Messrs Kanga & Company, a leading firm of Advocates and Solicitors
in Mumbai. He has been in practice for over 56 years and has vast experience in the legal field and
particularly on matters relating to corporate laws, banking and taxation.

During his long career Mr. Bhakta has been Joint Honorary Secretary and later one of the Vice Presidents
of the Income Tax Appellate Tribunal Bar Association, director of Bennet, Coleman & Co. Ltd., Larsen &
Toubro Ltd., SKF Bearings Ltd., Kirloskar Oil Engines Ltd. and many other leading companies. Presently, he
is on Board of several large corporates including Reliance Industries Ltd.

He is recipient of Rotary Centennial Service Award for Professional Excellence from Rotary International.
He is listed as one of the leading lawyers of Asia for five consecutive years from 2006 to 2010 and again
for the sixth consecutive year in 2011 by Asialaw, Hong Kong.

He joined the Board in September 1985.
Mr. Nasser Munjee (Non-Executive, Independent Director)

Mr. Munjee holds a Bachelor’'s and Master’s degree from the London School of Economics, U.K. His joumney
in creating financial institutions began with HDFC, whom he has been assisting since its inception in
February 1978. In March 1993, he joined the Board of HDFC as Executive Director on which he continues
to be along with 14 other companies. Mr. Munjee has deep interest for rural development, housing
finance, urban issues, specially the development of modem cities and humanitarian causes. He is also
the Chairman of Development Credit Bank and of two other Aga Khan institutions in India. He was the
President of the Bombay Chamiber of Commerce and Industry — the city’s oldest Chamber of Commerce
and he has served on numerous Government Task Forces on Housing and Urban Development. He has
been awarded as the “Best Non-Executive Independent Director 2009” by Asian Centre for Corporate
Governance (ACCG).

He joined the Board in August 2001.
Mr. Rajendra Chitale (Non-Executive, Independent Director)

Mr. Chitale, an eminent Chartered Accountant, is the Managing Partner of M/s M. P Chitale & Associates,
a leading boutique international structuring, tax and legal advisory firm. He is a member of the Insurance
Advisory Committee of the Insurance and Regulatory Authority of India, and has served as a member
of the Company Law Advisory Committee, Government of India, the Takeover Panel of the Securities &
Exchange Board of India, the Advisory Committee on Regulations of the Competition Commission of
India, and the Maharashtra Board for Restructuring of State Enterprises, Government of Maharashtra.
He has served on the board of Life Insurance Corporation of India, Unit Trust of India, Small Industries
Development Bank of India, National Stock Exchange of India Ltd., and SBI Capital Markets Ltd. He is on
the Board of several large corporates.

He joined the Board in July 2002,
Mr. Shailesh Haribhakti (Non-Executive, Independent Director)

A Fellow Chartered Accountant and Cost Accountant, Mr. Shailesh Haribhakti is a Certified Internal
Auditor, Financial Planner & Fraud Examiner. During a career span of four decades, he has successfully
established and led many innovative services. His current passion involves Outsourcing of Knowledge
Processes, Engaged Investing and efficiency & effectiveness enhancement in Social, Commercial and
Governmental Organizations. He strongly believes in ‘Shared Value' creation, good public and corporate
governance and promoting a green environment. He actively promotes these causes, and contributes
towards their evolution by participating in the process of framing regulations and standards.

He is on the Board of Directors of several listed and private companies.
He joined the Board in May 2006.

(viii) Dr. Omkar Goswami (Non-Executive, Independent Director)

(ix)

Dr. Goswami, a professional economist, did his Master’s in Economics from the Delhi School of Economics
and his D. Phil (Ph.D.) from Oxford University. He taught and researched economics for 19 years at various
reputed universities in India and abroad. During a career spanning over 31 years, he has been associated
as advisor to several Government committees and international organizations like the World Bank, the
OECD, the IMF and the ADB. He has also served as the Editor of “Business India”, one of India’s prestigious
business magazines and as the Chief Economist of the Confederation of Indian Industry. Dr. Goswami is
the Founder and Executive Chairman of CERG Advisory Pvt. Ltd., which is engaged in corporate advisory
and consulting services for companies in India and abroad. He is also on the Board of several large
corporates.

He joined the Board in July 2006.
Mr. Naresh Chandra (Non-Executive, Independent Director)
Mr. Naresh Chandra is a postgraduate in mathematics from Allahabad University. He was a distinguished
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member of the Indian Administrative Service (IAS) & former Cabinet Secretary fo the Government of
India and has held various important positions including that of Governor of the State of Gujarat and
India’s Ambassador to the United States of America. He was also the Chairman of Corporate Governance
Committee instituted by the Government of India. In the year 2007, he was honoured with Padma
Vibhushan by the Government of India. He is a Director on the Board of ACC and several other reputed
companies.

He joined the Board in July 2008.
(x) Mr. Haigreve Khaitan (Non-Executive, Independent Director w.e.f. 27.07.2012)

Mr. Khaitan is a law graduate and is a Partner of reputed law firm, Khaitan & Co. He started his career
in litigation and has over the years been involved in many Mergers & Acquisitions and private equity
fransactions, as well as project finance fransactions. He has rich experience in all aspects of Mergers
& Acquisitions, Corporate Restructuring, Demergers, Spin-offs, Sale of Assets, Foreign Investments, Joint
Ventures and Foreign Collaborations. He advises a range of large Indian conglomerates and multinational
clients in various business sectors including infrastructure, power, telecom, automobiles, steel, software
and information technology, retail, etc.

IFLR 1000 has recommended him as one of the leading lawyers in India. Asialaw Leading Lawyers
2008 / 2009 has also voted him as the leading lawyer for Project Finance. He is on the Board of some of
the large public listed companies.

He joined the Board in July, 2012,
(xi) Mr. B.L. Taparia (Non-Executive, Non — Independent Director w.e.f. 01.09.2012)

Mr. Taparia is a Commerce and Law graduate and a fellow member of the Institute of Company
Secretaries of India. He is having more than 40 years of experience in the fields of Legal, Secretarial,
Accounts, Finance, HR, Health & Safety, Sustainability. He joined the Company in the year 1983 as Deputy
Company Secretary and after working in different positions in the Company including as a Whole-time
Director from the year 1999 to 2009. Mr. Taparia superannuated from the Company in July 2012 as
Company Secretary and Corporate Sustainability Officer.

Looking at his vast and rich experience and his long association with the Company, Mr. Taparia was
appointed on the Board as Non-Executive, Non - Independent Director w.e.f. 15 September, 2012,

(xii) Mr. Onne van der Weijde (Promoter Director representing Holcim Ltd., Managing Director, Non
Independent)

Mr. Onne, a Dutch national, holds a Bachelors” degree in Economics & Accounting from Rotfterdam, the
Netherlands and a Master’s degree in Business Administration from the University of Bradford, UK. In the
year 1996 he joined Holcim and after holding various positions, he was appointed Director and General
Manager for Holcim (India) Pvt. Ltd. in March 2005. He was the CFO of ACC for around 2 years during
2006-2008. He possesses more than 16 years of experience in cement industry including 8 years in Indian
cement industry. Recently Holcim Ltd. has given him additional responsibility by appointing him as the
Area Manager and a member of its Senior Management Team.

He joined the Board in January 2009.
Meetings, agendaq, attendance & proceedings etc. of the Board Meeting:

Meetings:

The Board generally meets 5 times during the year. The yearly calendar of the meetings is finalized before
the beginning of the year. Additional meetings are held when necessary. During the year ended on
31¢ December, 2012 the Board of Directors had 5 meetings. These were held on 9" February, 2012, 19™ April,
2012, 26™ July, 2012, 18™M October 2012 and 13" December, 2012. The attendance of the Directors at the
Board meeting is given elsewhere in this section.

Agenda:

All the meetings are conducted as per well designed and structured agenda. All the agenda items are
backed by necessary supporting information and documents to enable the Board to take informed decisions.
Agenda also includes minutes of the meetings of all the Board Committees and Subsidiaries for the information
of the Board. Additional agenda items in the form of “Other Business” are included with the permission of the
Chairman. Agenda papers are generally circulated seven days prior to the Board Meeting.

Invitees & Proceedings:

Apart from the Board members, the Company Secretary, the Business Heads and the CFO are invited to
attend all the Board Meetings. Other senior management executives are called as and when necessary, to
provide additional inputs for the items being discussed by the Board. The CFO makes presentation on the
quarterly and annual operatfing & financial performance and on annual operating & capex budget. The
Managing Director, Business Heads and other senior executives make presentations on capex proposals &
progress, operational health & safety and other business issues. The Chairman of various Board Committees
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brief the Board on all the important matters discussed & decided at their respective committee meetings,
which are generally held prior to the Board meeting.

Post Meeting Action:

Post meetings, all important decisions taken at the meeting are commmunicated to the concemed officials
and departments. Action Taken Report is prepared and reviewed periodically by the Company Secretary for
the action taken / pending fo be taken.

Attendance at the Board and Annual General Meeting

The last Annual General Meeting (AGM) was held on 27" March, 2012. The attendance record of the Directors
at the Board Meetings during the year ended on 31 December, 2012, and at the last AGM is as under:-

Sr. No.  Name of Director Category No. of Board Aftfendance af
Meetings last AGM
attended

1. Mr. N. S. Sekhsaria Chairman 5 Yes

Non Executive, Independent
2. Mr. Paul Hugentobler Vice Chairman 5 Yes
Non Executive, Non
Independent
3. Mr. Markus Akermann Non-Executive, Non 1 No
(upto 27.03.2012) Independent
4. Mr. Bernard Fontana Non-Executive, Non 2 No
(w.e.f. 10.02.2012) Independent
5 Mr. M. L. Bhakta Non-Executive, Independent 5 Yes
6. Mr. Nasser Munjee Non-Executive, Independent 5 No
7. Mr. Rojendra Chitale Non-Executive, Independent 3 Yes
8 Mr. Shailesh Haribhakti Non-Executive, Independent 5 Yes
9 Dr. Omkar Goswami Non-Executive, Independent 5 No
10. Mr. Naresh Chandra Non-Executive, Independent 4 No
11 Mr. Haigreve Khaitan Non Executive, Independent 2 NA
(w.e.f. 27.07.2012)

12. Mr. B.L. Taparia Non Executive, Non 2 NA
(w.e.f. 01.09.2012) Independent

13. Mr. Onne van der Weijde Managing Director, 5 Yes

Non Independent

Other Directorships etc.:

The details of the Directorships, Chairmanships and the Committee memberships in other Companies
(excluding Private Limited Companies, Foreign Companies and section 25 Companies) held by the Directors
as on 31 December, 2012, are given below:-

S, Name of the Directors No. of other  Chairman of Committee Member Chairman

No. Directorships  the Board Mandatory Non- of the
Mandatory Committee

(Mandatory)

1. Mr. N. S. Sekhsaria 2 1 - 1 -

2. Mr. Paul Hugentobler 3 2 2 1

3 Mr. Bernard Fontana 1 - -

4, Mr. M. L. Bhakta 5 5 2 -

5. Mr. Nasser Munjee 14 3 9 23 5

6. Mr. Rajendra P. Chitale 7 - 4 3 2

7. Mr. Shailesh V. Haribhakfi 12 2 9 4

8. Dr. Omkar Goswami 10 10 13 4

9. Mr. Naresh Chandra 11 9 1

10. Mr. B.L. Taparia 1 - -

11.  Mr. Haigreve Khaitan 14 - 10 7

12, Mr. Onne van der Weijde 1 -

The number of Directorships, Chairmanships and Committee memberships of each Director is in compliance
with the relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 1956 and the Listing Agreement.
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Compensation and Remuneration:
Remuneration to Directors:

@)

(o)

The remuneration of the Managing Director is decided based on the Company’s size, industry practice,
current frend and the overall performance of the Company. The Nomination and Remuneration
Committee of Directors submits its recommendation to the Board, which after consideration approves
the remuneration payable to the Managing Director (which also includes the annual increments and
performance bonus) within the overall limits prescribed under the Companies Act, 1956. Approval of the
shareholders is obtained wherever required.

The Non-Executive Directors are paid sitting fees of ¥ 20,000/- per meeting for aftending the Board and
Audit Committee meetings and % 10,000/- per meeting for attending other committee meetings, except
Share Transfer Committee, for which no sitting fees is paid.

In addition to the sitting fees, the Company also pays commission 1o the Non-executive Directors for their
overall engagement and contribution for the Company’s business. The Commission is paid on a uniform
basis to reinforce the principle of collective responsibility. Accordingly, the Company has provided for
payment of commission of ¥ 13 lacs to each of the Non-Executive Directors who were in office for the
whole of the financial year 2012 and on pro-rata basis to those who were in office for part of the year.
Considering the accountability and the complexities of issues handled by the Audit and Compliance
Committees respectively, the Company has provided additional commission of ¥ 9 lacs for each of
the Non-Executive Member Directors of the Audit Committee and Compliance Committee who were
in office for the whole of the financial year 2012 and on pro-rata basis to those who were in office for
part of the year. The maximum commission payable to each Non-Executive Director has however been
capped at ¥ 22 lacs per Director. Apart from sitting fees and commission, Mr. B.L. Taparia, shall also be
paid a remuneration of % 18 lacs for the advisory services rendered by him to the Company for the period
November — December, 2012. The remuneration shall be paid upon receipt of the Central Government’s
approval, for which necessary application has been filed as required under the Companies Act, 1956.

None of the Directors hold any convertible instruments.

The details of remuneration, sitting fees, performance bonus, and commission paid to each of the
Directors during the year ended on 31 December, 2012 are given below:-

S, Name of the Directors Remuneration Sitting Fees Commission No. of shares
No. ®) ) ®) held
1. Mr. N. S. Sekhsaria Nil 1,40,000 13,00,000 1,000
2. Mr. Markus Akermann Nil 20,000 3.09.016 Nil
3. Mr. Bernard Fontana Nil 40,000 11,567,923 Nil
4, Mr. Paul Hugentobler Nil 3.20,000 22,00,000 Nil
5. Mr. M. L. Bhakta Nil 4,40,000 22,00,000 2,25,000
6. Mr. Nasser Munjee Nil 1,40,000 13,00,000 Nil
7. Mr. Rajendra P. Chitale Nil 2,90,000 22,00,000 Nil
8. Mr. Shailesh Haribhakti Nil 4,00,000 22,00,000 Nil
9. Dr. Omkar Goswami Nil 1,50,000 22,00,000 Nil
10.  Mr. Naresh Chandra Nil 1,20,000 22,00,000 Nil
11, Mr. Haigreve Khaitan Nil 40,000 5,61,202
12, Mr. B.L. Taparia 18,00,000 70,000 7,34,251 3.42,250
13. M. Onne van der Weijde, 3,69,75,898 - - Nil

Managing Director*

TOTAL 3.87,75,898 21,70,000 1,85,62,392 5,68,250

*Appointment of Managing Director is govemed by a service contract for a period of 5 years and the
notice period of 3 months.

Note: Remuneration of Managing Director includes basic salary, performance bonus, allowances,
contribution to provident, superannuation and gratuity funds and perquisites (including monetary value of
taxable perquisites) etc. and excludes shares worth ¥ 0.18 Crore (31.12.2011 - 0.13 Crore) allotted as a
non-monetary perquisite by Holcim Ltd., Switzerland, the ultimate Holding Company.

Code of Conduct:
The Board of Directors has laid down a Code of Conduct for Business and Ethics (the Code) for all the Board

members and all the employees in the management grade of the Company. The Code covers amongst

other things the Company’s commitment to honest & ethical personal conduct, fair competition, corporate
social responsibility, sustainable environment, health & safety, transparency and compliance of laws &
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regulations etc. The Company believes in “Zero Tolerance” to bribery and corruption in any form and in line
with our govermnance philosophy of doing business in most ethical and transparent manner, the Board has laid
down an Anti Bribery and Corruption Directives, which is embedded to the Code. The Code of Conduct is
posted on the website of the Company.

All the Board members and senior management personnel have confirmed compliance with the code. A
declaration to that effect signed by the Managing Director is attached and forms part of the Annual Report of
the Company.

Prevention of Insider Trading Code:

As per SEBI (Prevention of Insider Trading) Regulation, 1992, the Company has adopted a Code of Conduct for
Prevention of Insider Trading. All the Directors, employees at senior management level and other employees
who could have access 1o the unpublished price sensitive information of the Company are governed by this
code. The Company has appointed Mr. Rajiv Gandhi, Company Secretary as Compliance Officer who is
responsible for setting forth procedures and implementation of the code for frading in Company’s securities.
During the year under review there has been due compliance with the said code.

3. Audit Committee

3.1

3.2

3.3

Composition:-
The Audit Committee comprises of the following members

1. Mr. Shailesh Haribhaki - Chairman
2 Mr. M. L. Bhakta - Member
3. Mr. Paul Hugentobler - Member
4 Mr. Rajendra P. Chitale - Member

Mr. Rajiv Gandhi, Company Secretary acts as secretary to the committee. All the members of the Audit
Committee are Non-Executive Directors and except Mr. Paul Hugentobler, all are Independent Directors. They
possess sound knowledge on accounts, audit, finance, taxation, intfernal controls etc.

Invitees / Participants:-
1. The Managing Director and Mr. B.L. Taparia are the permanent invitees to all Audit Committee meetings.

2. Head of Infernal Audit department attends all the Audit Committee Meetings as far as possible and briefs
the Committee on all the points covered in the Internal Audit Report as well as the other issues that come
up during discussions.

3. The representatives of the Statutory Auditors have aftended all the Audit Committee meetings held during
the year.

4. The representatives of the Cost Auditors have attended 1 Audit Committee Meeting when the Cost Audit
Report was discussed.

5. The CEO, the Business Heads and the CFO also aftend Committee meetings o provide inputs on issues
relating fo internal audit findings, internal controls, accounts, taxation, risk management etc.

6. The Committee also invites the representatives of Holcim group’s internal audit department to attend
the Audit Committee meetings for getting their valuable support and guidance on the infermnational best
practices in inferal audit and strengthening of interal controls.

Meetings:-

The Audit Committee during the year ended on 31 December, 2012 had 7 meetings. The attendance of
each Committee member was as under:-

Sr. No. Name of the Directors No. of Meetings attended
1. Mr. Shailesh Haribhaki 7
2. Mr. M. L. Bhakta 7
3. Mr. Rajendra P. Chitale 6
4, Mr. Paul Hugentobler 6

Mr. Shailesh Haribhakti, the Chairman of the Audit Committee was present at the last Annual General Meeting
to answer the shareholders queries.
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Private Meetings:-

In order to get the inputs and opinions of the Statutory Auditors and the Internal Auditors, the Committee also
held one separate one-to-one meeting during the year with the Statutory Auditor and Head of Interal Audit
department without the presence of the Managing Director and management representatives.

Terms of Reference:-

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are as per the guidelines set out in the listing agreement
with the stock exchanges read with section 292A of the Companies Act. These broadly include (i) approval
of annual infernal audit plan, (ii) review of financial reporting systems, (i) review of intfernal control systems,
(iv) discussions on quarterly, half yearly and annual financial results, (v) inferaction with statutory, infernal & cost
auditors, (vi) recommendation for appointment of statutory & cost auditors and their remuneration and (vii) the
risk management framework concerning the critical operations of the Company.

In addition fo the above, the Audit Committee also reviews the following:
(@) Management’s Discussions and Analysis of Company'’s operations,
(b) Periodical Internal Audit Reports,

(c) Fraud Risk Management Committee’s Reports,

(d) Findings of any special investigations caried out either by the Internal Auditors or by the external
investigating agencies,

(e) Letters of Statutory Auditors 1o management on internal control weakness, if any,

()  Appointment, removal and terms of remuneration of Chief Internal Auditor, Statutory Auditor and the Cost
Auditor,

(g) Significant related party fransactions,
(h) Quarterly and annual financial statements including investments made by the subsidiary companies.

(i) Major non routine transactions recorded in the financial statements involving exercise of judgment by the
management.

Other Matters:-

1. The Audit Committee has framed its Charter for the purpose of effective compliance of clause 49 of the
listing agreement. The Charter is reviewed by the Committee annually and necessary amendments as
may be required are made in it from time to time.

2. Inview of large number of laws & regulations applicable to the Company’s business, their complexities and
the time required for monitoring the compliances, the task of monitoring and review of legal & regulatory
compliances has been assigned to a separate committee of directors called as the “Compliance
Committee” under the chairmanship of Mr. Shailesh Haribhakti, Independent Director. The composition
and the scope / function of Compliance Committee are given under point no. 4 of this report.

Compliance Committee

With the rapid growth of business and its complexities coupled with increasing regulatory compliances, the Board felt
it necessary to have zero non compliance regime for sustainable business operations. With this object, a structured
mechanism for ensuring full compliance of various statutes, rules & regulations has been put in place and a separate
Committee of Directors by the name "Compliance Committee” has been constituted by the Board. The Committee
consists of the members as stated below. During the year 2012 the Committee held 7 meetings which were attended
by the memlbers as under:-

Sr. No. Name of the Directors Category No. of Meetings attended
1. Mr. Shailesh Haribhakti, Chairman Independent Director 7
2 Dr. Omkar Goswami Independent Director 5
3 Mr. Naresh Chandra Independent Director 4
4. Mr. Paul Hugentobler Non Independent Director 5
5 Mr. B.L. Taparia Non Independent Director 1
(wef 01.11.2012)
6. Mr. Onne van der Weijde Managing Director 7

The CEO, the CFO and the Head of Legal department are the Permanent Invitees to all the Compliance Committee
meetings. Company Secretary acts as the Secretary to the Committee.
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The terms of reference of the Committee are to:

a. periodically review the Legal Compliance Audit report of various Units / Department submitted by the Corporate
Legal Department;

suggest taking necessary corrective actions for non compliance, if any;

specifically review and confirm that all the requirements of Competition Law are fully complied with;
review the significant amendments in the laws, rules & regulations;

review the significant legal cases filed by and against the Company;

™0 Q0 00

review the judgments of various court cases not involving the Company as a litigant but having material
impact on the Company’s operations;

g. periodically review the Code of Business Conduct & Ethics and Code of Conduct for prevention of Insider
Trading.

The Legal and Corporate Secretarial departments provides ‘oackbone’ support to all the business segments in timely
compliance of all the applicable laws, rules & regulations by putting in place the robust compliance mechanism with
adequate checks & balances and thus facilitates the management in practicing the highest standards of Corporate
Governance.

The Compliance Committee on its part gives valuable guidance to ensure full compliance of all significant laws, rules
& regulations and policies as may be applicable to the Company.

Nomination and Remuneration Committee (formerly Compensation and Remuneration Committee)

The Nomination & Remuneration Committee comprises of the memibers as stated below. The Committee during the
year ended on 31¢ December, 2012 had 4 meetings. The atfendance of the members was as under:-

Sr. No. Name of the Directors Category No. of Meetings attended
1. Mr. M. L. Bhakta, Chairman Independent Director 4
2. Mr. N. S. Sekhsaria Independent Director 4
3. Mr. Nasser Munjee Independent Director 3
4, Mr. Shailesh Haribhakti Independent Director 4
5. Mr. Paul Hugentobler Non Independent Director 4

The Managing Director and the CEO are the permanent invitees to all the Nomination & Remuneration Committee
meetings. Company Secretary acts as the Secretary to the Committee.

The Committee is empowered -

(@) to recommmend to the Board on the appointment of Non-executive Directors to fill vacancy caused due to
resignation or refirement.

(o) to recommmend 1o the Board on the appointment and the terms & conditions of appointment (including
remuneration) of the Managing Director and the CEO.

(©) to recommend fo the Board on payment of performance bonus and annual increment to the Managing
Director and the CEQO.

(d) to approve the appointment (based on the recommendation of the Managing Director / the CEO) of the
CFO, the Business Heads and Company Secretary.

(e) to approve the payment of performance bonus and annual increment 1o the members of the Executive
Committee and the Company Secretary (based on the recommendation of the Managing Director / the
CEQ).

The remuneration (including the performance bonus and annual increment) is decided on the basis of
following broad criteria:-

i) industry frend

i) remuneration package in other comparable corporates
i) job responsibilities and individual’s KRAs

iv) Company’s performance and individual’s performance

(f) to approve and recommend the Employee Stock Option Scheme for the approval of the Shareholders. Once
approved by the Shareholders, the Committee decides the grant of stock options to the Managing Director
and other EXCO members and based on the recommmendation of Corporate HR and EXCO, the committee
decides the eligibility of other employees and grant options to them.

(@) tosupervise the implementation of the Employee Stock Option Scheme.
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Share allotment and Investors’ Grievances Committee

This Committee looks into allotment of shares kept in abeyance, allotment of shares on exercise of the stock options by
the employees and allotment of privately placed preference shares, debentures and bonds, if any. The Committee
is also responsible for the satisfactory redressal of investors’ complaints and recommends measures for overall
improvement in the quality of investor services.

The Committee is headed by Mr. M. L. Bhakta, Independent Director and consists of the memibers as stated below.
During the year ended on 31¢ December, 2012, this Committee had 12 meetings which were attended by the
members as under:-

Sr. No. Name of the Directors Category No. of Meetings attended
1 Mr. M. L. Bhakta, Chairman Independent Director 11
2. Mr. Rojendra Chitale Independent Director 11
3 Mr. B.L. Taparia Non - Independent Director 2
4. Mr. Onne van der Weijde Managing Director 9

Mr. Rajiv Gandhi, Company Secretary is designated as the “*Compliance Officer” who oversees the redressal of the
investors’ grievances.

The detailed particulars of investors’ complaints handled by the Company and its Registrar & Share Transfer Agent
during the year are as under:

Nature of Compilaints Opening Received Resolved Pending
During the Year Resolution
Non Receipt of Bonus Shares NIL NIL NIL NIL
Non Receipt of Transferred Shares NIL NIL NIL NIL
Non Receipt of Dividend NIL NIL NIL NIL
Non Receipt of Revalidated Dividend NIL NIL NIL NIL
Warrants
Letters from SEBI / Stock Exchanges, Ministry NIL 22 22 NIL
of Corporate Affairs etc.,
Demat Queries NIL NIL NIL NIL
Miscellaneous Complaints NIL NIL NIL NIL
TOTAL NIL 22 22 NIL

None of the complaints is pending for a period exceeding 30 days. All the requests for transfer of shares have been
processed on time and there are no transfers pending for more than 15 days.

Over and above the aforesaid complaints, the Company and its Registrar & Share Transfer Agent have received more
than 10000 letters / queries / requests on various matters such as change of address, change of bank particulars, ECS
mandate, nomination request efc. and we are pleased to report that except for requests received during the year
end which are under process, all other queries / requests have been replied on time.

Other Committees of Directors

In addition o the above referred Committees which are mandatory under the Companies Act, the Listing Agreement
and under the SEBI Guidelines, the Board of Directors has constituted the following Committees of Directors to look into
various business matters :-

(A) Capex Committee

The large CAPEX needs critical evaluation of all the aspect of the projects. The detailed engineering, the
profile of equipment suppliers, cost estimates & contingencies, schedule of implementation and safety &
security of people are some of the critical areas where focused appraisal is required atf the highest level. In
view of the same, a separate CAPEX Committee of Directors was formed w.e.f 18 May 2010. The Committee
comyprises of Mr. Paul Hugentobler as Chairman, Mr. Nasser Munjee and Mr. Rajendra P Chitale as the Members.
Mr. Onne van der Weijde, Managing Director and Mr. M.L. Narula (former Managing Director of ACC Ltd.) are
the permanent invitees for all the Committee meetings.

The Roles and Responsibilities of the Committee are as follows:

(@) To approve and recommend to the Board, all CAPEX proposals for green field plants, new kilns or power
plants;

(b) To crifically evaluate all the aspect of techno commercial feasibility and financial viability of these
projects.

The Committee had one meeting during the year which was attended by all the members except
Mr. Rojendra P Chitale.
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(B) Management Committee

The Management Committee is formed to authorize grant of Power of Attorney to executives, 1o approve various
facilities as and when granted by the Banks and execution of documents for these facilities. Five committee
meetings were held during the year 2012. The committee comprises of Mr. M.L. Bhakta, Chairman, Mr. Shailesh
Haribhakti and the Managing Director as the Members.

(C) Share Transfer Committee

Share Transfer Committee regularly approves transfer & transmission of shares / debentures / bonds, issue of
duplicate / re-materialized shares and consolidation & splitting of certificates etc. The committee comprises of
the Managing Director as Chairman, Mr. Shailesh Haribhakti, Mr. Rojendra P Chitale and Mr. B.L. Taparia as the
Members.

Whistle Blower Policy

With the rapid expansion of business in terms of volume, value and geography, various risks associated with the business
have also increased considerably. One such risk identified is the risk of fraud & misconduct. The Audit Committee
is committed to ensure fraud free work environment and to this end the Committee has laid down a Fraud Risk
Management Policy providing a platform to all the employee, vendors and customers to report any suspected or
confirmed incident of fraud / misconduct through any of the following reporting protocols:

e E-mail . acl@ethicalview.com
o National Toll Free Phone Line : 18002091005
e Fax Number o 022 - 66459796

o Written Communicationto : PO. Box No. 25, HO, Pune — 411 001

In order to instil more confidence amongst Whistleblowers, the management of the above referred reporting protocols
are managed by an independent agency.

This policy is applicable to all the directors, employees, vendors and customers of the Company and contains
features similar to the Whistle Blower Policy.

The policy is also posted on the website of the Company.
The main objectives of the policy are as under:

(i) To protect the brand, reputation and assets of the Company from loss or damage, resulting from suspected or
confirmed incidents of fraud / misconduct.

(i) To provide guidance to the employees, vendors and customers on reporting any suspicious activity and
handling critical information and evidence.

(iy  To provide healthy and fraud free work culture.

For the effective implementation of the policy, the Audit Committee has constituted a Fraud Risk Management
Committee (FRMC) of very senior executives / director comprising of:

(i) Mr. B. L. Taparia, Non - Executive Director — Chairman
(ii) Mr. Onne van der Weijde (MD) - Member

(i)~ Mr. R R. Darak, President (Special Projects) — Member
(iv)  Mr A, J. Pandya, Chief Infernal Auditor - Member

Mr. Rajiv Gandhi, Company Secretary acts as the Response Manager and Secretary to the Committee.
The FRMC is responsible for the following:

(i) implementation of the policy and spreading awareness amongst employees;

(i) review all reported cases of suspected fraud / misconduct;

(iiy  order investigation of any case either through internal audit department or through external investigating
agencies or experts;

(iv) recommend to the management for taking appropriate actions such as disciplinary action, fermination of
service, changes in policies & procedure and review of internal control systems;

(v)  annual review of the policy.

The FRMC functions independently and reports directly to the Audit Committee.
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9.

10.

11.

12.

General Body Meetings

(@

(ii)

(iii)

Annual General Meeting (AGM):

The Company convenes Annual General Meeting generally within four months of the close of the Corporate
Financial Year. The details of Annual General Meetings held in last 3 years are as under:-

Year Day, Date and Time Venue Whether Special
Resolution passed

2009 27™ AGM held on Monday, 5™ April, 2010 at 10.00 a.m. Registered Office Yes

2010 28" AGM held on Monday, 11" April,2011 af 10.00 a.m. Registered Office Yes

2011 29" AGM held on Tuesday, 27" March,2012 at 10.00 a.m. Registered Office Yes

Extra Ordinary General Meetings:

In addition to Annual General Meeting, the Company holds General Meetings of the shareholders as and when
need arises. There was no such meeting held during the year.

Postal Ballot:

No special resolution requiring approval by the postal ballot was either proposed last year or is being proposed
for at the ensuing AGM.

Disclosures

(0

(i)

(i)
(V)
v
(Vi)

(i)

During the year under review, the Company sought legal and professional advices on need basis from
M/s. Kanga & Company, Advocates & Solicitors, a firm in which Mr. M. L. Bhakta, an Independent Director of the
Company, is a partner and paid a sum of ¥ 1.78 Lacs (net of TDS) as fees. As the amount paid does not form
a significant portion of M/s Kanga & Company’s total revenue and thus not considered material o impinge
upon the independence of Mr. Bhakta. Accordingly, there are no pecuniary relationships or transactions of
Non-Executive Independent Directors vis-a-vis the Company which has potential conflict with the interests of the
Company af large.

There are no materially significant fransactions with the related parties viz. Promoters, Directors or the
Management, their Subsidiaries or relatives that had potential conflict with the Company’s interest. Suitable
disclosure as required by the Accounting Standard (AS 18) has been made in the Annual Report.

The Company has followed all relevant Accounting Standards notified by the Companies (Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2006 while preparing Financial Statements.

No penalties or strictures have been imposed on the Company by Stock Exchange or SEBI or any statutory
authority on any matter related to capital markets during the last three years.

The Company has in place a mechanism to inform the Board members about the Risk assessment and mitigation
plans and periodical reviews to ensure that the critical risks are controlled by the executive management.

The Company does not have material non-listed subsidiary companies as defined in Clause 49 of the Listing
Agreement.

The Independent Directors have confimed that they meet the criteria of Independence’ as stipulated under
Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement.

CEO / CFO Certification

The MD, Chief Executive Officer (CEO) and Chief Financial Officer (CFO) have issued certificate pursuant to the
provisions of Clause 49 of the listing agreement certifying that the financial statements do not contain any materially
untrue statement and these statements represent a true and fair view of the Company’s affairs. The said certificate is
annexed and forms part of the Annual Report.

Non-mandatory requirements under Clause 49 of Listing Agreement

The status of compliance with non-mandatory recommendations of the Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement with Stock
Exchanges is provided below:

12.1

12.2

12.3

12.4

12.5

12.6

Non-Executive Chairman’s Office: The Company now does not maintain a separate office for the Chairman as
there is no need felt for this.

Tenure of Independent Directors: No maximum tenure for Independent Directors has been specifically
determined.

Remuneration Committee: The Board has set up a Nomination & Remuneration Committee for which details
have been provided in this report under point no. 5.

Shareholders’ Rights: As the quarterly and half yearly financial performance are published in the news papers
and are also posted on the Companies website, the same are not being sent to the shareholders.

Audit Qualifications: The Company’s financial statement for the year 2012 does not contain any audit
qualification.

Training of Board Members: The Board members are well experienced to perform their role best suited to
the business. The Board members are fully updated on all the new initiatives proposed by the company,
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developments in the domestic / global corporate and industry scenario, changes in the statutes / legislation
& economic environment and critical business issues. On the matters of specialized nature, the Company
engages outside experts / consultants for presentation and discussion with the Board members.

12.7 Mechanism for evaluation of Non-Executive Directors: At present there is no structured mechanism for evaluation
of Non-Executive Directors. However, collectively the Board provides direction and exercise overall supervision to
ensure that the Company is managed in a manner that fulfils stakeholders” expectations.

12.8 Whistle Blower Policy: The Audit Committee has laid down a Whistle Blower Policy in the name of Fraud Risk
Management Policy, the details of which have been given in point no. 8 above.

Means of Communication

The quarterly, half-yearly and yearly financial results of the Company are sent to the Stock Exchanges immediately
after these are approved by the Board. These are widely published in The Economic Times, The Financial Express,
Jaihind and other newspapers.

These results are simultaneously posted on the website of the Company at www.ambujacement.com

The official press releases and presentation made to Institutional Investors / Analysts, if any, are also available on the
Company’s website,

General Shareholders’ Information
14.1 Registered Office :

P O. Ambujanagar, Taluka Kodinar, District Junagadh, Gujarat - 362 715.
14.2 Address for Correspondence:

(@) Corporate Office: Elegant Business Park, MIDC Cross Road ‘B, Off Andheri-Kurla Road, Andheri (East),
Mumbai-400 059. Phone No: 022 — 40667000 / 66167000.

(b)  Exclusive e-mail id for Investor Grievances: Pursuant to Clause 47(f) of the Listing Agreement, the following
e-mail ID has been designated for communicating investors’ grievances:-

shares@ambujacement.com
14.3 Plant Locations :
Integrated Cement Plants
i.  Ambujanagar, Taluka Kodinar, District Junagadh, Gujarat.
i. ~Darlaghat, District Solan, Himachal Pradesh.
ii. ~ Maratha Cement Works, Dist. Chandrapur, Maharashtra,
iv.  Rabriyawas, Dist. Pali, Rojasthan.
v.  Bhatapara, Dist. Raipur, Chhattisgarh.
Grinding Stations
i.  Roopnagar, Punjab.
ii. Bathinda, Punjab.
ii. -~ Sankrail, Dist. Howrah, West Bengal.
iv.  Farakka, Dist. Murshidabad, West Bengal.
v.  Roorkee, Dist. Haridwar, Uttaranchal.
vi. Dadri, Dist Gautam Budh Nagar, Uttar Pradesh.
vii. Nalagarh, Dist. Solan Himachal Pradesh.
vii. Magdalla, Dist. Surat, Gujarat.

Bulk Cement Terminals
i.  Muldwarka, District Junagadh, Gujarat.
i. Panvel, District Raigad, Maharashtra.
i. Cochin, Kerala.
14.4 Share Transfer Agents:
Sharepro Services (India) Pvt. Ltd.,
13AB Samhita Warehousing Complex, 2nd Floor, Near Saki Naka Telephone Exchange,
Andheri Kurla Road, Saki Naka, Andheri (East), Mumbai - 400 072
Tel. No.: (022) 67720300 / 67720400, Fax No.: (022) 28591568 / 28508927
E-mail - sharepro@shareproservices.com
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14.5

14.6

14.7

14.8

14.9

14.10

Annual General Meeting:
Day & Date : Thursday, 4™ April, 2013

Time

. 10.00 a.m.

Venue . Registered Office - PO. Ambujanagar, Taluka Kodinar, District Junagadh, Gujarat - 362 715.
Book Closure:

The Register of Members and the Share Transfer Books of the Company shall remain closed from Thursday
21 February, 2013 till Thursday 28™ February, 2013 (both days inclusive) for payment of final dividend.

Dividend Payment Date:
Dividend shall be paid to all the eligible shareholders from 9™ April, 2013 onwards.
Listing of Shares & Other Securities:

A.

Equity Shares
The equity shares are at present listed at the following Stock Exchanges:
Name of the Stock Exchanges Stock Code / Symbol

(i) Bombay Stock Exchange Ltd. 500425
Phiroze Jeejeebhoy Towers, Dalal Street,
Mumbai - 400 023.

(ii) National Stock Exchange of India Ltd. AMBUJACEM

Exchange Plaza, 5th Floor, Plot No. C/1, G Block,
Bandra-Kurla Complex, Bandra (East),
Mumbai - 400 051.

Debentures
There are no outstanding debentures.
GDRs

The GDRs are listed under the EURO MTF Platform (Code:US02336R2004) of Luxembourg Stock Exchange,
Societe de la Bourse de Luxembourg, Avenue de la Porte Neuve L-2011 Luxembourg, B.R165.

ISIN Code for the Company’s equity share
INEO79A01024

Corporate Identity Number (CIN)
L26942GJ1981PLC0O04717

Listing Fees:

The Company has paid listing fees upto 31 March, 2013 to the Bombay Stock Exchange (BSE) and National
Stock Exchange of India Ltd. (NSE) where Company’s shares are listed.

Market Price Data:

The high / low market price of the shares during the year 2012 at the Bomlbay Stock Exchange and af National
Stock Exchange of India Ltd. were as under:-

Month Bombay Stock Exchange National Stock Exchange

High ) Low (}) High ) Low ()
January-12 163.95 145.65 164.40 145.55
February-12 182.00 156.55 182.00 156.70
March-12 175.75 1568.40 176.00 158.65
April-12 174.45 147.80 174.45 147.70
May-12 1563.60 135.60 1563.90 135.75
June-12 179.45 145.10 179.70 145.40
July-12 183.50 166.50 183.80 166.55
August-12 197.25 179.30 197.95 181.00
September-12 205.80 177.40 205.80 178.45
October-12 220.70 200.00 223.00 174.50
November-12 219.50 194.20 219.65 194.20
December-12 214.45 198.25 214.40 198.10
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14.11

14.12

14.13

14.14

14.15

Performance in comparison to broad based indices:

Ambuja Cement Vs BSE Sensex
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Distribution of Shareholding:
The shareholding distribution of the equity shares as on 315 December, 2012 is given below:-

No. of Equity Shares No. of Shareholders No. of Shares Percentage of
Shareholding
Less than 50 103786 2496861 0.16
5110100 28689 2530101 0.16
101 to 500 32205 8171107 0.53
501 to 1000 8471 6667909 0.43
1001 to 5000 16037 42550387 2.76
5001 to 10000 3212 23219473 1.51
10001 to 50000 1881 35204319 2.28
50001 to 100000 126 9196159 0.60
100001 to 500000 224 50055905 3.25
500001 & above 159 1362092215 88.32
TOTAL 194790 1542184436 100.00

Shareholding Pattern:
The shareholding of different categories of the shareholders as on 315 December, 2012 is given below:-

Category No. of Shares Percentage %
[ Foreign Promoters 780308553 50.60
Foreign Investors (including Flls) 444689043 28.84
Mutual Funds, Banks & Institution 146452261 9.49
[ ] OCBNRIs 15464163 1.00
I Body Corporates 8050636 0.52
GDR Holders 40117176 2.60
[ Others 107102604 6.95
TOTAL 1542184436 100.00

Dematerialisation of Shares:

About 98.24% of total equity share capital is held in dematerialised form with NSDL and CDSL as on
31¢ December, 2012,

Reconciliation of Share Capital Audit:

As stipulated by Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI), a qualified practicing Company Secretary
carries out the Share Capital Audit fo reconcile the fotal admitted capital with National Securities Depository
Limited (NSDL) and Central Depository Services (India) Limited (CDSL) and the total issued and listed capital.
This audit is carried out every quarter and the report is submitted to stock exchanges, NSDL and CDSL and is
also placed before the Board of Directors. No discrepancies were noticed during these audits.
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14.16

14.17

14.18

Outstanding GDRs or Warrants or any Convertible Instrument, conversion Dates and likely impact on

Equity:

(i)  The Company had issued Foreign Currency Convertible Bonds (FCCB) in the year 1993 and 2001. Out of
the total conversion of these bonds into GDRs, 40117176 GDRs are outstanding as on 31 December, 2012
which is listed on the Luxembourg Stock Exchange. The underlying shares representing the outstanding
GDRs have already been included in equity share capital. Therefore, there will be no further impact on
the equity share capital of the Company.

(i) The Company has granted stock options from fime to time in the past. At the same time, the Company
had also issued warrants which can be converted into equity shares. The outstanding position of these
convertible instruments as on 315 December, 2012 and their likely impact on the equity share capital is

as under:-
S, Issue Particulars Conversion Likely impact on full conversion
No. rate Share Capital ~ Share Premium

[ Per Share) R in crores) R in crores)

A. Employee Stock Options
(i) 16300 Outstanding options granted under 82.00 0.00 0.13

ESOS 2007 (SAP CORE TEAM) one stock
option convertible into 1 equity share upto
30™M June, 2013
(i) 1291750 Outstanding options granted 82.00 0.26 10.33
under ESOS 2008, one stock option
convertible info 1 equity share upto 30"
June, 2013
(i) 47350 Outstanding options granted under 96.00 0.01 0.45
ESOS 2008 (SAP CORE TEAM) one stock
option convertible into 1 equity share upto
18™ June, 2014
(iv) 2750225 Outstanding options granted 96.00 0.55 25.85
under ESOS 2009, one stock option
convertible into 1 equity share upto 18™M
June, 2014
(v) 6059400 Outstanding options granted 119.00 1.21 70.89
under ESOS 2010, one stock option
convertible into 1 equity share upto 21¢
April, 2015
SUB-TOTAL (A) 2.03 107.65

B. Rights entitlement kept in abeyance out of the
Rights Issue of equity shares and warrants to
equity shareholders made in the year 1992

(i) 139830 Right shares 6.66* 0.03 0.07
(i) 186690 warrants 7.50* 0.04 0.10
SUB-TOTAL (B) 0.07 0.17
GRAND TOTAL (A+B) 2.10 107.82

(*) conversion price has been arived after appropriate adjustment of split and bonus issues.

(i) The diluted equity share capital of the Company upon conversion of all the outstanding convertible
instruments will become % 310.54 crores.

Share Transfer System:

Shares sent for fransfer in physical form are registered and retumned by our Registrars and Share Transfer Agents
in about 15 days of receipt of the documents, provided the documents are found to be in order. Shares
under objection are returned within two weeks. The Share Transfer Committee considers the transfer proposals
generally on a weekly basis.

Mandatory requirement of PAN:
SEBI vide its circular dated 7™ January, 2010 has made it mandatory to fumish PAN copy in the following cases:

(i) Deletion of name of deceased shareholder(s), where the shares are held in the name of two or more
shareholders;
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(i) Transmission of shares to the legal heir(s), where deceased shareholder was the sole holder.

(iy  Transposition of shares — in case of change in the order of names in which physical shares are held jointly
in the names of two or more shareholders.

14.19 Financial Calendar 2013:

First quarterly results © May 2013
Second quarterly / Half yearly results o July 2013
Third quarterly results . October 2013
Annual results for the year ending on 31 December, 2013 . February 2014

Annual General Meeting for the year ending on 31 December, 2013 :  April 2014

14.20 Dividend Policy:

The first issue of shares was made by the Company in the year 1985 at % 10/- per share. Company is paying
dividend from its very first full year of operation. From a modest dividend of 11% in 1987-88, the Company has
been increasing dividend almost every year. This year, the Board has recornmended total dividend of 180%
% 3.60 per share) including 70% (% 1.40 per share) paid as interim dividend. As a future policy for payment of
dividend, Company shall endeavour to follow a pay-out ratio of about 35% in the ordinary circumstances.

14.21 Dividend history for the last 5 years is as under:

Financial year Dividend Dividend Interim Dividend Final Dividend Total Dividend  Dividend Amt.

Rate (%) Rate (%) Rate (%) % in Crores)
2007 Inferim Final 125 50 175 532.64
2008 Interim Final 60 50 110 334.96
2009 Interim Final 60 60 120 365.59
2010 Interim Final 60 70 130 397.22
2011 Inferim Final 70 90 160 490.68

15. Subisidiary Companies

There is no material non listed Indian subsidiary Company requiring appointment of Independent Director of the
Company on the Board of Directors of the subsidiary Company. The requirements of the Clause 49 of the Listing
Agreement with regard to subsidiary companies have been complied with.

Auditors’ Certificate

To,
The Members of Ambuja Cements Limited

We have examined the compliance of conditions of corporate governance by Ambuja Cements Limited, (‘the Company’),
for the year ended on December 31, 2012, as stipulated in clause 49 of the Listing Agreement of the said Company with
stock exchanges.

The compliance of conditions of corporate governance is the responsibility of the management. Our examination was limited
to procedures and implementation thereof, adopted by the Company for ensuring the compliance of the conditions of
the Corporate Govermnance. It is neither an audit nor an expression of opinion on the financial statements of the Company.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given 1o us, we certify that the Company
has complied with the conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in the above mentioned Listing Agreement.

We further state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor the efficiency or
effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

For S. R. BATLIBOI & CO.
Firm registration number: 301003E
Chartered Accountants

per Ravi Bansal
Partner
Membership No.: 49365

Place: Mumbai
Date: 7 February 2013
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Declaration Regarding Code of Conduct

| hereby declare that all the Directors and Senior Management Personnel have confirmed compliance with the Code of
Conduct as adopted by the Company.

Onne van der Weijde
Managing Director

Mumbai, February 6, 2013

MD / CEO / CFO Certification

The Board of Directors
Ambuja Cements Ltd.

We have reviewed the financial statements, read with the cash flow statement of Ambuja Cements Ltd. for the year ended
31 December, 2012 and that to the best of our knowledge and belief, we state that;

()

(o)

()

S}

(i) these statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact or contain statements
that may be misleading;

(i) these statements present a true and fair view of the Company’s affairs and are in compliance with current
accounting standards, applicable laws and regulations.

there are, to the best of our knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the Company during the year
which are fraudulent, illegal or in violation of the Company’s code of conduct.

we accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls for financial reporting. We have evaluated
the effectiveness of internal control systems of the Company pertaining to financial reporting and have disclosed to
the Auditors and the Audit Committee, deficiencies in the design or operation of such internal controls, if any, of which
we are aware and steps taken or proposed to be taken for rectifying these deficiencies.

we have indicated to the Auditors and the Audit Committee:
(i) significant changes, if any, in the infemal control over financial reporting during the year.

(i) significant changes, if any, in accounting policies made during the year and that the same have been disclosed
in the notes fo the financial statements; and

(i) instances of significant fraud of which we have become aware and the involvement therein, if any, of the
management or an employee having a significant role in the Company’s internal control system over financial
reporting.

Yours sincerely,

Sanjeev Churiwala Ajay Kapur Onne van der Weijde
Chief Financial Officer CEO Managing Director

Mumbai, February 7, 2013
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Business Responsibility Report for the year 2012

In terms of clause 55 of the Listing Agreement

Now a days, the business enterprises are increasingly seen as critical components of social system and they are considered
accountable not merely to their shareholders from a revenue and profitability perspective but also to the larger society which is
also its stakeholder. Hence, adoption of responsible business practices in the interest of the social set-up and the environment are
as vital as their financial and operational performance. This is all the more relevant for listed entities which, considering the fact that
they having accessed funds from the public, have an element of public interest involved, and are obligated to make exhaustive
continuous disclosures on a regular basis.

The initiatives taken by the Company from an environment, social and govemance perspectives are given formart as under:-

SECTION A: GENERAL INFORMATION ABOUT THE COMPANY

Corporate Identity Number (CIN) of the Company: L26942GJ1981PLC004717

Name of the Company: AMBUJA CEMENTS LIMITED

Registered address: PO. Ambujanagar, Taluka Kodinar, District Junagadh, Gujarat- 362715
Website: www.ambujocement.com

E-mail id: shares@ambujacement.com

Financial Year reported: 01.01.2012 0 31.12.2012

Sector(s) that the Company is engaged in (industrial activity code-wise):

NOOA~LD -

Group Class Sub-Class Description
269 2694 26942 Manufacture of Portland Cement

8. List three key products/services that the Company manufactures/provides (as in balance sheet):
The Company manufactures PORTLAND POZOLLANA CEMENT and ORDINARY PORTLAND CEMENT.
9. Total number of locations where business activity is undertaken by the Company
i Number of International Locations: NIL
i, Number of National Locations: 21 (including regional offices)
10.  Markets served by the Company —

LOCAL STATE NATIONAL INTERNATIONAL
v v v 4

SECTION B: FINANCIAL DETAILS OF THE COMPANY

1. Paid up Capital : ¥ 308.44 Crores

2. Total Tumover : % 9674.94 Crore

3. Total profit after taxes : ¥ 1297.06 Crore

4 Total Spending on Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) as percentage of Profit after tax (%) :

The Company carries its CSR activities through its dedicated CSR Arms, viz. Ambuja Cement Foundation and Ambuja Vidya
Niketan Trust.

During the Financial Year 2012, the Company has spent % 39.08 Crores on CSR activities. This amounts to 3.07% of Profit After
Taxes (PAT) of the Corporate Financial Year, 2012.

5. List of activities in which expenditure in 4 above has been incurred:-

Particulars Arr(m;) 'i"nmcsrzfm

Q. Education Development 9.30
b. Water Resource Development 6.99
C. Health Development 3.25
d.  Women Empowerment 0.39
e Infrastructure Development 8.39
f. Agro Based Activities 3.10
a. Establishment Activities 4.53
h. Donation & Other Miscellaneous Activities 3.13

TOTAL 39.08

SECTION C: OTHER DETAILS
1. Does the Company have any Subsidiary Company/ Companies?
Yes the Company has 6 Subsidiary Companies.
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2. Do the Subsidiary Company/Companies participate in the BR Initiatives of the parent company? If yes, then indicate
the number of such subsidiary company(s):

Out of six subsidiary companies, four companies do not carry any business operations. The business activities of the remaining
fwo subsidiary companies are not material in relation to the business activities of the Company.

3. Do any other entity/entities (e.g. suppliers, distributors etc.) that the Company does business with, participate in the BR
initiatives of the Company? If yes, then indicate the percentage of such entity/entities? [Less than 30%, 30-60%,More
than 60%]:

No other entities with whom the Company does business with viz suppliers, distributors etc. participate in the BR initiatives of

the Company.
SECTION D: BR INFORMATION
1. Details of Director/Directors responsible for BR

Q) Details of the Director/Directors responsible for implementation of the BR Policy/policies
. DIN Number; 00009181
. Name: Mr. Onne van der Weijde
. Designation: Managing Director

b) Details of BR head

Sr.No PARTICULARS DETAILS

DIN Number (if applicable) N.A.

Name Ajay Kapur

Designation Chief Executive Officer (CEO)
Telephone Number 022-40667000

5. E-mail id ajay.kapur@ambujacement.com

o

2. Principle-wise (as per NVGs) BR Policy/policies (Reply in Y/N)

Sr. QUESTIONS
No.

P
1
1 Do you have a policy / policies for.... Y
Y

2 Has the policy being formulated
in consultation with the relevant
stakeholders?

3 Does the policy conform to any Y Y - -] - Y -- Y -
national / interational standards? If
yes, specify?

4 Has the policy being approved by the Y Y -1 Y| - Y -- N -
Board? If yes, has it been signed by
MD/Owner/CEO/appropriate  Board
Director

5 Does the company have a specified Y Y -1 Y | - Y -- N -
commiftee of the Board/ Director/
Official to oversee the implementation
of the policy?

6 Indicate the link for the policy to be [www.ambu- |www.ambu- - | -] - |www.ambu- - [www.ambu- -
viewed online? jacement.  |jacement.com/ jocement.com/ jocement.com/
com policies_certifi- policies_certifi- policies_certifi-
cations.php, cations.php, cations.php,

7 Has the policy been formally Y Y -1 Y| - Y -- Y -
communicated to all relevant internal
and external stakeholders?

8 Does the company have in-house Y Y -1 Y| - Y -- Y -
structure to implement the policy/
policies.

9 Does the Company have a grievance Y Y -1 Y| - Y -- Y -
redressal mechanism relofed
fo the policy/policies to address
stakeholders’ grievances relafed to
the policy/policies?

10 |Hos the company caried out Y Y -1 Y| - Y - Y -
independent audit/evaluation of the
working of this policy by an infemal or
external agency?

< |[v©o

<|=<|d o
.
!
<|<|n-o
<|<|oo
<|<|o o
,
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2a.

3.

If answer to Sr. No. 1 against any principle, is ‘No’, please explain why:

sr. QUESTIONS PlP|P|P P pleplplp
No. 11234 5 61789

1. |The company has not understood the Principles |- |- |- |- - e e

2. |The company is not at a stage where it finds itself|-- - |- |-- - -~ v |- |-
in a position to formulate and implement the
policies on specified principles

3. |The company does not have financial or|-- |-- [-- |[-- -- e e N
manpower resources available for the task

4. [Itis planned to be done within next 6 months E EE E B - e

5. |ltis planned to be done within the next 1 year EER EER VI P -- N N e

6. |Any other reason (please specify) - |- |- |- |Durng the year, no case of N N e
human rights violation (viz.
incidences of child labour,
forced or compulsory labour,
overtime without pay efc.)
was reported.

Need for a written policy was not felt. Suitable
decision for a written policy will be taken at
appropriate time.

Governance related to BR

. Indicate the frequency with which the Board of Directors, Committee of the Board or CEO to assess the
BR performance of the Company. Within 3 months, 3-6 months, Annually, More than 1 year

The M.D. / CEO assesses periodically the BR performance of the Company.

. Does the Company publish a BR or a Sustainability Report? What is the hyperlink for viewing this report? How
frequently it is published?

The Company publishes its Sustainability Report on an Annual basis which is GRI G3 compliant A+ i.e. an intemnationally
accepted reporting framework which is also assured by an independent certifying agency and is available on the
website of the Company, www.ambujacement.com

SECTION E: PRINCIPLE-WISE PERFORMANCE
PRINCIPLE 1

Businesses should conduct and govern themselves with Ethics, Transparency and Accountability.

1.

Does the policy relating to ethics, bribery and corruption cover only the company? Yes/ No. Does it extend to the Group/
Joint Ventures/ Suppliers/Contractors/NGOs /Others?

The policy relating to ethics, bribery and corruption covers the Directors and Employees of the Company. The Fraud Risk
Management Policy (i.e. Whistleblower Policy) covers the Directors, Employees, Vendors and Customers of the Company. For
more details, please refer to the Corporate Governance Report.

The Company, similarly, has also laid down Anti Bribery and Corruption Directives, which is part of its Code of Business
Conduct and Ethics.

How many stakeholder complaints have been received in the past financial year and what percentage was satisfactorily
resolved by the management? If so, provide details thereof, in about 50 words or so.

The Company, during the year 2012 received 54 complaints under the escalation protocols of the Fraud Risk Management
Policy. Out of these 54 complaints, 33 complaints were resolved & the balance complaints are at various stages of review.

PRINCIPLE 2
Businesses should provide goods and services that are safe and Contribute to sustainability throughout their life cycle.

1.

List up to 3 of your products or services whose design has incorporated social or environmental concerns, risks and/or
opportunities.

The Company has fairly understood its obligations on social and environmental concems, risks and opportunities. Accordingly,
the Company has devised the manufacturing process of its product (Cement), in a manner taking care of social and
environment concerns.

The Company has deployed best in class fechnology and processes to manufacture Cement. The manufacturing process
involves use of 6 stage pre-heaters, vertical roller pre-grinder, and advanced technology clinker coolers which are most
energy efficient and technologically advanced as on date.

We also co-process plastic and other industrial & hazardous waste from different industries as alternative fuel. The Company
also co-processes biomass in its kiins and thermal power plants.
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2. For each such product, provide the following details in respect of resource use (energy, water, raw material etc.) per

unit of product (optional):

i. Reduction during sourcing/production/ distribution achieved since the previous year throughout the value chain?

The Company continuously strives its best to reduce the power/LDO Coal and other fuels consumed per unit of

cement produced. The details of reduction are as under:

Consumption per unit of Production Industry Norms | Current Year Previous Year
(Jan to Dec (Jan to Dec
2012) 2011)
Electricity(KWH/T of Cement) 100 80.9 82.6
LDO (Ltr/T of Clinker) N.A. 0.15 0.22
Coal and other Fuels (K.Cal/Kg of Clinker) 800 736 739

ii. Reduction during usage by consumers (energy, water) has been achieved since the previous year?

The details of the reduction during usage by consumers (energy, water) achieved since the previous year are not
available with the Company.

Does the company have procedures in place for sustainable sourcing (including transportation)?

All the inputs, except where the Company does not have any control, are sourced sustainably. The Company has a
procedure in place for sustainable sourcing of energy, water including transportation. Aimost all the inputs are sourced on a
sustainable basis. The Company has long term Leases/ Agreement for sourcing limestone and gypsum and has developed
Alternate Fuel and Raw materials (AFR) fo reduce coal and fuel consumption and is increasing the usage of AFR every year.

The Company has established its own Bulk Cement Terminals at strategic locations on the western coast and owns a fleet
of specialised Bulk Cement Carriers for transportation of cement by sea route as a sustainable source of transportation of
Cement.

Has the company taken any steps to procure goods and services from local & small producers, including communities
surrounding their place of work?

The Company encourages procurement of goods and services from local and small producers including Communities
surrounding the place of its plant locations.

Does the company have a mechanism to recycle products and waste?

We have fly ash generated as waste from our captive power plants which is used in our cement production. The entire fly ash
generated [100%] is utilised to produce Porfland Pozzolana Cement (PPC).

PRINCIPLE 3

Businesses should promote the wellbeing of all employees.

1.

Please indicate the Total number of employees:

. Management Staff : 4336

o Blue Collar Employees : 1478

. Total : 5814

Please indicate the Total number of employees hired on temporary/contractual/casual basis:
The Company directly/indirectly hired 10,405 persons on temporary/contractual/casual basis.
Please indicate the Number of permanent women employees:

. Permanent : 136

. On Probation : 35

. Total 171

Please indicate the Number of permanent employees with disabilities:

. Disabilities: 21

Do you have an employee association that is recognized by management?

Yes, We have recognised tfrade unions affiliated fo either of INTUC / AITUC / BMS depending on their presence af respective
locations representing blue collar employees.

What percentage of your permanent employees is members of this recognized employee association?
Around 25% of our permanent employees are members of the above mentioned recognized employee association.

AMBUJA CEMENTS LIMITED |57



7. Please indicate the Number of complaints relating to child labour, forced labour, involuntary labour, sexual harassment
in the last financial year and pending, as on the end of the financial year.

S. No. | Category No. of complaints filed during the | No. of complaints pending as on
financial year end of the financial year
1. Child Labour/Forced Labour/ NIL NIL
Involuntary Labour
2. Sexual harassment NIL NIL
3. Discriminatory employment NIL NIL
8. What percentage of your under mentioned employees were given safety & skill up-gradation training in the last year?
e Permanent Employees: 25% (Considered only Management Staff-Soft skill up-gradation).
e Permanent Women Employees : 28% (Considered only Management Women Staff- Soft skill up-gradation)
e Casual/femporary/Confractual Employees : 72% (Considered only Management and Wageboard staff of IPs, Gus &
Terminals- Safety Training)
*  Employees with Disabilities : 90% (Safety Training)
PRINCIPLE 4

Businesses should respect the interests of, and be responsive towards all stakeholders, especially those who are disadvantaged,
vulnerable and marginalized.

1.

Has the company mapped its internal and external stakeholders? Yes/No
Yes the company has mapped its infernal as well as external stakeholders
Out of the above, has the company identified the disadvantaged, vulnerable & marginalized stakeholders.

The company has further identified the disadvantaged, vulnerable and marginalised stakeholders, namely the communities
around itfs manufacturing sites and its workers/contractual workers and truck drivers.

Are there any special initiatives taken by the company to engage with the disadvantaged, vulnerable and marginalized
stakeholders. If so, provide details thereof, in about 50 words or so.

Severalinitiatives have been taken o engage with these disadvantaged stakeholders. Through its Ambuja Cement Foundation
the community is engaged on a regular basis and projects are developed and planned through their participation.
Several of the Foundation’s projects such as health camps, HIV prevention programmes, non formal education centres, skill
fraining, and work with women are also extended to the Company’s contract workers and labourers. Regularised employee
engagement survey enables the employees to voice their satisfaction levels. Workers safety is of utmost importance and a
culture of safety is brought in not just for company’s staff but also workers, truckers etc, through training programmes. All this
is also disclosed in our Annual Sustainability Report.

PRINCIPLE 5
Businesses should respect and promote human rights.

1.

Does the policy of the company on human rights cover only the company or extend to the Group/ Joint Ventures/
Suppliers / Contractors/NGOs/Others?

The Company does not have any policy on Human Rights for the time being.

2. How many stakeholder complaints have been received in the past financial year and what percent was satisfactorily
resolved by the management?
No stakeholder complaints were received during the last financial year

PRINCIPLE 6

Businesses should respect, protect, and make efforts to restore the environment.

1.

Does the policy related to Principle 6 cover only the company or extends to the Group/Joint Ventures/Suppliers/
Contractors/NGOs/others.

The Corporate Environment Policy is applicable only to the Company.

Does the company have strategies/ initiatives to address global environmental issues such as climate change, global
warming, etc? Y/N. If yes, please give hyperlink for webpage etc.

Yes. The Company has a documented Sustainability Policy duly approved by the Board of Directors. The policy enshrines
commitment for climate change mitigation. Apart from this, we also have an updated climate change policy. The Company
measures & reports its carbon emissions as per Cement Sustainability Inifiative [CSI] of the World Business Council on
Sustainable Development. The Company proactively discloses its carbon emissions in the annual Carbon Disclosure Project.
Further, we also keep our stakeholders informed on our carbon performance through our annual GRI based Sustainability
Report.

The Company has strategies in place to address global warming and to ensure a low carbon growth path for our operations.
Please visit the following links for more details:

https://www.ambujacement.com/poalicies_certifications.php,
https://www.ambujacement.com/climate_change mitigation.php
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Does the company identify and assess potential environmental risks? Y/N

Yes. The Company regularly assesses the environmental risks emanating from its operations and as a part of the sustainability
strategy implements initiatives to address these. Additionally, all our operations are certified to interational Environment
Management System ISO 14001:2004.

Does the company have any project related to Clean Development Mechanism? Also, if yes, whether any environmental
compliance report is filed?

Yes, the company participates in the Global Programme of Clean Development Mechanism (CDM). Our first project of the
use of biomass for power generation at Ropar plant earned 17,727 CERs (Certified Emission Reduction) which could eamn
us ¥ 1.60 crores. We are currently pursuing two CDM projects. One is a Program of Activity [POA] on Smokeless Chulha in
Community around our plants.

The second is Waste Heat Recovery [WHR] based power generation at our unit af Rabriyawas. These projects are in the
process of registration. The WHR CDM projects has been accorded Host Country Approval by the National CDM Authority.
There is no requirement for filing environment compliance report as per their approval.

Has the company undertaken any other initiatives on — clean technology, energy efficiency, renewable energy, etc.

Yes. The Company has strong focus on energy efficiency & renewable energy. Our renewable energy portfolio includes 7.5
MW Wind energy at Kutch, Gujarat commmissioned in 2011 & 330 KV Solar Power at Bhatapara, Chhattisgarh installed in 2012.
Additionally, we also co-process industrial waste from other industries in our kiins as alternative fuel. This helps us in reducing
the use of coal, necessary for conservation as well as green house gas mitigation. A 6.5 MW waste heat recovery based
power generation system is being installed which is expected to be operational by November, 2013.

The company monitors its specific thermal & electrical energy consumption and employs measures for improving energy
efficiency. Three of our units have implemented energy management system & have attained certification 1o ISO 50001:2011.

Are the Emissions/Waste generated by the company within the permissible limits given by CPCB/SPCB for the financial
year being reported?

Yes. The Company employs various measures to ensure complete compliance to existing emission/waste standards
applicable. The Company is the first cement manufacturer to have proactively installed Continuous Emission Monitoring
Systems (CEMS) at all the nine kiln stacks for online monitoring of all vital pollution parameters. In addition, Continuous
Ambient Air Quality Monitoring Systems are being installed af all the plants.

Number of show cause/ legal notices received from CPCB/SPCB which are pending (i.e. not resolved to satisfaction) as
on end of Financial Year.

There are six matters that are pending in different Courts as on the end of Financial Year 2012.

PRINCIPLE 7
Businesses, when engaged in influencing public and regulatory policy should do so in a responsible manner.

1.

Is your company a member of any trade and chamber or association? If Yes, Name only those major ones that your
business deals with:

a. Confederation of Indian Industry (ClI)

Federation of Indian Chambers of Commerce and Industry (FICCI)

The Associated Chambers of Commerce and Industry of India (ASSOCHAM)

Bombay Management Association (BMA)

Indian Merchants Chamber (IMC)

Bombay Chamber of Commerce and Investments (BCCI)

o} Cement Sustainability Initiative (CSI), an extension of World Business Council for Sustainable Development.

~0 Qo0 0T

2. Have you advocated/lobbied through above associations for the advancement or improvement of public good? Yes/
No; if yes specify the broad areas (Governance and Administration, Economic Reforms, Inclusive Development Policies,
Energy security, Water, Food Security, Sustainable Business Principles, Others) :

Yes we have been closely working with Cll for advocating good sustainability practices in the industry.

PRINCIPLE 8

Businesses should support inclusive growth and equitable development

1.

Does the company have specified programmes/initiatives/projects in pursuit of the policy related to Principle 8? If yes
details thereof.

Yes the Company has very focussed programmes and initiatives. The company has always considered the Community
as an extremely important Stakeholder group and since its inception engaged for their development. Our Foundation
conducts needs assessment before undertaking projects in our neighbouring Communities. Focus has primarily being on
water, livelihood promotion and on the Human Development Index, and compliments the nation’s need for inclusive growth.

Are the programmes/projects undertaken through in-house team/own foundation/external NGO/government structures/
any other organization?

The Company has a very structured and well devolved CSR arm viz. Ambuja Cement Foundation (ACF) to undertake
development work with the neighbouring Communities. All details of work are disclosed through Foundation’s Annual Reports
& on its website: www.ambujacementfoundation.org
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Have you done any impact assessment of your initiative?

Our work is regularly subject to evaluation and impact assessment. As projects evolve, evaluation studies, both internal
and external are undertaken to confirm direction and make course corrections as required. On maturity or completion of
projects, impact assessments are done by the reputed extemnal parties.

Through these assessments we have seen very positive outcomes and benefits for the people of our area.

What is your company’s direct contribution to community development projects- Amount in INR and the details of the
projects undertaken?

The Company has spent around % 40 crores on CSR in 2012 of which % 35 crores has been spent on community development
projects in its neighbbourhood. Besides its own amount spent our Foundation has partnered with other development agencies
(Government Department and Donor Development Agencies) and has been able to leverage additional of funding for
implementation of development in our local area. This is possible owing to the foundation’s very structured systems and
processes and genuine development initiatives which have helped these funding partnerships grow. All project details are
disclosed in our Foundations Annual Report and website.

Have you taken steps to ensure that this community development initiative is successfully adopted by the community?
Please explain in 50 words, or so.

Our community development initiatives are undertaken directly through our own Foundation. The philosophy and approach
has been to involve the local people throughout i.e during needs assessment and prioritisation, project planning,
implementation and for monitoring. A huge focus has been laid in building capactities within the communities and creating
community level committees empowered to manage and maintain projects undertaken. This project has encouraged
people’s ownership and helped sustain projects.

PRINCIPLE 9
Businesses should engage with and provide value to their customers and consumers in a responsible manner.

1.

What percentage of customer complaints/consumer cases are pending as on the end of financial year?
17 customer complaints/consumer cases were pending as on end of the financial year.

Does the company display product information on the product label, over and above what is mandated as per local
laws? Yes/No/N.A. /Remarks (additional information)

Product information displayed is as per mandated by Bureau of Indian Standards. No other label is displayed over and
above than the mandated.

Is there any case filed by any stakeholder against the company regarding unfair trade practices, irresponsible
advertising and/or anti-competitive behaviour during the last five years and pending as on end of financial year. If so,
provide details thereof, in about 50 words or so.

The details of the complaints filed are as under:-

Sr.
No.

Particulars

Remarks / Status

1.

Director General filed an application under MRTP Act
(restrictive frade practices) against CMA and 44 Cement
Manufacturers, including the Company alleging fixing
the prices in arbitrary and unjustified manner. MRTP
Commission passed a “Cease & Desist” Order dated
20.12.2007 in the above matter

The Supreme Court, by its Order dafed 8.02.2008, has
admitted the appeal and Stayed the said Order’ of the
MRTP Commission. The matter is pending.

The Competition Commission of India passed an Order
dated 20" June, 2012, imposing penalty on certain
cement manufacturers including the Company, alleging
confravention of the provisions of the Competition Act,
2002 and imposed a penalty of ¥ 1164 Crore on the
Company.

The Company has filed an Appeal against the said ‘Order’
with the Competition Appellate Tribbunal challenging the
said Order where the matter is pending.

Did your company carry out any consumer survey/ consumer satisfaction trends?

Yes, the Customer Support Groups from the 3 regions of the Company have carried out consumer surveys and have framed
the Customer Satisfaction Index based on their surveys.

The Company also carried out Nielsen Brand Equity Study — a globally recognized standard for understanding customer
preferences.
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To

Auditors’ Report

The Members of Ambuja Cements Limited

1

We have audited the attached Balance Sheet of Ambuja Cements Limited (‘the Company’) as at 31 December 2012 and also the statement
of profit and loss and the cash flow statement for the year ended on that date annexed thereto. These financial statements are the responsibility
of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is o express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in India. Those Standards require that we plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing
the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement
presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2003 (as amended) issued by the Central Government of India in terms of sub-section
(4A) of Section 227 of the Companies Act, 1956, we enclose in the Annexure a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 4 and 5
of the said Order.

Without qualifying our opinion, we draw attention to note 29(A)(i)(c)(iv) of the financial statements, relating to the order of the Competition
Commission of India (CCl), conceming alleged contfravention of the provisions of the Competition Act, 2002 and imposing a penalty of
T 1,163.91 crores on the Company. The Company is advised by external legal counsel that it has a good case for the Competition Appellate
Tribunal setting aside the order passed by CCl, and accordingly no provision has been considered necessary by the Company in this regard.

Further fo our comments in the Annexure referred to in paragraph 3 above, we report that :

i.  we have obtained all the information and explanations, which to the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes
of our audit;

ii.  inouropinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as appears from our examination
of those books;

ii. the balance sheet, statement of profit and loss and cash flow statement dealt with by this report are in agreement with the books of
account;

iv. . in our opinion, the balance sheet, statement of profit and loss and cash flow statement dealt with by this report comply with the
accounting standards referred fo in sub-section (3C) of section 211 of the Companies Act, 1956;

v. on the basis of the written representations received from the directors, as on 31 December 2012, and taken on record by the Board
of Directors, we report that none of the directors is disqualified as on 31 December 2012 from being appointed as a director in terms
of clause (g) of sub-section (1) of section 274 of the Companies Act, 1956;

vi.  inour opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the said accounts give the information
required by the Companies Act, 1956, in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India :

a) inthe case of the balance sheet, of the state of affairs of the Company as af 31 December 2012;
b) inthe case of the statement of profit and loss, of the profit for the year ended on that date; and

c) inthe case of cash flow statement, of the cash flows for the year ended on that date.

For S. R. Batliboi & Co.
Firm registration number: 301003E
Chartered Accountants

per Ravi Bansal
Partner
Membership number : 49365

Place: Mumbai
Date: 7 February 2013
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Annexure
Annexure referred to in paragraph 3 of our report of even date
Re: Ambuja Cements Limited (‘the Company’)

The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details and situation of fixed assets.

The Company has a programme for physical verification on a rotational basis, which, in our opinion, is reasonable having regard to the
size of the Company and the nature of its business. Accordingly, certain fixed assets have been physically verified by the management
during the year and no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

There was no disposal of a substantial part of fixed assets during the year.
The management has conducted physical verification of inventory af reasonable intervals during the year.

The procedures of physical verification of inventory followed by the management are reasonable and adequate in relation to the size
of the Company and the nature of its business.

The Company is maintaining proper records of inventory. Discrepancies noted on physical verification of inventories were not material,
and have been properly dealt with in the books of account.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured to
companies, firms or other parties covered in the register maintained under section 301 of the Companies Act, 1956. Accordingly, the
provisions of clause 4(iii)(a) to (d) of the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2003 (as amended) are not applicable to the Company
and hence not commented upon.

According o information and explanations given to us, the Company has not taken any loans, secured or unsecured, from companies,
firms or other parties covered in the register maintained under section 301 of the Companies Act, 1956. Accordingly, the provisions of
clause 4(ii)(e) to (g) of the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2003 (as amended) are not applicable to the Company and hence
not commented upon.

In our opinion and according o the information and explanations given to us, there is an adequate internal control system commensurate
with the size of the Company and the nature of its business, for the purchase of inventory and fixed assets and for the sale of goods and
services. During the course of our audit, we have not observed any major weakness or continuing failure to correct any major weakness in
internal control system of the Company in respect of these areas.

(@

(o)

According to the information and explanations provided by the management, we are of the opinion that the particulars of contracts
or arrangements referred to in section 3010f the Act that need to be entfered into the register maintained under section 301 have
been so entered.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the fransactions made in pursuance of such contracts
or arrangements and exceeding value of Rupees five lakhs have been entered into during the financial year at prices which are
reasonable having regard to the prevailing market prices at the relevant time.

The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public.

In our opinion, the Company has an internal audit systerm commensurate with the size of the Company and nature of its business.

We have broadly reviewed the books of account maintained by the Company pursuant to the rules made by the Central Government for
the maintenance of cost records under section 209(1)(d) of the Companies Act, 1956, related o the manufacture of cement and are of
the opinion that prima facie, the prescribed accounts and records have been made and maintained.

(@)

(0)

©

The Company is regular in depositing with appropriate authorities undisputed statutory dues including provident fund, investor education
and protection fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, wealth-tax, service tax, customs duty, excise duty, cess and
other material statutory dues applicable 1o it.

According fo the information and explanations given o us, no undisputed dues in respect of provident fund, investor education and
protection fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax, wealth-tax, service tax, sales-tax, customs duty, excise duty, cess and other
material statutory dues which were outstanding, at the year end for a period of more than six months from the date they became
payable.

According to the records of the Company, the dues outstanding of income-tax, sales-tax, wealth-tax, service tax, customs duty, excise
duty and cess on account of any dispute, are as follows :

Name of the Statute Nature of Dues Amount ** Period to which the Forum where dispute is
& in crores) amount relates pending
Central Excise Act, 1944 Demand of Excise Duty on 0.60 2006-2011 Commissioner (A)
clearance of Cement & Others 0.25 1999-2000 CESTAT *
1.51 1996-2010 CESTAT
Denial on Cenvat credit on 20.96 2000-2010 CESTAT
inputs and Capital Goods and 3.18 2003-2005 CESTAT *
interest 7.05 1994-2011  Commissioner (A)
0.45 1994-1997 Commissioner (A) *
0.75 1993-1996 High Court *
2.06 1996-1997  Supreme Court *
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*)

(xi)

(i)

(xii)

(xiv)

xv)

(xvi)

(xvil)

(xviil)

(xix)

(xx)

()

Name of the Statute Nature of Dues Amount ** Period to which the Forum where dispute is

& in crores) amount relates pending
Customs Act, 1962 Demand of Customs Duty and 0.18 2006-2007 CESITAT *
inferest 0.06 2000-2009 Deputy Commissioner *
0.83 2008-2009 CESTAT
1.27 2000 Deputy Commissioner
Finance Act, 1994 (Service Tax) Denial of Service Tax Credit on 0.23 2006-2007 CESTAT *
input services 9.03 2005-2010 CESTAT
6.30 2005-2011 Commissioner (A)
0.01 2005-2006 High Court*
Central Sales Tax Act, 1956 and Demand of Sales Tax / 18.89 1991-2012 Commissioner
various State Sales Tax Act Additional Purchase Tax 85.81 2005-2012  High Court
3.30 1999-2003 Supreme Court *
27.53 1992-2009  Tribunal
Chhattisgarh Upkar (Sanshodhan Cess on Electricity Generation 14.22 2006-2012  Supreme Court *
Adhiniyam), 2004
Rajasthan Finance Act, 2008 Environment Cess 6.27 2008-2012 High Court
Madhya Pradesh Upkar Adhiniyam, Mineral Area Development 4.33 1982-1991 High Court

1981 (as adopted by Chhattisgarh)  Cess

* In respect of these cases the Department is in appeal
** Net of amount deposited

The Company has no accumulated losses at the end of the financial year and it has not incurred cash losses in the current and immediately
preceding financial year.

Based on our audit procedures and as per the information and explanations given by the management, we are of the opinion that the
Company has not defaulted in repayment of dues to a financial institution, bank or debenture holders.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the documents and records produced to us, the Company has
not granted loans and advances on the basis of security by way of pledge of shares, debentures and other securities.

In our opinion, the Company is not a chit fund or a nidhi / mutual benefit fund / society. Therefore, the provisions of clause 4(xiii) of the
Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2003 (as amended) are not applicable to the Company.

In our opinion, the Company is not dealing in or frading in shares, securities, debentures and other investments. Accordingly, the provisions
of clause 4(xiv) of the Companies (Auditor’'s Report) Order, 2003 (as amended) are not applicable to the Company.

According fo the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not given any guarantee for loans taken by others from bank
or financial institutions.

The Company did not have any term loans outstanding during the year.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of the balance sheet of the Company, we report
that no funds raised on short-term basis have been used for long-term investment.

The Company has not made any preferential allofment of shares to parties or companies covered in the register maintained under section
301 of the Companies Act, 1956.

The Company did not have any outstanding debentures during the year.

The Company has not raised any money through a public issue during the year. Accordingly, the provisions of clause (xx) of the Companies
(Auditor’s Report) Order, 2003 (as amended) are not applicable to the Company.

We have been informed by the management that it has detected certain instances, wherein undue benefits were received by certfain
employees in collusion with vendors/others. We are further informed that investigations relating fo these matters have been completed and
as estimated by the management, such instances have resulted in a loss fo the Company of X 0.73 crore in one instance and amount is
not determinable in other instances.

For S.R. Batliboi & Co.
Firm registration number : 301003k
Chartered Accountants

per Ravi Bansal
Partner
Membership number : 49365

Place : Mumbai
Date : 7 February 2013
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Balance Sheet
As at 31 December, 2012

As at
31.12.2012 31
T in crores

As at
12,2011

T in crores

Note T in crores
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Shareholders’ funds
SNAIE COPMAL ..o 3 308.44
RESEIVES ANA SUMDIUS 1111vtiiieieeeeeeieie ittt e et e e 4 8,496.62
Share application money, pending allotment
Non-current liabilities
Long-term borrowings........ 5 34.63
Deferred tax liabilities (net). 6 548.25
Other long-term liabilities ... 7 4.91
LONG-TEIMN PIOVISIONS ... 8 20.89
Current liabilities
TIAAE PAYADIES .eiiiiiiiii i 9.1 934.54
Other current liabilities ... 9.2 655.87
SNOM-TEITN PIOVISIONS 1111ttt 11 a e 8 1,420.53
TOTAL 1ttt
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Fixed assets
TANQIDIE ASSETS ...t 10 5,861.93
Intangible assets 10 0.44
Capital work-in-progress (Refer note 41).... 520.12
NON-CUIMENT INVESTMENTS....ciiiiiii i 11 112.01
Long-term 10ans AN AAVANCES ........coiiiiiiiiiiiiii i 12 647.31
OFher NON-CUIMMENT QISSETS ..vvvvviiiiiiiiie i1 13.2 8.02
Current assets
CUITENT INVESTMIENTS .. 14 1,543.83
(L)Y 1] 1= 15 983.93
TrAAE TECEIVADIES ... 13.1 213.37
Cash ANA BANK DAIANCES .......vvviiiiiiiiiii 16 2,253.72
Short-term 10ans ANA AAVANCES .......cooviiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiii e 12 249.05
OFNEI CUIMENT OSSETS ...ttt 13.2 30.95
TOTAL .ttt
Significant accounting PONICIES ... ..vvviiiiiiiiii 2

The accompanying notes are integral part of the financial statements.

306.87

7,762.56

8,805.06

608.68

8,069.43

0.01

42.80
643.60
3.82
17.91

708.13

951.16
639.77

1,173.34

3,010.94

2,764.27

12,424.68 1

1,5641.84

6,382.49

767.34

5,274.85

6,184.61

1.85
486.82

6,673.28

95.37
506.76
2.15

604.28

768.94
924.97
240.85

2,069.08

236.51
23.93

4,264.28

12,424.68 1

1,541.84

As per our attached report of even date

For S.R. Batliboi & Co.
Firm Registration No. 301003k
Chartered Accountants

N.S. Sekhsaria
Chairman

Ajay Kapur
Chief Executive Officer

Sanjeev Churiwala
Chief Financial Officer

Rajiv Gandhi
per Ravi Bansal Company Secretary
Partner

Membership No. 49365

Mumbai, 7" February, 2013

Paul Hugentobler
Vice Chairman

M.L. Bhakta
Director

Bernard Fontana
Director

Haigreve Khaitan
Director

B.L. Taparia
Director
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Chairman-Audit Committee

Nasser Munjee
Director

Rajendra P. Chitale
Director

Omkar Goswami
Director

Naresh Chandra
Director

Onne van der Weijde
Managing Director



Revenue

Sale of products (gross) (Refer note 42)
Less : Excise duty (Refer note 46)
Sale of products (net)...........
Other operating revenues.......
Revenue from operations (nef) ...
Otherincome........oooccevvninnnn,

TOTAI TEVENUE ...

Expenses

Cost of raw materials consumed
Changes in inventories of finished goods and work-in-progress
Employee benefits expense
POWET QNA TUE ...
Freight and fOrWardiNg.........vvvviiiiiiiiii
FINQNCE COSES L1ttt
Depreciation and amortisation expense
OFNEI EXPENSES. ...ttt

Self consumption of cement (net off excise duty ¥ 0.71 crore; previous year -
0,671 CIOME) 11viiiii ittt

TOTAI EXPDENSES 1.ttt
Profit before exceptional items and tax
EXCEPHONAI HEIMNS ©1vviiiiii i
PrOfit DEFOIE TOX. 1 1vivviiiii i

Tax expense :
For the current year

CUITENT TAX 11eiiiii i
Deferred tax (credit) / charge

Statement of Profit and Loss
For the year ended 315 December, 2012

Relating to earlier years
CUIMENT TOX 11ttt
Deferred tax (credit) / charge

PrOfit fOF TNE YEAN .vvvviiii

Eamings per equity share of ¥ 2 each

The accompanying notes are integral part of the financial statements.

2012 2011
Note T in crores T in crores T in crores
10,939.68 9,678.13
1,264.74 1,073.81
9,674.94 8,504.32
17 55.36 49.94
9,730.30 8,554.26
18 348.87 247.87
10,079.17 8,802.13
19 671.76 577.38
20 (200.83) 57.00
21 478.51 433.20
2,329.07 2,001.37
22 2,275.85 1,933.36
23 75.66 52.63
24 565.22 44515
25 1,709.68 1,581.66
7,904.92 7,081.75
(6.71) (6.74)
7,898.21 7,075.01
2,180.96 1,727.12
26 279.13 24.25
1,901.83 1,702.87
702.00 482.00
(95.35) 59.29
606.65 541.29
(1.88) (120.71)
- 53.43
(1.88) (67.28)
604.77 474.01
1,297.06 1,228.86
27 g g
8.43 8.02
8.41 8.00

2

As per our attached report of even date

For S.R. Batliboi & Co.
Firm Registration No. 301003k
Chartered Accountants

per Ravi Bansal
Partner
Membership No. 49365

Mumbai, 7" February, 2013

Ajay Kapur
Chief Executive Officer

Sanjeev Churiwala
Chief Financial Officer

Rajiv Gandhi
Company Secretary

For and on behalf of the Board

N.S. Sekhsaria
Chairman

Paul Hugentobler
Vice Chairman

M.L. Bhakta
Director

Bernard Fontana
Director

Haigreve Khaitan
Director

B.L. Taparia
Director
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Director
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Director
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Director
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Managing Director



Cash Flow Statement

For the year ended 31 December, 2012

Cash flow from operating activities

Profit DEFOIE TAX .vviiiiiiiiiii
Adjustment for ;
Depreciation / amortisation
Depreciation / amortisation (exceptional itemS)........cociiiii
Profit on sale Of fIXSA QSSETS. .....occiiiiiiiiiii
Loss on assets sold, discarded and wiitten Off ...
Capital SPArES CONSUMIEA ....viviiiieiiiiie ettt
Deferred revenue expenditure, Witten Off ... ..
Profit on sale of current INVestMENTS ...
FINANCE COSIS....vvviiiiiiiii
INTEIEST INCOME ..uiiiii i
Provision for slow and NON MOVING SPAIES ........vvvviieiiiiieieiiiiee et
Discountfing income oNn SAIEs TAX IOQN ......vviiiiiiiiiii
Employee stock compensation expenses under ESOS .. .
Employee stock compensation expense under ESOS (excephonol |Tems]
Sales tax loan liability written back on ASSESSMNENT .....vvvviviiiii
Unredlised exchange (gain) /108S, NEt......cociviiiiiiiii
Provisions NO IONQEr TEQUITEA..........uvviiiiiiiiiiiiiii
INVENTONES WIHEN Off .....viiii
Bad debts, sundry debit balances and claims written off ...,
Provision for doubtful debts and advances (net) (Refer note 52)

Operating profit before working COpital ChANGES .....vvvvviiiiiii
Adjustment for :
Trade receivables, loans & advances and Other ASSETS.......ivviiiiii .
INMVENTOMES ...t
Trade payables, other liabilities ANA PIOVISIONS........vvviviiiiiiiiiiiece s

Cash generated from / (Used iN) OPEIATIONS .......vvviiiiiiiiiiii
Direct taxes paid (net off refunds T 360.27 crores; previous year - T 104.19 crores) ..........

Net cash flow from / (used in) operating activities (A) ..........cccccevriiiiiiiie e
Cash flows from investing activities

Purchase of fixed assets, including capital work in progress and capital advances...........
Proceeds from sale Of fIXEA ASSETS ......iiviiiiiiiiiiiii
Acquisition / investment in subsidiaries
Acquisition / investment in JOINT VENTUIES ... ...
Loan given O SUDSITIANES ... ...iiiviiiiiiii
Payment received against loan given to subsidiaries
Proceeds from sale / maturity of current investments

Unclaimed sale proceeds of the odd lot shares of erstwhile Ambuja Cement Eastern
Limited (ACEL) and Ambuja Cements Rajasthan Limited (ACRL)..........covviiiiiiiiniiiiiins

Investments in bank deposits (having original maturity of more than three months)...........

Redemption / maturity of bank deposits (having original maturity of more than three
T OIS ) ottt

INTEIEST TECEIVEQ .11ttt
Interest received on Income tax

Net cash flow from / (used in) investing activities (B) ............ccovvviiniiniiieie e

Carmed fOWAIG... ..,
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T in crores

2012
T in crores

2011

T in crores

565.22
279.13
(1.71)
8.82
0.40
0.27
(71.89)
75.66
(233.96)
(0.15)
(15.96)

(0.04)
(0.22)
(19.78)
18.39
1.56

31.73

(41.36)
(77.20)
76.87

(691.76)
4.77
(15.96)
(0.68)
(5.56)
1.00
71.89

(0.01)
(23.03)

10.01
205.79
50.62

1,901.83

637.47

1,702.87

445.15
(12.24)
20.89
0.49
0.19
(59.16)
52.63
(155.51)
6.67
(15.78)
9.45
24.25
(0.34)
0.30
(7.93)
10.61
2.36
1.08
323.11

2,539.30

(41.69)

2,025.98

(246.24)
(40.40)
266.33

(20.31)

2,497.61
(639.87)

2,005.67
(472.21)

1,857.74

(392.92)

1,533.46

(655.37)
32.09
(35.65)
(10.28)
(5.19)

59.16

(0.30)
(27.08)

30.05
145.23
19.13

(448.21)

1,464.82

1,085.25



Cash flow statement (Conta,)

2012 2011
g in crores g in crores g in crores
Brought fOrward... ... 1,464.82 1,085.25
Cash flows from financing activities

Proceeds from issuance of equity share capital (including securities premium)................ 83.07 46.23
Proceeds from shom-term DOMOWINGS ........vviiiiiiiiiii 58.23 57.22
Repayment of short-term borrowings ... (48.79) (56.77)
INFEIEST PQIA .. (27.54) (25.12)
SUDSIAY TECEIVEQ ...t 0.30 -
Dividend paid ON €QUItY SNAES.........cuiiiiiiiiii (489.94) (426.81)
Tax on equity AIVIAENA PAIA .....vvviiiii (79.76) (69.54)
Net cash flow from / (used in) in financing activities (C)..........cccvrrmmmmmimminiriies (504.43) (474.79)
Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A + B + C).......cccvvevviiiiinneininnnnnns 960.39 610.46
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year ..., 3,859.76 2,899.37
Cash and cash equivalents af the beginning of the year...........cccoci 2,899.37 2,288.91
960.39 610.46

Components of cash and cash equivalents
CASN ON AN .. 0.34 0.27
With 1oanks - iN CUMENT ACCOUNT L...iiiiiiiiiie 132.21 154.54
With oanks - iN AePOSIT ACCOUNT.....uiiiiiii 2,061.00 1,855.00
With bbanks - fixed deposit held AS SECUIMY .......cviiiiiiii 37.79 38.65
With bbanks - earmarked for specific purposes (Refer note 3 below)..........coovvvviiiiinn, 22.38 20.62
Cash and bank balanCe As PEFNOTE T .vvviiiiiiiiiiiiii 2,253.72 2,069.08
Less : Fixed deposits not considered as cash and cash equIValents ..., (37.79) (38.65)
Add : Deposits with Housing Development Finance Corporation Limited .........ccoccvveenee. 100.00 100.00
Add : Investment in MUTUGT FUNDS .....ovviiiiiiii 1,543.83 768.94
Cash and cash equivalents at the yearend....................cccccoiiii 3,859.76 2,899.37

Notes :
1) Figures in brackets represent cash outflow.

2) Direct taxes paid are treated as arising from operating activities and are not bifurcated between investing and financing
activities.

3) These balances are not available for use by the Company as they represent corresponding unpaid dividend liabilities and unclaimed sale
proceeds of the odd lot shares belonging to the shareholders of erstwhile ACEL and ACRL.

Significant accounting policies - Note 2

The accompanying notes are infegral part of the financial statements.

As per our attached report of even date For and on behalf of the Board
For S.R. Batliboi & Co. Ajay Kapur N.S. Sekhsaria Shailesh Haribhakti
Firm Regjistration No. 301003E Chief Executive Officer Chairman Chairman-Audit Committee
Chartered Accountants Sanjeev Churiwala Paul Hugentobler Nasser Munjee
Chief Financial Officer Vice Chairman Director
Rajiv Gandhi M.L. Bhakta Rajendra P. Chitale
per Ravi Bansal Company Secretary Director Director
Partner . Bemard Fontana Omkar Goswami
Membership No. 49365 Director Director
Haigreve Khaitan Naresh Chandra
Director Director
B.L. Taparia Onne van der Weijde
Director Managing Director

Mumbai, 7" February, 2013
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Notes to Financial Statements

(A) Basis of preparation of financial statements :

i. The financial statements have been prepared in compliance with all material aspects with the Accounting Standards notified by
Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006 (as amended) and the relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 1956.

ii. Financial statements are based on historical cost and are prepared on accrual basis.

ii. Accounting policies have been consistently applied by the Company and are consistent with those used in the previous year and
except for the changes in accounting policy stated in 1(B).

iv. The preparation of financial statement in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires management to make
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent liabilities at the
date of financial statements and the results of operations during the reporting period end. Although these estimates are based upon
management’s best knowledge of current events and actions, actual result could differ from these estimates.

v. During the yearended 31 December 2012, the revised Schedule VI notified under the Companies Act, 1956, has become applicable
to the Company for preparation and presentation of its financial statements. The adoption of revised Schedule VI does not impact
recognition and measurement principles followed for preparation of financial statements. However, it has significant impact on
presentation and disclosures made in the financial statements. Previous year figures have been reclassified and regrouped in
accordance with the requirements applicable in the current year.

(B) Change in accounting policy :
During the year, the Company has retrospectively changed its method of providing depreciation on fixed assets pertaining fo its Captive
Power Plants from the ‘Straight Line” to the ‘Written Down Value’ at the rates prescribed in Schedule XIV to the Companies Act, 1956. This
change results in more appropriate presentation and gives a systematic basis of depreciation charge, representative of the time pattemn
in which the economic benefits flow to the Company. Accordingly, the Company has recognised additional depreciation charge of
¥ 320.14 crores. Amount relating fo earlier years of ¥ 279.13 crores has been disclosed as exceptional item.

Had the Company continued to use the earlier method of depreciation, profit after tax for the year ended 31¢ December, 2012 would
have been higher by X 216.27crores.

Significant accounting policies :
a) Fixed Assets :

i. Fixed Assets are stated at their original cost of acquisition / installation (net of Modvat / Cenvat credit availed), net of accumulated
depreciation, amortisation and impairment losses, except freehold non mining land which is carried at cost less impairment losses.

i. Capital work in progress is stated at the amount expended up to the date of Balance Sheet.

ii. Machinery spares which can be used only in connection with a particular item of fixed asset and the use of which is iregular, are
capitalised at cost net of Modvat / Cenvat.

iv. Expenditure during construction period (including financing cost relating fo borrowed funds for construction or acquisition of qualifying
fixed assets) incurred on projects under implementation are freated as Pre-operative expenses,pending allocation to the assets, and
are included under “"Capital Work in Progress”. These expenses are apportioned to fixed assets on commencement of commercial
production.

b) Depreciation and Amortisation :
i. Tangible Assets :
I. Premium on leasehold land is amortised over the period of lease.

Il. Depreciation on assets, other than Vehicles and Captive Power Plant related assets consisting of Building, Plant and Machinery
and Electric Installation (CPP assets), is provided on the “Straight Line Method” in accordance with the provisions of Section
205(2)(b) of the Companies Act, 1956, and on Vehicles and CPP assetfs on the “Written Down Value Method” in accordance
with the provisions of Section 205(2)(a) of the Companies Act, 1956, in the manner and at the rafes specified in Schedule
XV to the Companies Act, 1956, except in respect of certain assets at higher rates consequent to management estimate of
useful life. Continuous process plants, are identified based on technical assessment and depreciated at the specified rate as
per Schedule XIV to the Companies Act, 1956. Depreciation on additions to fixed assets is provided on a pro-rata basis from
the date of acquisition or installation, and in the case of a new project, from the date of commencement of commercial
production. Depreciation on assets sold, discarded, demolished or scrapped, is provided upto the date on which the said asset
is sold, discarded, demolished or scrapped.

In respect of an asset for which impairment loss is recognised, depreciation is provided on the revised carrying amount of the
assets over its remaining useful life.

lll. Machinery spares, which are capitalized, are depreciated over the useful life of the related fixed asset. The written down value
of such spares is charged to the statement of profit and loss, on issue for consumption.

IV.  Cost of mineral reserve embedded in the cost of freehold mining land is depreciated in proportion of actual quantity of minerals
extracted to the estimated quantity of extractable mineral reserves.

V. Fixed assets, constructed by the Company, but ownership of which belongs to Govemnment / Local Authorities :

a) Expenditure on Power Lines, ownership of which belongs to the state electricity boards, is amortised over the period as
permitted in the Electricity Supply Act, 1948 / 2003 as applicable.

b) Expenditure on Marine Structures, ownership of which belongs to the maritime boards, is amortised over the period of
agreement.

c) Expenditure on other fixed assets, is amortised atf the rate of depreciation specified in Schedule XIV to the Companies Act,
1956.

ii. Intangible Assets :

| Expenditure to acquire Water Drawing Rights frorn Government / Local Authorities / other parties is amortised on straight line
method over the period of rights fo use the facilities ranging from ten to thirty years.

Il. Expenditure on computer software is amortised on straight line method over the period of expected benefit not exceeding five
years.

c) Impairment of assets :

The carrying amounts of assets are reviewed at each Balance Sheet date if there is any indication of impairment based on internal / externall
factors. An impairment loss is recognised wherever the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable
amount is greater of the asset’s net selling price and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted
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Notes to Financial Statements (Contad.)

d)

e)

f)

9)

h)

to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects curent market assessments of the time value of money and risks specific
to the assets. A previously recognised impairment loss is increased or reversed depending on changes in circumstances.

Investments :
i. Recognition and Measurement

Investments that are infended to be held for more than a year, from the date of acquisition, are classified as long-term investments
and are carried at cost. However, provision for diminution in value of investments is made to recognise a decline, other than temporary,
in the value of the investments. Investments other than long-term investments being current investments are valued at cost or fair
value whichever is lower, determined on an individual basis.

ii. Presentation and Disclosure

Investments, which are readily realisable and intended to be held for not more than one year from balance sheet date, are classified
as current investments. All other investments are classified as non-current investments.

Inventories :
Inventories are valued as follows
Coal, fuel, packing materials, raw materials, stores and spares :

Lower of cost less provision for slow and non-moving inventory, if any, and net realisable value. However, materials and other items
held for use in the production of inventories are not written down below cost if the finished products in which they will be incorporated
are expected fo be sold at or above cost. Cost is determined on a moving weighted average basis.

i. Work-in-progress, finished goods and frial run invenfories :

Lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost includes direct materials and labour and a proportion of manufacturing overheads
based on normal operating capacity. Cost of finished goods includes excise duty. Cost is determined on a monthly moving weighted
average basis.

Net redlisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of completion and estimated
costs necessary to make the sale.

Provisions / Contingencies :

A provision is recognised for a present obligation as a result of past events if it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to
setfle the obligation and in respect of which a reliable estimate can be made. Provisions are not discounted to its present value and are
determined based on best estimate of the amount required to settle the obligation at the Balance Sheet date. A contingent liability is
disclosed, unless the possibility of an outflow of resources is remote.

Foreign Currency Conversion :

Foreign currency transactions are recorded at the rates of exchange prevailing on the date of fransaction. Foreign curency monetary
items are reported using the closing rate. Non-monetary items which are carried in terms of historical cost denominated in a foreign
currency are reported using the exchange rate at the date of the transaction.

Exchange differences arising on the seftlement of monetary items or on reporting Company’s monetary items at rates different from
those at which they were initially recorded during the year, or reported in previous financial statements, are recognised as income or as
expenses in the year in which they arise.

Revenue recognition :

Revenue is recognised to the extent it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the revenue can be reliably
measured

i. Revenue is recognised when the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods have passed to the buyer. Accordingly,
domestic sales are accounted on dispatch of products to customers and Export sales are accounted on the basis of date of Bill of
Lading. Sales are disclosed net of sales tax / VAT, discounts and retumns, as applicable. Sales exclude self consumption of cement.

ii. Benefit on account of entitlerent to import goods free of duty under the “Duty Entitlement Pass Book under Duty Exemption Scheme”
is recognised in the year of export.

iii. Sales include the amount of remission and subsidy due in accordance with the respective incentive schemes.

iv. Interest income is recognised on a fime proportion basis taking into account the amount outstanding and the rate applicable.
Dividend income is recognised when right to receive the payment is established by the Balance Sheet date.

Mines Reclamation Expenses :

The Company provides for the expenses fo reclaim the quarries used for mining. The fotal estimate of reclamation expenses is apportioned
over the estimate of mineral reserves and a provision is made based on the minerals extracted during the year.

Mines reclamation expenses are incurred on an ongoing basis and until the closure of the mine. The actual expenses may vary based
on the nature of reclamation and the estimate of reclamation expenditure.
Employee Benefits :

i. Defined Contribution Plan

Employee benefits in the form of contribution to Superannuation Fund, Provident Fund managed by Government Authorities, Employees
State Insurance Corporation and Labour Welfare Fund are considered as defined contribution plan and the same is charged to the
statement of profit and loss for the year when the contributions to the respective funds are due.

ii. Defined Benefit Plan
Retirement benefits in the form of gratuity, shipping staff gratuity, post retirement medical benefit and death and disability benefit
are considered as defined benefit obligations and are provided for on the basis of an actuarial valuation, using the projected unit

credit method, as at the date of the Balance Sheet. Actuarial gains / losses, if any, are immediately recognised in the statement of
profit and loss.

Employee Benefit, in form of contribution to Provident Fund managed by a Trust set up by the Company, is charged fo statement of
profit and loss as and when the contribution is due. The deficit, if any, in the accumulated corpus of the Trust at the period end for
which the Company is liable, is recognised as a provision in the statement of profit and loss.

ii. Other long-term benefits

Long-term compensated absences are provided for on the basis of an actuarial valuation, using the projected unit credit method,
as at the date of the Balance Sheet. Actuarial gains / losses, if any, are immediately recognised in the statement of profit and loss.
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k)

m)

n)

o)

P)

Q)

n

s)

Miscellaneous Expenditure :

Expenses included under the head ‘Miscellaneous Expenditure” are amortised over the period of estimated future benefits not exceeding
ten years.

Employee Stock Compensation cost :

The Company measures compensation cost relating fo employee stock option using the fair value method. Discount on Equity Shares as
compensation expenses under the Employee Stock Option Scheme, is amortised in accordance with Employee Stock Option Scheme
and Employee Stock Purchase Scheme Guidelines, 1999 issued by Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) and the Guidance Note
on Accounting for Employee Share-based payments, issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

Borrowing Costs and Share Issue Expenses :

i. Borrowing cost aftributable to acquisition and construction of assets that necessarily takes substantial period of time are capitalised
as part of the cost of such assets up to the date when such assets are ready for infended use.

ii. Expenses on issue of Shares, Debentures and Bonds as well as Premium on Redemption of Debentures are adjusted to Securities
Premium Account in accordance with Section 78 of the Companies Act, 1956.

iii. Borrowing cost such as discount or premium and ancillary costs in connection with arangement of borowings are amortised over
the period of borrowings.

iv. Other borrowing costs are charged as expense in the year in which these are incurred.
Taxation :

Tax expense comprises of current and deferred tax. Current income tax is measured at the amount expected to be paid to the tax
authorities in accordance with the Income-tax Act, 1961. Deferred income tax reflects the impact of current year timing differences
between taxable income and accounting income for the year and reversal of timing differences of earlier years. Deferred tax is measured
based on the tax rates and the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted af the balance sheet date. Deferred tax assets are recognised
only to the extent there is reasonable certainty that sufficient future taxable income will be available against which these assets can be
realised in future whereas in case of existence of carry forward of losses or unabsorbed depreciation, deferred tax assets are recognised
only if there is virtual certainty of realisation backed by convincing evidence.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date. The Company writes-down the carrying amount
of a deferred tax asset to the extent that it is no longer reasonably certain or virtually certain, as the case may be, that sufficient future
taxable income will be available against which deferred tax asset can be realised. Any such write-down is reversed 1o the extent that it
becomes reasonably certain or virtually certain, as the case may be, that sufficient future taxable income will be available.

Leases :
Where the Company is the lessee

Leases where the lessor effectively retains substantially all the risks and benefits of ownership of the leased item, are classified as operating
leases. Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense in the statement of profit and loss on a straight-line basis over the lease
tferm.

Where the Company is the lessor

i. Assets given under finance lease are recognised as a receivable at an amount equal to the net investment in the lease. Lease rentals
are apportioned between principal and interest on the Intemnal rate of return (IRR) method. The principal amount received reduces
the net investment in the lease and interest is recognized as revenue. Initial direct costs such as legal costs, brokerage costs, etc.
are recognised immediately in the statement of profit and loss.

ii. Assets subject to operating leases are included in fixed assets. Lease income is recognised in the statement of profit and loss on a
straight-line basis over the lease term. Costs, including depreciation, are recognised as an expense in the statement of profit and
loss. Initial direct costs such as legal costs, brokerage costs, efc. are recognised immediately in the statement of profit and loss.

Segment Reporting Policies :
i. ldentification of segments

The Company has only one business segment ‘Cementitious Materials’ as its primary segment. The analysis of geographical segment
is based on the areas in which major operating divisions of the Company operate.

ii. Segment Policies

The Company prepares its segment information in conformity with the accounting policies adopted for preparing and presenting
the financial statements of the Company as a whole.

Cash and Bank balances :
i. Cash and Bank balances in the Balance Sheet comprise cash at bank including fixed deposits, cheques in hand and cash in hand.

i. Cash and cash equivalents for the purposes of cash flow statement comprise cash at bank and in hand and short-term investments
with an original maturity of three months or less.

Government grants and subsidies :

i. Grants and subsidies from the Government are recognised when there is reasonable certainty that the grant / subsidy will be received
and all aftaching conditions will be complied with.

ii. When the grant or subsidy relates to an expense item, it is recognised as income over the periods necessary to match them on a
systematic basis to the costs, which it is infended to compensate.

ii. Where the grant or subsidy relates to an asset, its value is deducted from the gross value of the asset concerned in arriving at the
carrying amount of the related asset.

iv. Govemment grants of the nature of Promoters’ contribution are credited to capital reserve and treated as a part of Shareholders’
Funds.

Earnings Per Share :

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders by the weighted
average number of equity shares outstanding during the period.

For the purpose of calculating dilufed eamings per share, the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders and the
weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.
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As at As at
31.12.2012 31.12.2011
< in crores T in crores
3. Share capital
Authorised
2,500,000,000 (previous year - 2,500,000,000) Equity shares of T2 each.........cccocvvviiiiiiiininins 500.00 500.00
150,000,000 (previous year - 150,000,000) Preference shares of ¥ 10 each 150.00 150.00
TOT Al L 650.00 650.00
Issued
1,542,510,956 (previous year - 1,5634,695,781) Equity shares of T 2 each fully paid-up ................ 308.51 306.94
Subscribed and fully paid up
1,542,184,436 (previous year - 1,5634,369,261) Equity shares of ¥ 2 each fully paid-up ................ 308.44 306.87
Additional information :
a) Reconciliation of equity shares outstanding
As at 31.12.2012 As at 31.12.2011
No. of shares < in crores No. of shares ¥ in crores
At the beginning of the year ............ccc . 1,534,369,261 306.87 1,629,859,086 305.97
Add : Issued against Employee Stock Option Schemes (ESOS)..... 7,815,175 1.57 4,510,175 0.90
Atthe end Of the YA ... 1,542,184,436 308.44 1,5634,369,261 306.87
b) Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to equity shares
The Company has one class of equity shares having a par value of % 2 per share. Each shareholder is entitled to one vote per equity
share. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General
Meeting, except in case of intferim dividend. In the event of liquidation of the Company, the equity shareholders are eligible to
receive remaining assets of the Company, after distribution of all preferential amounts, in proportion to their shareholding.
c) Equity shares held by holding company, ultimate holding company and their subsidiaries
As at As at
31.12.2012 31.12.2011
Zin crores g in crores
i) Holderind Investments Limited, Mauritius (HIL), the holding company
629,638,433 (previous year - 621,032,990) equity shares of ¥ 2 each fully paid-up.................. 125.93 124.21
i) Holcim India Private Limited (HIPL)*
150,670,120 (previous year - 1560,670,120) equity shares of ¥ 2 each fully paid-up.................. 30.13 30.13
d) Details of equity shares held by shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company
As at 31.12.2012 As at 31.12.2011
No. of shares % holding in No. of shares % holding in
the class the class
i) Holderind Investments Limited, Mauritius....................... 629,638,433 40.83% 621,032,990 40.47%
i) Holcim India Private Limited* ...........cccoccviiiiiinn, 150,670,120 9.77% 150,670,120 9.82%
ii) Life Insurance Corporation of INAiA..........cccvviiiiiini, 67,525,555 4.38% 126,103,426 8.22%

As per the records of the Company, including its register of shareholders / members and other declarations received from shareholders
regarding beneficial interest, the above shareholding represent both legal and beneficial ownership of shares.

e

~—

Outstanding employee stock options exercisable into 10,165,025 (previous year - 18,591,025) equity shares of ¥ 2 each fully paid
up (Refer note 32 (b)).

f) Outstanding fradable warrants and right shares kept in abeyance exercisable into 186,690 (previous year- 186,690) and 139,830
(previous year- 139,830) equity shares of ¥ 2 each fully paid-up respectively.

* Ason 31.12.2011, equity shares were held by erstwhile Ambuja Cement India Private Limited, subsidiary of HIL, since amalgamated
with HIPL. HIL and HIPL are subsidiaries of Holcim Limited, Switzerland, the ultimate holding company (Refer note 40).
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As at
31.12.2012

T in crores

As af
31.12.2011

T in crores T in crores

4. Reserves and surplus
Subsidies :
a) Cash subsidies fromn Government and other authorities

Balance as per the last financial statements ..., 4.60 4,60
Addition during the year, as capital investment subsidy from State Government ........ 0.30 -
4.90 4.60
b)  Grant-in-aid subsidy frlom DANIDA ... ...ciiiiiiiiii 0.12 0.12
5.02 4,72
CAPIAI TESEIVE ... it 130.71 130.71
Capital redempPlion IESEIVE ..ot 9.93 9.93
Securities premium account :
Balance as per the last financial statfements ..., 1,295.86 1,247.60
Add : employee stock options exercised during the year.............cccoovcnn, 81.50 45.33
Add : fransferred from employee stock options outstanding ..., 7.79 2.93
1,385.15 1,295.86
Employee stock options outstanding :
Balance as per the last financial statements ..., 32.11 35.04
Less : transferred to securities premium account on exercise of employee stock
O ONS ittt 7.79 2.93
Less : transferred to general reserve on lapse of employee stock options .................. 0.46 -
23.86 32.11
General reserve :
Balance as per the last financial statements ..., 6,004.48 5,304.48
Add : transferred from surplus balance in the statement of profit and loss 200.00 700.00
Add : transferred from employee stock options outstanding for lapsed employee stock
OITIONIS 1ttt 0.46 -
6,204.94 6,004.48
Surplus in the statement of profit and loss :
Balance as per the last financial STatemMENnts ..., 284.75 325.35
PrOfit fOT TNE YA 1. 1,297.06 1,228.86
Less : appropriations
Provision for dividend distrioution tax writfen back ............ccccceviiiiiinn, - 0.83
Interim equity dividend ¥ 1.40 per equity share (previous year - T 1.40 per equity
ST Lot (215.52) (214.50)
Tax on above equity AIVIAENA ... ... (34.96) (34.80)
Proposed final equity dividend ¥ 2.20 per equity share (previous year - ¥ 1.80
PEI €QUITY SNAME) ..ottt (339.28) (276.19)
Tax on proposed equity AIVIAENd ..o (55.04) (44.80)
Transfer 10 GeNEral TESEIVE ... ....iciiiiiiiii (200.00) (700.00)
(844.80) (1,269.46)
737.01 284.75
TO A e 8,496.62 7,762.56
Non-current Current
As at As at As at As at
31.12.2012 31.12.2011 31.12.2012  31.12.2011

T in crores

T in crores

T in crores

T in crores

5. Long-term borrowings
Deferred payment liabilities

Unsecured
Sales tax deferment loan under sales tax incentive scheme of State
GOV BINIMNIENT ittt 34.63 42.80 8.18 6.56
TOTA 1 34.63 42.80 8.18 6.56
The above amount includes
UNSECUrEd DOMOWINGS ...ttt 34.63 42.80 8.18 6.56
Amount disclosed under the head “Other current liabilities” (Refer note 9.2) - - (8.18) (6.56)
NET AMOUNTL L. 34.63 42.80 - -

* Sales tax deferment loan is interest free and payable in 10 annual installments starting from April 2007 of varying amounts from

T 1.52 crores to ¥ 13.23 crores
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6. Deferred tax liabilities (net)
Deferred tax liabilities, on account of :
Depreciation ANA AMOMISATION ©....uiiiiiiirii 11t

Deferred tax assets, on account of :
EMPIOYEE DENETIS 1.1ttt
Provision for slow and non moving spares
(G 7T

Net deferred 1AX TADITES. ... 111

7. Other long-term liabilities
Liability fOor COPITAl EXPENAIMUIE. ... .iiii e
TO QI e

Long-term

As at
31.12.2012

T in crores

As at
31.12.2011

T in crores

As at As at
31.12.2012 31.12.2011

. T in crores T in crores
8. Provisions

655.03 726.36
655.03 726.36
34.04 29.29
21.93 21.97
50.81 31.50
106.78 82.76
548.25 643.60
4.91 3.82
4.91 3.82
Short-term
As at As at
31.12.2012  31.12.2011

T in crores

T in crores

Provision for employee benefits

* Amount to be fransferred to the Investor education and protection fund shall be
determined on the respective due dates.
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Provision for gratuity and staff benefit schemes 9.26 7.04 0.10 0.19
Provision for compensated QSENCES ........cooviviviieiiiiiiiii e - - 67.57 55.50
9.26 7.04 67.67 55.69
Other provisions
Provision for wealth fax, net off advanCes...........occvv, - - 0.36 0.34
Provision for Income tax, net off advances (including interest thereon)..... - - 956.92 795.91
Provision for mines reclamation eXPEnSEs™.........cccvvviiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiin 11.63 10.87 1.26 0.41
Proposed equity dividend..............cccoeiiinnnnnnn - - 339.28 276.19
Provision for tax on proposed equity dividend - - 55.04 44,80
11.63 10.87 1,352.86 1,117.65
TOMAD e 20.89 17.91 1,420.53 1,173.34
As at As af
31.12.2012  31.12.2011
T in crores T in crores T in crores
* Movement during the year
OPENING DAIANCE ... 11.28 11.54
Add : Provision dufing the YEAI........ccoiiiiiiii 2.87 0.53
14.15 12.07
Less : Utilisation duriNg The YA ... 1.26 0.41
12.89 11.66
Less : Reversal duniNg The YEAI .......ciiiiiiiii - 0.38
ClOSING DAIANCE ..t 12.89 11.28
Mines reclamation expenses are incurred on an ongoing basis and until the closure
of mines. The actual expenses may vary based on the nature of reclamation and the
estimate of reclamation expenses.
9. Trade payables and other current liabilities
9.1 Trade payables
Trade payables (Refer note 39 for details of dues to micro and small enterprises) . 934.54 951.16
TOTAL Lt 934.54 951.16
9.2 Other current liabilities
Current maturities of long-term borrowing 8.18 6.56
UNCIQIMEA AIVIAENAS™ 1.1 19.75 17.98
Unclaimed sale proceeds of the odd lot shares belonging to the shareholders
Of erstwhile ACEL ONA ACRL* .......iiiiiiiiiieiis st 2.63 2.64
22.38 20.62
Liability for COpItal @XPENAITUIS. .....vvviiviiiiiic e 60.52 88.52
SECUNMY AEIOSITS 1. tiiiiiiiiitii st 243.21 224.19
Interest payable ..., 21.99 13.59
Advance received from customers 67.67 65.63
Excise duty payable....................... 96.93 96.00
Service tax payable .... 5.05 4,75
DS payable................ 8.68 7.54
Sales tax payable..... 108.71 96.30
Others ..o, 12.55 16.07
Total .... 655.87 639.77
TOTAL 1 1,590.41 1,590.93
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11. Non-current investments
Unquoted
Trade investments (valued at cost, unless stated otherwise)
Investment in subsidiaries
In fully paid equity shares

100,000
749,990
5,139,990

2,029,135
1,660,306

(560,000) equity shares of 10 each in Kakinada Cements Limited .....
(749,990) equity shares of 10 each in M.G.T. Cements Private Limited
(139,990) equity shares of 10 each in Chemical Limes Mundwa
PrIVATE LIMITEA ©.uviiiiiiiiiiiee
(1,236,405) equity shares of Nepali ¥ 100 each in Dang Cement
Industries Private LIMITEd ......vvviviiiiii
(1,245,230) equity shares of T10 each in Dirk India Private Limited ...

Investment in joint ventures (Refer note 43)
In fully paid equity shares
4,010,002 (4,010,002) equity shares of ¥10 each in Counto Microfine Products
PrVATE LIMITEA ©.uviiiiiiiiiiii e
(545,400) equity shares of ¥10 each in Wardha Vaalley Coal Field
PrvATE LIMITEA ©.vviiviiiiiiiic

1,227,150

In fully paid preference shares
15,000,000 (15,000,000) 6.50% redeemable cumulative preference shares of
10 each in Counto Microfine Products Private Limited .................ooo.
Redeemable at par in 3 years from the date of issue, i.e., 19" May,
2010. The tenure can be extended by a further period of two years.
Other investments (valued at cost, unless stated otherwise)

Government and trust securities
National savings certificate ¥31,500/- (previous year - ¥31,500/-)
deposited with Government department as security

In fully paid equity shares

1,000,000 (1,000,000) equity shares of 10 each in Gujarat Goldcoin Ceramics
LIMITEA Lottt

Less : Provision for diminution in value of investment ..............c.cccoeeen

Public sector bonds

296 (296) 5.13% taxable redeemable bonds of ¥1,000,000 each of
Himachal Pradesh Infrastructure Development Bonds, redeemable at
par on 30™M April, 2014 (Refer Note 29 (B)) .vvvvvvvviiivviiiniiiiiiiisiisieiinns

TOTAI Lo

Aggregate amount of unquoted INVESIMENTS ...
Less : aggregate provision for diminution in value of investments ..
TOTAl i

Non-current

As at As at
31.12.2012 31.12.2011
T in crores T in crores < in crores
0.10 0.05
3.05 3.05
6.47 1.47
24.75 19.13
21.81 16.52
56.18 40.22
10.00 10.00
1.23 055
11.23 10.55
15.00 15.00
1.00
1.00
29.60 29.60
112.01 95.37
Book value as on
31.12.2012 31.12.2011
T in crores T in crores
113.01 96.37
1.00 1.00
112.01 95.37
Current

As at
31.12.2012

As at
31.12.2011

As at As at
31.12.2012 31.12.2011

T in crores T in crores < in crores T in crores
12. Loans and advances
Unsecured, considered good
Capital advances .. 161.18 87.50 - -
Security deposit.. ..., 64.38 64.81 - -
Loans and advances to related parties * 7.50 5.00 2.50 0.44
Deposit given to Housing Development Finance Corporation
LIMITEA i - - 100.00 100.00
Advances recoverable in Cash Or KINA ..., 3.18 2.02 61.54 63.66
Ofther loans and advances
Balances with Statutory / Government authorities ..................... 3.61 3.22 51.33 35.36
Incentives receivable under Central / State Government
INCENTIVE SChEMES ....vvviiiiiii 253.59 227.99 17.68 21.16
Loans to employees 3.08 1.12 2.02 2.47
Surplus of plan assets over plan liabilities of gratuity - - - 1.70
Prepaid EXPENSES ....vvviiiiiiiiiiiiiiii e 31.37 29.90 13.98 11.72
Income tax advances (net off provision) 119.42 85.20 - -
Carried fOrWard ..o 647.31 506.76 249.05 236.51
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Non-current Current
As at As af As at As at
31.12.2012 31.12.2011 31.12.2012 31.12.2011
< in crores < in crores < in crores T in crores
12. Loans and advances (Contd.)
Brought forward.........ccocooviiniinn, 647.31 506.76 249.05 236.51
Unsecured, considered doubitful
COPHAl AAVANCES ... 3.21 2.96 - -
Incentives receivable under Central / State Government incentive
SCREIMIES ..t 31.84 - - -
Advances recoverable in cash or KiNd..........ccccooeviii, - - 9.26 9.88
35.05 2.96 9.26 9.88
(35.05) (2.96) (9.26) (9.88)
647.31 506.76 249.05 236.51
* Loans and advances to related parties :
Chemical Limes Mundwa Private Limited ..., - - - 0.44
Dirk India Private LiImifed..........ccccoviviiiiiiin 7.50 5.00 2.50 -
7.50 5.00 2.50 0.44
13. Trade receivable and other assets
13.1 Trade receivables
Outstanding for a period exceeding six months from the date
they are due for payment
Secured, considered gOOQ........uuiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiei e - - 0.47 0.28
Unsecured, considered gOOA ........ouvviviiiiiiiiiiiiiiies - - 1.31 1.34
Unsecured, considered doubtful............ccocviiiii, - - 7.40 7.14
- - 9.18 8.76
Provision for doubtful receivables..............cocoi, - - (7.40) (7.14)
- - 1.78 1.62
Others
Secured, considered gOOd..........coiiiiiiiiiiii - - 83.35 85.49
Unsecured, considered good ........c.coiiiiiiiniiiniinii - - 128.24 1563.74
- - 211.59 239.23
TOTAD 1o - - 213.37 240.85
13.2 Other assets
Unsecured, considered good unless stated otherwise
Non-current bank balance (Refer note 16) 8.02 2.15 - -
Interest accrued on fixed deposit ................... - - 22.91 18.14
Inferest accrued on investMments...........coov, - - 1.02 1.02
Interest accrued on loan 1O SUDSIAIANY .....vooviiviiiin - - 0.74 0.17
Drer:ferred revenue expenditure o the extent not adjusted written 097
O e - - - .
Scrapped assets awaiting disposal (at net book value or
estimated net realisable value whichever is 1€sS) ...................... - - 0.82 0.84
L N D - - 5.46 3.49
TOTAL 1ot 8.02 2.15 30.95 23.93
As at As at
31.12.2012 31.12.2011
< in crores g in crores
14. Current investments
Current investments (valued at lower of cost and fair value, unless stated otherwise) :
Unquoted mutual funds, fully paid-up :
863,082.574 (384,954.326) unifs of Axis Liquid Fund - Growth of 1,000 each in Axis Mutual Fund 108.97 44.27
622,543.004 (219,590.890) units of Baroda Pioneer Liquid Fund - Growth of 31,000 each in
Baroda Pioneer MUTUGT FUNG......vviiiiiiiiiis i 79.21 25.91
- (10,000,000.000) units of Baroda Pioneer 90 Day FMP Series - 5 - Growth Plan of
%10 each of Baroda Pioneer MUtual FUN ..., - 10.00
5,410,198.741 (3,079,472.772) units of Birla Sun Life Cash Plus - Growth - Regular plan of ¥100
each in Birla Sunlife MUtuQl FUNG.........uiiii i, 97.62 50.95
- (6,237,602.765) units of BNP Paribas Overnight - Institutional Growth of 10 each in
BNP Paribbas MUTUGT FUNQ.......ooiiiiiiiii i1 - 10.00
153,518.589 (157,599.536) units of Canara Robeco Liquid Fund - Regular Growth  of 1,000
each in Canara Robeco MUtUAI FUNG ... 20.00 20.00
6,873,009.673 (2,130,499.179) units of DWS Insta Cash Plus Fund - Super Institutional Plan Growth
of 100 each in Deutsche Mutual Fund 101.18 28.85
Carried forward ... 406.98 189.98
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14. Current investments (Confd.)

394,273.636

41,677,278.063
6,557,648.159

679,019.930
599,050.541
35,287,378.687
14,478,163.766

22,887,384.547

195,370.228
144,162.428

714,420.195
528,783.265
708,527.949
263,768.772

644,751.137

Total

Brought forward ..........cooeciin,
(257,481.082) units of DSP BlackRock Liquidity Fund - Institutional Plan - Growth of
31,000 each in DSP BlackRock MUtuQl FUNG .......vvvvviiiiiiiiie
(10,000,000.000 ) units of DSP BlackRock FMP - Series 19 -3M - Growth Option of
%10 each of DSP BlackRock Mutual FUNA .....c.vviiiiiiiiiii
(19,307,578.079) units of HDFC Liquid Fund - Premium Plan - Growth of ¥10 each
in HDFC Mutual Fund
(-) units of HDFC Liquid Fund - Growth of 10 each in HDFC Mutual Fund..............
(3,862,138.926) units of ICICI Prudential Liquid Plan Growth of 100 each in ICICI
Prudential MUTUQT FUNG ...
(4,499,356.000) units of ICICI Prudential Interval Fund Quarterly Interval Plan - |
Institutional - Cumulative of ¥10 each of ICICI Prudential Mutual Fund.................
(4,758,686.000) units of ICICI Prudential Interval Fund Il - Quarterly Interval Plan C
Institutional - Cumulative of %10 each of ICICI Prudential Mutual Fund.................
(208,785.783) units of IDFC Cash Fund - Regular Plan - Growth of 1,000 each in
IDFC MUTUQT FUNGL 1

(24,257,983.546) units of JP Morgan India Liquid Fund - Super Institutional Growth
Plan of 10 each in JP Morgan Mutual FUNd..........cccoiiiiiiiii
(27,055,820.971) units of JM High Liquidity Fund - Super Institutional Plan - Growth
of 10 each in JM Financial Mutual FUNG ...
{:—) ugiTs of JM High Liquidity Fund - Growth of %10 each in JM Financial Mutual

UNIG e
(11,917,636.358 ) units of Kotak Liquid Scheme Plan A - Growth  of ¥10 each in
KOTOK MUTUGT FUNG L.
(3,988,258.567 ) units of Kotak Quarterly Interval Plan Series 7 - Growth of 10
each of KOtaK MUTUGE FUNG.......coiiiiiiiii
(10,000,000.000 ) units of L&T FMP -V (November 90D A ) - Growth  Opftion of
10 each of L& TMUTUQI FUNG ...
(151,389.498) units of L&T Liquid - Growth of 1000 each in L&T Mutual Fund....
(80,128.699) units of Principal Cash Management Fund - Regular Plan - Growth
option of 1000 each in Principal Mutual FUNG..........oooiiiiiiiiiiiiiins
(29,182,968.425 ) units of Reliance Liquidity Fund - Growth Option of 10 each in
Reliance MUTUQI FUNG L..vviiiii
(-) units of Reliance Liquidity Fund - Growth Option of 1000 each in Reliance
MUTUGT FUNG Lt
(257,573.013) units of Religare Liquid Fund - Growth of 1000 each in Religare
MUTUGT FUNG e
(15,298,849.638) units of SBI Premier Liquid Fund - Super Institutional - Growth of
10 each in SBI MUTUGT FUNA ..o
(-) units of SBI Premier Liquid Fund - Regular Plan - Growth of 1000 each in SBI
MUTUGT FUNG Lttt
(121,440.229 ) units of Tata Liquid Fund Plan A - Growth of ¥1000 each in TATA
MUTUGT FUNG e
(71,453.003 ) units of Tata Liquidity Management Fund - Growth of ¥1000 each
IN TATA MUTUGE FUNG L
(3,000,000.000 ) units of Taurus Fixed Maturity Plan Series K 91 Days Growth Plan of
%10 each of Taurus MUtUQIl FUN .......ooiiiii
(112,819.189) units of UTI Liquid Cash Plan Institutional - Growth Option of ¥1000
€aCh in UTEMUTUGE FUN ...
(129,888.960 ) units of UTI Money Market Fund Institutional Growth Plan of ¥ 1,000
each in UTI MUTUQT FUNG ..o
(9,008,603.216 ) units of UTl Fixed Income Interval Fund-Series Il - Quarterly Interval
Plan V - Institutional Growth Plan of 310 each of UTI Mutual Fund.............c..oeev.
(7,170,669.095) units of UTI Fixed Income Interval Fund- Quarterly Plan - Series Il -
Institutional Growth  Plan of ¥10 each of UTI Mutual Fund ..........ccooviiiiiiininns
(8,694,064.562 ) units of UTl Fixed Income Interval Fund- Quarterly Interval Plan -
Series | - Institutional Growth  of 10 each of UTI Mutual Fund ...........ccccooiviiiinn
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As at As at

31.12.2012 31.12.2011

g in crores R in crores

406.98 189.98

63.36 38.10

- 10.00

- 40.41

93.80 -

109.06 59.50

- 5.00

- 5.00

93.69 26.23

71.44 36.50

51.68 32.32

- 44.16

45.00 -

51.47 24.76

- 5.00

- 10.00

30.00 21.54

25.00 13.03

- 45.81

122.49 -

81.93 36.79

- 25.06

124.75 -

54.23 22.82

- 10.00

- 3.00

118.95 18.93

- 15.00

- 10.00

- 10.00

- 10.00

1,543.83 768.94
Book Value as on

31.12.2012 31.12.2011

g in crores R in crores

1,543.83 768.94

1,543.83 768.94
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As at As at
31.12.2012 31.12.2011
T in crores T in crores
15. Inventories
(At cost, less provision for slow and non moving inventory and net realisable value whichever is lower)
Raw materials (including in fransit - ¥ 2.08 crores; previous year - T 0.99 Crore)...........occvviviiiniininins 53.81 45.46
Work-in-progress 303.04 161.67
Finished goods 144.99 85.53
Stores and spares (including in fransit - T 8.51 crores; previous year - ¥ 3.35 crores) ... 228.73 238.54
Coal and fuel (including in fransit - ¥ 5.11 crores; previous year - 71.78 crores) ........ 239.55 380.30
Packing materials (including in fransit - ¥ 0.60 crore; previous year - T Nil)................. 13.81 13.47
TO I 1ttt 983.93 924.97
Non-current Current
As at As af As at As at
31.12.2012 31.12.2011 31.12.2012 31.12.2011
T in crores T in crores < in crores T in crores
16. Cash and bank balances
Cash and cash equivalents
Balances with bank :
[N CUMENT ACCOUNTS ....oiviiiiiiiiii 132.21 154.54
Deposit with original maturity upto 3 months..........cccceveviinnnn, 2,061.00 1,855.00
2,193.21 2,009.54
CASN ON AN, 0.34 0.27
Earmarked balances With DANKS ..., 22.38 20.62
2,215.93 2,030.43
Other bank balances :
Fixed deposit with banks*
Original maturity more than 3 months and upto 12 months.... - - 37.79 30.65
Original maturity more than 12 months.........ccoeeiin, 8.02 2.15 - 8.00
8.02 2.15 37.79 38.65
Amount disclosed under non-current asset (Refer note 13.2) ..., (8.02) (2.15) - -
TOTAL Lt - - 2,253.72 2,069.08
*Margin money deposits given as security against bank guarantees and others.
2012 2011
T in crores T in crores T in crores
17. Other operating revenues
SAIE Of POWET ...ttt 2.55 8.12
Provisions NO IONGET TEQUIFEA. .........uiiiiiiiiiiii 19.78 7.93
SAIE OF SCIAPD vtttk 17.53 18.25
Miscellaneous income......... 15.50 15.64
TOT Il 55.36 49.94
18. Otherincome
Interest income on
BANK AEPOSITS ...ttt 204.16 146.52
Long-term investments..... 1.52 1.52
Income tax refund ....... 23.80 3.83
OFTNBIS 4.48 3.64
233.96 165.51
Discounfing inCome on SAIES TOX IOQN .......cviviiiiiii 15.96 15.78
Profit on sale of current investments 71.89 59.16
Profit on SAle Of fIXEA ASSETS. .. .iiiiiiiiiiii 1.71 12.24
[NSUTANCE CIAIMIS ...t 11.66 5.18
Others 13.69 -
Total 348.87 247.87
19. Cost of raw material consumed (Refer note 45)
OPENING STOCK ...ttt 45.46 52.45
Add : purchases 680.11 570.39
LeSS & CIOSING STOCK ...ttt 53.81 45.46
TOTAl e 671.76 577.38
Break-up of raw materials consumed
FIV QSN 1 298.27 218.94
Y IOSUM 1ttt 1111 236.20 200.19
137.29 1568.25
671.76 577.38
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20.

21.

22.

23.

24.

25.

Changes in inventories of finished goods and work-in-progress
Closing stock :

WOTIK - iN - PrOGIESS - CINKET ...
WOIK - iN -Progress - OTNETS.......iiiiiiiiiiii
FINISNEA QOOTS ...
Opening stock :
WOTK - iN - PrOGress = CHNKET .. ..o
Work - in -progress - others...
FINISNEA QOOTS ...
TO A
Employee benefits expense
SAIAMES ANA WOGES ...t
Contribution to provident and Other fUNd..... ...,
Employee compensation expenses under ESOS (Refer note 32(d), 32(e) and 51).......
STAff WEIFAIE EXPDENSES ...iiiiiiiiiiic e
TOTAL Lo

Freight and forwarding expenses (refer note 45)
On interal material fransfer

Finance costs
Interest :
On Income tax (net off inferest income on refund ¥26.81 crores; previous year -
TT5.50 CTOTES) 1ttt
OB NErS e

Depreciation and amortisation expense
Depreciation on tangible assets (Refer note 10 (Q)) vvvvvvviiiiiiiiiiiiii e,
Amortisation on intfangible assets
T Lot

Other expenses
ROYAMY GNA CESS ..ttt ettt e
Stores anNd SPArES CONSUMIE .......vviiiiiiiiiiiiiiiie et
Provision for slow and non moving spares (net)
Packing materials CONSUME..... ...,
MiINES rECIAMATON EXPDENSES ©...vvvviiiiiiiiis ittt
Repairs and maintenance :
BUIITING
Plant aNA MIACNINETY .ooiiiiiiii
OFNEIS

Excise duty (Refer note 46) :
Excise duty on captive consumption of CIINKEr ..........ooooiiiiiiiiiiiii,
Excise duty variation on opening / closing stock

Rates and taxes :
ROTES ANA TOXES .11ttt
WEAN TOX 1 vvvvvviiiiiii
Entry tax, additional tax and purchase tax etc

ISUITINCE 11ttt 111 e e
Legal and professional fees (Refer Note 50)........cccvvviviiiiiiiii
Directors’ fees and expenses
Commission 1O NON-EXECUNVE AIECTONS ...vvvviviiiiiiiiiiiiii
Advertisernent ANA PUIDICHTY ©vvvviviiiiiii
Commission on sales
DISCOUNT ON SAIES 1.1ttt
Selling and distribution EXPENSES.........ccuiviiiiiiiii
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T in crores

2012
T in crores

2011
T in crores

283.08
19.96

144.99

139.29
22.38

85.53

39.72

35.94

3.91
136.40

16.33

44.12

10.96

8.75
0.18
8.27

139.29
22.38

85.53

448.03 247.20
203.39

25.86

74.95

247.20 304.20
(200.83) 57.00
404.06 361.75
45.59 35.42

- 9.45

28.86 26.58
478.51 433.20
584.35 475.45
1,691.50 1,457.91
2,275.85 1,033.36
24.06

28.57

75.66 52.63
75.66 52.63
563.81 434.95
1.41 10.20
565.22 44515
142.29 127.63
326.87 305.50
- 6.67
338.75 287.18
2.87 0.15
7.86

126.28

15.44

156.64 149.58
51.98

2.49

55.08 54.47
28.35 25.56
4.44

0.17

12,56

17.20 17.17
26.36 23.25
75.96 88.77
0.27 0.19
1.86 1.71
89.72 75.94
22.88 22.54
45.71 69.74
15.95 17.38
1,346.76 1,273.43
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T in crores

25. Other expenses (Contd.)

Exchange rate difference (Ne1) ...
DONGATIONS .ttt
Loss on assets sold, discarded and written off (Refer note 48) ...
Bad debts, sundry debit balances and claims written off ...,
Provision for doubtful debts and advances (net) (Refer note 52)
Deferred revenue expenditure, written off...
Miscellaneous expenses* (Refer note 50) ..

* Miscellaneous expenses include
Payments to auditors (excluding service tax)
Statutory auditors

AS QUAITOIS 111t 1.57
Fees for IMITEA TEVIEW.........ooi it 0.36
Fee for tax fiInancCial STOtEmMENTS .. ..uvvvvi 0.18
CerifiCOtiON FEES ... .iiiiiii 0.03
ReIMbUrSEMENT Of EXDENSES. ... .cciviiiiiieiiiie e 0.09

2.23
COST AUAITOS 1.t 0.05

26. Exceptional items
Depreciation on tangible assets (Refer Note T (B)).....vvvvvviiiiiiiii,
Employee compensation expenses under ESOS (Refer note 32(d), 32(e) and 51).......
TO A

27. Earnings per equity share (EPS) :
(i)  Profit offributable to equity shareholders for basic and diluted EPS .............ccccciiiiii,

(i)  Weighted average number of equity shares for basiC EPS.............ccciviiiii
Add : Potential equity shares on exercise of Option Of ESOS..........cooiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieiininnn

Add : Potential equity shares on exercise of rights and warrants kept in abeyance out of the rights
1SS TN 1D ittt

Weighted average number of shares for diluted EPS ...,

(i) Nominal value Of @qQUITY SNAME ... ...
(iv) Eamings per equity share :

28. Segment reporting :

The Company has only one business segment ‘Cementitious Materials” as primary segment. The secondary
segment is geographical, which is given as under :

(@) Revenue from operations
(i) Sale of products (Net of excise duty)
WIHRIN INQIQ 1
OUISIAE INAIA .11

(i) Other OPEIAHNG MEVENUE ... .vviiiiiiiii et
Within India ......
Outside India

T in crores

2012 2011

T in crores T in crores
1,346.76 1,273.43
2.49 2.24
40.06 32.65
8.82 20.89
1.56 2.36
31.73 1.08
0.27 0.19
277.99 248.82
1,709.68 1,581.66
1.24
0.36
0.18
0.23
0.12
2.13
0.07
2.28 2.20
279.13 -
- 24.25
279.13 24.25
1,297.06 1,228.86
Nos. Nos.
1,537,900,433 1,531,526,874
4,554,733 4,718,193
278,802 261,677
1,542,733,968 1,536,506,744
3 g
2.00 2.00
8.43 8.02
8.41 8.00
2012 2011

T in crores

9,621.92 8.,401.16
53.02 103.16
9,674.94 8.504.32
55.17 47.99
0.19 1.95
55.36 49.94

(b) Allthe assets of the company, except the investments, frade receivables and loans and advances amounting to ¥ 31.75 crores (previous

year - ¥ 44.81 crores), are within India.
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29. (A)

(B)

©

(D)

Contingent liabilities and commitments (fo the extent not provided for)
(i) Contingent liabilities
(@) Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debts
(i)  Disputed liability relating 1o 1albour MAHETS. ...
(i) FOr acQUISITION OF IONA ... .iiiiiiiiii e
(i) OFNEIS. it
(b) Guarantees
Guarantees given on behalf of a joint venture COMPANY.........ocoviiiiii
(c) Other matters for which the company is contingently liable
(i)  Tax matters

(a) Disputed liability in respect of Income-tax demands (including interest) - matters
UNAET QPPEA 11ttt

(b) Disputed Sales - fax demands (including interest and penalty)..........ccccocvvvvviiiinnn.
(c) Disputed Excise demands - matters under appeal..........ccvviiiiiiii,
(d) Disputed Customs demands - matters under appeal..........ccccvvviiiiiiiiiiiinin.
(e) Disputed liability of RTO tax on mining MACHINEINY .......c.vvvviiii
()  Disputed LaNd 1OX AEMANGS .. ..iiiiiiiiiii

(i)  Disputed liabilities relating to railway freight on cement - matter once decided in favour
of the Company by the Honourable High Court of Gujarat was remanded back by the
Honourable Supreme Court pursuant to a Special Leave Petition filed by the railways.

(iiiy  Disputed liabilities relating to coal claims - matter pending in the Honourable High Court :
(@) Railway freight ON COAL....uiiiiiiiiiiiiiii
(b) Penal freight on excess weight Of COQl..........oviiiiiiiiiii
() Inferest ON PremIiuM ON COOL . uviiiiiiiiiii e

(iv) The Competition Commission of India issued an order dated 20™ June, 2012, imposing
penalty on certain cement manufacturers, including the Company, conceming alleged
contravention of the provisions of the Competition Act, 2002, and imposed a penalty
of ¥1,163.91 crores on the Company. The Company has filed an appeal against the
said order with the appropriate authority, which is pending for disposal. ..........c.ovvvvinn

(V) O TS, et

In respect of items above, future cash outflows in respect of contingent liabilities are determinable
only on receipt of judgements / decisions pending at various forums / authorities.

(i) Commitments

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not provided
fOr (NG Of AAVAINCES). ..ttt

The Honourable High Court of Himachal Pradesh had passed an order in favour of the Company for
its claim in respect of power subsidy in the form of Power Tariff Freeze (PTF) and Peak Load Exemption
Charges (PLEC). Against this, Government of Himachal Pradesh on 15 May, 2004 had issued 296, 5.13%
H P Infrastructure Development Bonds of face value of % 10 lakhs each, having a value of ¥ 29.60 crores
redeemable after 10 years and balance of % 0.08 crore was refunded to the Company.

The Government of Himachal Pradesh has filed Special Leave Petition in the Honourable Supreme Court
against the decision of the Honourable High Court of Himachal Pradesh. The Company has given an
undertaking to refund % 29.68 crores paid by the State Government together with inferest thereon up
to the date of final judgment in time bound manner, in the event that the matter is decided against
TS O MIDOINY. 111ttt e

The Government of Rajasthan has granted 75% exemption from Sales Tax in respect of Rabriyawas unit.
However, the eligibility of exemption in excess of 25% has been contested by the State Government
in a similar matter of another Company and the matter is pending before the Honourable Supreme
Court. The Company has given an undertaking to the Government of Rajasthan that the Company
will deposit the differential amount of Sales tax, in case the Supreme Court’s decision goes against in
the MAtter Iefemed QDOVE. ... ..oiiiiiiiii

Writ petition filed against the order of Madhya Pradesh State Mining Department demanding % 4.76
crores excluding interest ¥ 1.13 crores towards payment of additional royalty on limestone based on
the ratio of 1.6 tonnes of limestone to 1 tonne of cement produced at its factory in Chhattisgarh. The
matter is now pending before Honourable High Court at BilASPU...........coiiviiiii s
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As at As at
31.12.2012 31.12.2011
% in crores % in crores
18.95 17.25
67.03 64.77
31.36 19.56
3.67 3.67
5.37 65.49
16.24 16.31
27.81 23.97

- 0.52

0.80 0.80
14.38 16.38
7.65 7.38
1.60 1.60
0.24 0.24
3.29 3.29
1,163.91 -
- 5.61
680.85 324.70
29.68 29.68
82.16 82.16
85.02 69.58
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30. Related party disclosure :

(A) Names of the related parties where control exists : Nature of Relationship
(i) Holcim Limited, Switzerland .. Ultimate Holding Company

(i) Holderfin BV, Netherlands ... Intermediate Holding Company
(i) Holderind Investments Limited, Maumtius ...........coooiviiiiii Holding Company
(iv)  Kakinada Cements Limited, INAIQ ..., Subsidiary
(v)  M.G.T.Cements Private Limited, INAiQ ...........ccoovviiiiiiiis Subsidiary
(vi)  Chemical Limes Mundwa Private Limited, INdiQ............cccceviiiniiiiinns Subsidiary
(vi) Dang Cement Industries Private Limted, Nepal..............ccccoevviiiiinn, Subsidiary (w.e.f. 06.05.2011)
(viii) Dirk India Private Limited, INdiQ ..., Subsidiary (w.e.f. 01.10.2011)
(ix)  Wardha Vaalley Coal Field Private Limited, INdid...........ccccoiiiiiinins Joint Venture
(x)  Counto Microfine Products Private Limited, INdia ..........ccccooovviiiiins Joint Venture
(B) Others-with whom transactions have been taken place during the year
(i) Names of other related parties Nature of Relationship
(a) Dirk Pozzocrete (MP) Private Limited, INnAid .........ccccooveiiiiiiiini Step down subsidiary (w.e.f. 01.10.2011)
(b) ACC Concrete Limited, INAIQ ........cccvvviiiiiiiin Fellow Subsidiary (merged with ACC Limited w.e.f. 01.01.2012)
(€) ACC Limited, INAIQ . ..o Fellow Subsidiary
(d) Holcim (India) Private Limited, INAIQ. ... Fellow Subsidiary
(e) Bulk Cement Corporation (India) Limited, INdia............ccccoeeven. Fellow Subsidiary
(f)  Holcim (Lanka) Limited, Sri LanKQ.........coovviiiiiiiiiii, Fellow Subsidiary
(9) Holcim Malaysia SDN BHD, Malaysia .........cccoocvvviiiiiiiiiiin, Fellow Subsidiary
(h)  Holcim (Vietnam) Limited, VIEtNOM ... Fellow Subsidiary
() Holcim Environment Services SA, BElgium..........cccovviiiiiiiiniis Fellow Subsidiary
(),  Holcim Group Support Limited, Switzerland.. Fellow Subsidiary
(k) Holcim Philippines Inc. Philippines ................ Fellow Subsidiary
() Holcim Services (South Asia) Limited, India... Fellow Subsidiary
(m) Holcim Services Asia Limited, Thailand ..., Fellow Subsidiary
(N} Holcim Trading FZCO, UAE.... ..o Fellow Subsidiary
(0) Holcim Trading Pte Limited, SINgApOre..........ccovvvivviiiiiiienniiinn, Fellow Subsidiary
(P)  Holcim Trading SA, SPQIN.....cviviiiiiii Fellow Subsidiary
(@) PT Holcim Indonesia Tok., INAdONESIA........cccvvvviiiiiiiii, Fellow Subsidiary
(N Siam City Cement Public Co. Limited, Thailand ..................c.e.. Fellow Subsidiary
(i) Key Management Personnel :
Names of related parties Nature of Relationship
M. ONNEe VAN der WEIIAES .....vvvvvieiiiiiiicie e Managing Director

(iii) Enterprises over which significant influence exercised by Directors

Names of related parties Name of the Director
GACL Finance Limited, INAIQ..........coiiiiiiiiiii Mr. N. S. Sekhsaria
Details of related party transactions
Sr. Description 2012 2011
No. T in crores T in crores
A) Transactions with subsidiary companies
T PUICNASE Of QOOMAS ... ittt -
Dirk Indlia Private LImited (T 16,807 ...cvviiiiiiiiiiiiiiiic e
2 SAIE OF GOOUTS. ...ttt 0.20
Dirk INdlia PAVATE LIMITEA ..uviiiiiiiiii i 0.20 -
3 INTEIEST TECEIVEA ... iviiiiii i 0.97 0.18
Chemical Limes Mundwa Private Limited .. 0.03 0.04
Dirk Indlia Private Limited ...........ccocvvvveiinnn, 0.94 0.14
Kakinada Cements Limited (¥ 2,762)........ -
4 EQUITY CONTHIOUTION. .11 9.55
Chemical Limes Mundwa Private LIMITEA ...vvviviiiic e 5.00
Dang Cement Industries Private LImted..........ccooiiiii 4.50
Kakinada Cements LIMITEA ......viiiiiiiiiiii 0.05

AMBUJA CEMENTS LIMITED |82



Notes to Financial Statements (Contd.)

30. Related party disclosure : (Confd.)
Details of related party transactions (Confd.)

Sr. Description
No.

2012
T in crores

2011
T in crores

A) Transactions with subsidiary companies (Confd.)

5 LOOINS GIVEN ...ttt
Chemical Limes Mundwa Private LIMITEd ..o
Dirk Indlia Private LIMITEA .....uviiiiiiiiii
Kakinada Cements LIMIFEA .......oooiiiiiiiiiii

6 LOANS GIVEN TEPQIA ...ttt
Chemical Limes Mundwa Private LImited ..........ccccoiiiiiiiiin
Kakinada Cements Limited ...................

7 Loans given outstanding at the year end
Chemical Limes Mundwa Private LImited .........cccoooiiiii i,
Dirk Indlia Private LIMITEd ......vviiiiiiiii i

8 Amounts receivable af the YEAr €NA ...
Chemical Limes Mundwa Private LImited ..........ccccoiiiiiiiin
Dirk Indlia Private LIMITed ...uvviiiiiiiiii

B) Transactions with fellow subsidiaries
T PUICNASE Of GOOTS ...ttt
ACC LIMITEA 1ttt
HOICIM TrAAING FZCO .ot

2 SAIE Of GOOTS. 1.ttt
ACC Concrete Limited
ACC Limited .................
Holcim Trading FZCO
Holcim Trading Pte LIMITEA ......viiiiiiiii

3 SAlE Of fIXEA QSSETS ...ttt
ACC LIMIFEA it
Bulk Cement Corporation (INdia) LIMITed ........vviiiiiiiiiiii s

4 RENAENNG Of SEIVICES ....vviiiiiiiiit i
ACC Limited .............

5 Receiving of services
ACC LIMITEA 1t
HOICIM (LANKA) LIMITEA . ..cieie i
Holcim Malysia SDN BHD.......iiiiiiiiiists et 11 e e
Holcim (VIETNAM) LIMITEA ..o
Holcim Group SUPPOI LIMITEA.......ueiiiiiiiiei e
HOICIM PHIlIDIINES INC. et
Holcim Services ASIQ LIMITEd.........vviiiiiiiiiiii
Holcim Services (South ASIQ) LIMITEA .......vvviiiiiiiiiii
HOICIM TIAAING S A o
Holcim Trading FZCO
Holcim Trading Pte Limited (¥ 44,372)
PT HOICIM INAONESIA TIOK. ...
Siam City Cement PUBIIC CO. LIMITEA ... .vviviiiiiiiiii s

6 INTEIEST TECEIVEA .. it
ACC CONCIETE LIMITEA ...
ACC LIMITEA 1ttt

7 OO TECOVEIIES. ...t
ACC LIMITEA 1t
Holcim (LANKQ) LIMITEA .. ..o
Holcim ENVIFONMENT SEIVICES, SA ....iiiiiiiiiiiiii
Holcim Group Support Limited...................
Holcim Services (South Asia) Limited (¥ 33,605)

AMBUJA CEMENTS LIMITED |83

5.58
0.56
5.00
0.02
1.02
1.00
0.02
10.00
10.00
0.88

0.88

65.36
7.54
57.82
46.94
23.67
23.27
0.38
0.38

69.78
4.43
0.11

0.11
32.13

0.11
32.42
0.41

0.01
0.05
0.02

0.02
2.96
1.71
1.23

0.02

5.19
0.19
5.00

110.34
6.57
103.77
136.94
39.13
21.63
15.68
60.50
13.98
13.96
0.02
0.01
0.01
65.83
6.30
0.16
0.03
0.01
32.10
0.01

24.93
2.15
0.14

0.06
0.06

2.33
0.13
0.28
1.67
0.25



Notes to Financial Statements (Contad.)

30. Related party disclosure : (Contd.)
Details of related party transactions

Sr. Description 2012 2011
No. Z in crores Z in crores
B) Transactions with fellow subsidiaries (Contd.)
B O N DAY IS Lttt 0.05 5.23
ACC Concrete Limited .. - 0.01
ACC Limited (¥ 7,303) 0.27
Holcim Group Support Limited - 0.13
HOICIN TFAAING FZCO 11ttt 0.05 4.82
Q9 Amounts receivable at the YEAr €NA . ...uiviiiiiii 2.59 22.34
ACC CoNnCrete LIMITEA .....vvviiiiiiiii - 2.05
ACC LIMITEA 1.ttt 0.60 0.18
HolCim (LANKQ) LIMITEA . ... 0.19 0.28
Holcim Services (South Asia) Limited (T 11,236) ..... -
Holcim Trading FZCO.............. . 1.80 3.81
Holcim Trading Pte Limited ........ - 16.02
10 Amounts payable atf the year end.. 14.45 45.10
ACC Concrete Limited .............. - 0.01
ACC LIMITEA 1ttt 1.81 1.26
HOICIM (LANKA) LIMITEA 1.ttt 0.10 0.14
Holcim (VIETNAM) LIMITEA. ... - 0.01
Holcim Group SUPPROM LIMITEA. ... .vviiiiiiiiii e 8.11 11.44
HOICIM PhIlIDRINES INC. w1t 0.01 0.01
Holcim Services ASIA LIMITEA........uvviiiiiiis 0.11 -
Holcim Services (South Asia) Limited 2.13 0.99
Holcim Trading SA...... 0.41 -
Holcim Trading FZCO 1.62 31.11
PT Holcim Indonesia Tbk 0.15 0.13
C) Transactions with step down subsidiary
T PUICNASE Of QOOUTS ....uiiiiiiiiiiii i - -
Dirk Pozzocrete (MP) Private Limited (previous year - T 17,851)).....ccoviviiiiiiiiiiiii, -
D) Transactions with joint ventures
T PUICNOSE Of GOOTS ... ittt 0.07 0.02
Counto Microfine Products Private LIMted...........ooiiiiiiii 0.07 0.02
2 EQUITY CONTIDUTION. ...t 0.68 0.27
Wardha Vaalley Coal Field Private LIMited ..o 0.68 0.27
3 Guarantees given outstanding at the year end...........ccoccvviiiiiii 3.67 3.67
Wardha Vaalley Coal Field Private LImMited ..o 3.67 3.67
E) Transactions with key management personnel
1 Remuneration™ ........cccccvviiviiiniinns 3.69 3.33
Mr. Onne van der Weiide ........... 3.69 3.33
2 Amounts payable af the year end.. 0.80 0.68
ML ONNE VAN AN WIS 1. 0.80 0.68
* Remuneration excludes shares worth¥ 0.18 crore (previous year - 0.13 crore) allotted as
non-monetary perquisite by Holcim Limited, Switzerland, the ultimate holding company.
F) Transactions with enterprises over which significant influence exercised by directors and
maijor shareholders
T RECEIVING OF SEIVICES ..iiiiiiiiiiiiiiiii i 1.11 1.06
GACL Finance Limited.. 1.11 1.06
2 Amounts payable at the year end - 0.09
GACL FINANCE LIMITEA ...t - 0.09

Notes :

1 Related party relationship is as identified by the Company on the basis of available information.

2 During the previous year, the Company became a subsidiary of Holderind Investments Limited, Mauritius (HIL), Holderfin BV, Netherlands
and Holcim Limited, Switzerland (Holcim group companies) and accordingly all other Holcim group companies have been reported
as fellow subsidiaries.

3 The Company carries its Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) activities through Ambuja Cement Foundation (ACF) and run schools
at plant locations through Ambuja Vidya Niketan Trust (AVN), charitable organisation registered under Bombay Public Trust Act,
1950. The Company has confributed T 35.00 crores (previous year - ¥ 28.10 crores) to ACF and ¥ 4.80 crores (previous year -
% 4.38 crores) to AVN during the current year.
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31.

Gratuity and other post-employment benefit plans :

q)

o)

Defined Contribution Plans

The Company has recognised expenses fowards the defined contribution plans as under :

Contribution 1O SUPEIANNUATON TUNG ...uiiiiiiiiii e
Contribution to provident fund (GOVEIMMIENT) .......iiiiiiiiiiiiii e
BT ettt

Defined benefit plans - as per actuarial valuation

2012 2011

T in crores T in crores
8.20 7.29
15.21 13.71
0.82 0.18
24.23 21.18

The Company has defined benefit gratuity plan. Every employee who has completed five years or more of service gets a gratuity on
departure at 15 days salary (last drawn salary) for each completed year of service. The scheme is funded with Life Insurance Corporation

of India.

The Company has also agreed to provide certain additional post-employment healthcare benefits to senior employees. These benefits

are unfunded.

The following tables summarise the components of net benefit / expense recognised in the statement of profit and loss and the funded

status and amounts recognised in the balance sheet for the respective plans :

2012 2011
Gratuity Deathand  Post Gratuity Death and Post
Funded Non disability retirer_nent Funded Non disability retirement
. funded scheme  medical fundeg Scheme  medical
Particulars L g L !
(shipping  benefits (shipping benefits
staff) non non staff) non non
funded funded funded funded
| Expense recognised in the Statement of profit
and loss
1 Current service COost ..o 6.74 0.05 0.03 0.49 6.10 0.05 0.03 0.40
2 Inferest cost........ccovnnn. . 6.34 0.05 0.02 0.55 5.21 0.04 0.02 0.39
3  Employee contributions ..o, - - - - - - -
4 Expected retum on plan assets................ (6.67) - - - (533 - - -
5 Actuarial (gains) / 10SSeS .........coovviviiiiinann, 8.29 (0.01) (0.04) 1.00 1.59  (0.05) (0.06) 0.76
6 Past serviCe COSt....vviiiiiiii - - - - - - - -
7 Setflement cost - - - - - - -
8 Losses/ (gains) on acquisition / divesture . - - - - - - -
Q9 TOtAl €XPENSE . 14.70 0.09 0.01 2.04 7.57 0.04 (0.01) 1.55
I Net Asset / (Liability) recognised in the Balance
Sheet
1 Present value of defined benefit
ObIligation.......ocoiiiiii 95.09 0.55 0.28 8.38 7791 0.58 0.27 6.38
2 Fair value of plan assets 95.09 - - - 79.61 - - -
3 Funded status [surplus / (deficit)] .............. - (0.55) (0.28) (8.38) 1.70  (0.58) (0.27) (6.38)
4 Netasset/ (lIability) ..., *  (0.55) (0.28) (8.38) 1.70  (0.58) (0.27) (6.38)
Il Change in obligation during the year
1 Present value of defined benefit obligation
at the beginning of the year.................... 77.91 0.58 0.27 6.38  65.10 0.64 0.28 4.85
2 Curentf service COSt ..., 6.74 0.05 0.03 0.49 6.10 0.05 0.03 0.40
3 Inferest Cost..iiiiiiiiiiii 6.34 0.05 0.02 0.55 5.21 0.04 0.02 0.39
4 Settflement COSt...vvviiviiiiii, - - - - - - -
5 Pastservice Cost.....c.oiviiiiii, - - - - - - -
6 Employee contributions ..o, - - - - - - -
7  Liabilities assumed on acquisition / (settled
ONAIVESIUIE) ..o - - - - - - - -
8 Actuarial (gains) / 10SSeS .........covvviiiviinnn, 8.85 (0.01) (0.04) 1.00 545  (0.05) (0.06) 0.76
9 Benefifs payments..........cocooviiiiiiiin, (4.75) (0.12) - (0.04) (3.95 (0.10) - (0.02)
10 Present value of defined benefit obligation
attheend of the year ..o 95.09 0.55 0.28 8.38 77.91 0.58 0.27 6.38

* Net liability is ¥ 31,941
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31.

Gratuity and other post-employment benefit plans : (Contd.)
2012 2011
Gratuity Death and Post Gratuity Death and Post
Funded Non disability retirement Funded Non disability  retirement
Particulars funded Scheme  medical fundeg Scheme  medical
(shipping  benefits (shipping  benefits
staff) non non staff) non non
funded funded funded funded
IV Change in assets during the year
1 Plan assets atf the beginning of the year.. 79.61 - - - 67.14 - - -
2 Assets acquired on amalgamation in
PIEVIOUS YEAI. . vvvviiiiiiiiiiiisiiireeessiiinaees s - - - - - - -
3 Sefflements......ccccccviiiiii - - - - - - -
4 Expected return on plan assets.... 6.67 - - - 5.33 - - -
5 Conftribution by employer .. 13.00 - - - 7.23 - - -
6 Actual benefit paid............ (4.75) - - - (3.99 - - -
7 Actuarial gains / (I0SSES) .....covvvvviiiiiiiiinns 0.56 - - - 3.86 - - -
8 Plan assets at the end of the year............ 95.09 - - - 79.61 - - -
9 Actual retum on plan assets...........covvene. 7.22 - - - 9.19 - - -
As at As at
31.12.2012 31.12.2011
V  The major categories of plan assets as a percentage of fotal
plan
QUAlIfYING INSUIANCE PONICY ... 100% 100%
VI Effect of one percentage point change in the assumed
medical INFIAtION FATE.......covi 1% increase 1% decrease 1% increase 1% decrease
Increase/ (decrease) on aggregate service and interest
Ot it 0.17 (0.18) 0.15 (0.15)
Increase/ (decrease) on present value of defined benefit
OPIIGATON .o 1.12 (1.11) 0.88 (0.87)
VIl Actuarial assumptions :
1 DISCOUNT TATE 1..vvviiiiiiis 8.25% p.a. 8.60% p.q.
2 Expected rate of return on plan assets ..., 8.50% p.a. 8.00% p.a.
3 MOMAIY vt LIC (1994-96) mortality tables LIC (1994-96) mortality tables
4 TUINOVET TATE L.iviiiiii i Age 21-44 - 2%, Age 45 -57 - 1%  Age 21-44 - 2%, Age 45-57 - 1%
5  Medical premium inflation.........ooiiiiini e, 12% p.a. in the first 5 years 12% p.a. in the first 5 years
and 8% thereafter and 8% thereafter
6 Salary €SCalatiON ....vivviiiiii 7% p.a. 7% p.q.
VIl Amounts recognised as an expense in respect of defined benefit plans as under :
2012 2011
< in crores % in crores
a)  Gratuity * 14.68 7.50
b)  Shipping staff gratuity 0.09 0.04
C)  Post retirement mediCal DENEITS  * ... .. ..o 1.99 1.54
d)  Death ANd AISADIITY .....veiiiiiii i 0.01 (0.01)
16.77 9.07

* Net off ¥ 0.02 crore (previous year - ¥ 0.07 crore) capitalised as pre-operative expenses.

** Net off ¥ 0.05 crore (previous year - ¥ 0.01 crore) capitalised as pre-operative expenses.
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31.

Gratuity and other post-employment benefit plans : (Contd.)

c)

d

e)
f)

9)

Basis used to determine expected rate of return on assets :

To develop the expected long-term return on assets assumption, the company considered the current level of returns declared on its
insurance policy. The fund manager is weighing the expected retumn for each asset class to determine the actual retun on asset for the
portfolio. This resulted in the selection of the 8.50 % assumption for gratuity (funded) plan and 8.52% assumption for provident fund plan
managed by a trust set by the company.

The estimates of future salary increases, considered in actuarial valuation, take account of inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant
factors, such as supply and demand in the employment market.

The Company expects to contribute % 7.50 crores (previous year - ¥ 6.00 crores) to gratuity fund in the next year.

Amount for the current and previous four years are as follows :

As at As af As af As af As af
31.12.2012 31.12.2011 31.12.2010 31.12.2009 31.12.2008
Z in crores T in crores T in crores T in crores T in crores
i) Gratuity - funded
Defined benefit obligation .............c.coevviin. 95.09 77.91 65.10 57.28 63.21
PlaN aSSets ....ovviiiiiiiii 95.09 79.61 67.14 59.85 50.04
SUrplus / (AEfiCt) ..vvvviiiiii * 1.70 2.04 2.57 (13.17)
Experience adjustments on plan assets........ 0.55 3.86 (0.17) 0.74 0.19
Experience adjustments on plan liabilities..... 6.15 7.46 3.50 2.08 4.48
i)  Gratuity - Non funded
Defined benefit obligation 0.55 0.59 0.64 0.56 0.74
PlaN assets ......ccoii - - - - -
SUrplus / (AEfiC) ..vvvviiiiii (0.55) (0.59) (0.64) (0.56) (0.74)
Experience adjustments on plan assets - - - - -
Experience adjustments on plan liabilities..... (0.01) (0.03) 0.08 (0.14) (0.03)
il Death and disability scheme (shipping staff)
Defined benefit obligation ... 0.28 0.27 0.28 0.26 0.33
PlaN aSsets ..o, - - - - -
Surplus / (AEfiC) ..vvvviiiiii (0.28) (0.27) (0.28) (0.26) (0.33)
Experience adjustments on plan assets........ - - - - -
Experience adjustments on plan liabilities..... (0.04) (0.06) (0.03) 0.17) (0.18)
iv)  Post retirement medical benefit (PRMB)
Defined benefit obligation .............c.cocevnnn. 8.38 6.39 4.85 4.35 2.29
Plan assets ........coccv - - - - -
Surplus / (AEfiC) ..vvvviiiii (8.38) (6.39) (4.85) (4.35) (2.29)
Experience adjustments on plan assets........ - - - - -
Experience adjustments on plan liabilities..... (0.27) 0.92 (0.40) 0.62 (0.02)
*3 31,941

Amount recognised as an expense in respect of compensated absences is ¥ 18.59 crores (previous year - ¥ 14.02 crores).
Provident fund managed by a trust set up by the Company

The Company has contributed % 6.33 crores (previous year - % 6.66 crores) towards provident fund liability. During the year, in accordance
with guidance issued by the Actuarial Society of India for measurement of interest shortfall of provident fund liabilities, interest shortfall of
¥ 0.15 crore is charged fo Statement of profit and loss. During the previous year, ¥ 0.76 crore was recognised towards deficit of provident
fund liabilities.

As at
31.12.2012
% in crores
Details of the fund and asset position :

Plan assets at the year end, Of fOIN VAIUE ........vvviiii e 84.96
Present value of benefit obligation af year end. 85.11
Liability recognized in the BAIANCE SNEET ..o 0.15

Assumption used in determining the present value obligation of the interest rate guarantee under the deterministic approach
DISCOUNT AT ..o 8.25%
INFETEST TATE GUAMOINTEE ... it 8.50%
Expected rate of retun of assets 8.52%
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32. Employee stock option schemes :
The Company has provided various share based payments to its employees. During the year following schemes were in operation :

)

o)

)

a)

e)

Particulars 2007 * 2008 # 2009 2010
a)  Date of grant ..o 7.6.2007 1.7.2008 19.6.2009 22.4.2010
b) Date of Board approval ...........cccceiiiiiiiiiiiiinin 11.1.2007 1.7.2008 06.02.2009 4.2.2010
c) Date of Shareholders approval ... 26.3.2007 22.4.2008 06.04.2009 5.4.2010
d) Number of options granted ................. 7,497,900 7,498,150 7,499,600 9,998,900
e) Method of seftlement (cash / equity) ... Equity Equity Equity Equity
f)  Vesting period from the date of grant...................... 1 year 1 year 1 year 1 year
g) Exercise period from the date of vesting.................. 4 years 4 years 4 years 4 years
* Includes 111,150 options in franche 2 granted on 1¢ July 2008 @ % 82/- per opfion.
# Includes 113,850 options in franche 2 granted on 19™ June 2009 @ I 96/- per option.
The details of activity under the ESOS are as below :
Particulars 2012 2011
Number of Weighted Number of Weighted
shares average shares average
exercise price exercise price
®) ®
a) Outstanding atf the beginning of the year.................. 18,591,025 107.36 24,915,750 106.53
b) Granted duringthe year ..o, - - - -
c) Forfeited during the year...... 244,400 110.88 1,814,550 108.05
d) Exercised during the year 7,815,175 106.28 4,510,175 102.50
e) Expired during the year........ 366,425 113.00 - -
f)  Oufstanding at the end of the year 10,165,025 107.91 18,591,025 107.36
0) Exercisable at the end of theyear.............cooovvininn 10,165,025 107.91 18,591,025 107.36
h)  Weighted average remaining contractual life (in
VEAIS) 1 1ivtteee ittt ettt 1.84 2.30

The weighted average share price at the date of exercise for stock options was ¥ 188.56 (previous year - ¥ 148.94)
The weighted average share price for the period over which stock option were exercised was % 177.49 (previous year - ¥ 139.07)

The details of exercise price for stock options outstanding at the year end :

As at 31.12.2012

As at 31.12.2011

Employee stock option Number Weighted Weighted Number Weighted Weighted
schemes of options average average of options average average
outstanding remaining exercise price outstanding remaining — exercise price
contractual (nominal contractual life  (nominal value
life of options value of T 2 of options of ¥ 2 per
(in years) per share) (in years) share)
2007
Tranche 1 - - - 3,618,550 0.43 113.00
Tranche 2 16,300 0.50 82.00 31,550 1.50 82.00
2008
Tranche 1 1,291,750 0.50 82.00 2,670,250 1.50 82.00
Tranche 2 47,350 1.46 96.00 71,775 2.47 96.00
2,750,225 1.46 96.00 4,043,550 2.47 96.00
6,059,400 2.30 119.00 8,155,350 3.31 119.00
Effect of the employee share based payment plans on the statement of profit and loss and on its financial position :
Particulars 2012 2011
T in crores T in crores
Total Employee Compensation Cost pertaining to share based payment plans (Refer note 51) - 33.70
Compensation cost pertaining to equity seftled employee share based payment plan included - 33.70
APOVE (REFEI NOTE B1) ittt
Liability for employee stock options outstanding as at year end...........cccceoviiniiiiiiiiens 23.86 32.11

Expenses on employee stock option scheme exclude cost relating fo shares granted o the employees of the Company by Holcim

Limited, Switzerland, the ultimate holding company.
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33. (a)

34.
U]
(i)
(i)
(iv)
(v)

35,
(i)
(if)
(i)
(iv)
(v)
(vi)
(il

2012 2011

T in crores Percentage T in crores Percentage

Raw materials consumed :
(i) IMPOAEA .. 97.16 14.46 70.34 12.18
(i) INAIGENOUS .....viiiiiiiiiii 574.60 85.54 507.04 87.82
Total i 671.76 100.00 577.38 100.00

Spares consumed :

(i) IMPOMEA ... 8.30 6.44 15.00 10.39
(i) INAIGENOUS ... 120.55 93.56 129.42 89.61
128.85 100.00 144.42 100.00
2012 2011

CIF value of imports

RAW MNGTEIIAIS. e
PACKING MNIATEIIAN ...
FUIS 1
SIDOIIES ettt
Capital goods

Expenditure in foreign currency (accrual basis) :

Technical fees (capitalised X 0.65 crore; previous year - T 2.12 CIrOreS) .........vvvviiiiieiiiiiinns
TIAVEIING EXPDENSES ..ttt ettt e et e et
Ship charter hire ANA PO AUES........oiiiiiiiiiii e
Consultancy charges (capitalised % 0.16 crore; previous year - X 1.26 Crores) .........coocvveeiinne.
STOff TAINING EXDENSES ...
Legal aNd ProfessioNAl FEES ... .ivviiiiiiiiiii
Other matters

36. Remittances in foreign currency :

On account of dividend to non-resident shareholders

(i) Final Dividend
NO. Of SNAMENOIAEIS .....vvviiiiii
NO. Of EQUITY SNAIES ....iiiiviii i
Amount remitted, Net Of 1AX (TN CTOIES) ......ciiiviiiiiiiiiii s
Year 1O WHICH it PEIQINS ...t

(i) Interim Dividend
NO. Of SNAMSNOIAEIS .....iviiiiiiii i
NO. Of @QUITY SNAMES......eiiiiiii e
Amount remitted, Net Of TAX (F 1N CTOTES) ..vvivvviiiiiiiiii i
Period 10 WICH It PEMQINS . ...iiiii i

37. Earnings in foreign exchange (accrual basis) :

U]
(if)
)

FLO.B. VAIUE Of EXIDOMS 1.iiiiiiiiiii ittt 1ttt a1 e 1 e e e e e
ROY Y .ttt
Others

38. Unhedged foreign currency exposure :

1.

Outstanding frade payables for purchase of raw material and spares
a)
o)
c)
d)
e)
f)
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T in crores

% in crores

38.98
2.60
485.96
49.79
37.31

8.83
4.19
0.14
2.71
10.51
13.02
4.62

199
621,961,307
111.95

2011

193
621,906,482
87.07

2012

23.27

0.19

9.48

As at

31.12.2012
Amount in crores

37.19
1.55
490.47
57.13
57.31

6.99
2.64
5.64
1.26
12.61
13.78
3.64

220
554,514,505
76.40

2010

217
609,960,715
85.39

2011

76.57

0.28

3.33

As at

31.12.2011
Amount in crores

0.36
0.05

0.02
0.63

1.57
0.01

0.01
0.65



Notes to Financial Statements (Contad.)

38. Unhedged foreign currency exposure : (Confd.)

2.

Outstanding liabilities for purchase of capital goods
a) in EURO
b)

c)

Outstanding frade payables for expenses

A) N USD (Drevious Year - 42,203) .....ciiviiiiiiiiiiesiiii et
D) N EURD 1.ttt ettt ettt ettt e e e e e
C) N CHF L
) BN THB ottt ettt
Outstanding frade receivables

Q) INUSD et
D) IN EURO 7,376 (Previous Year - Nil).......coiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiii i
Advance fo vendors

A) N USD (previous Year - ,870) .. ..ccuiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiii
D) TN EUROD L.t
C)  INGBP 187 (PreVioUS YEAT = 33,447 ). .uuiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiii s
) BN DKK ottt e,
e) in CHF 5,140 (previous Year - Nil).....vviiiiiiiiii
£) I PY cotetet ettt e

As at
31.12.2012

Amount in crores

As at
31.12.2011

Amount in crores

0.01

0.14

0.03

0.03

0.13

0.06

0.02

0.01

0.13

0.07

0.72

0.04
0.21

0.38

0.08

0.02

39. Disclosure of frade payables under liabilities is based on the information available with the Company regarding the status of the suppliers as
defined under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006.

40.

41.

42,

a)

b)

)

d
e)

The principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier as af the
end of each year

PIIN DA sttt
Inferest (previous year - T 32,55T1) ..o

The amount of inferest paid by the buyer in ferms of section 16 along with the amounts of the
payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed day during each year. ............cccoeeve

The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which
has been paid but beyond the appointed day during the year) but without adding the interest
specified. (T 887; Previous YEAr = Nil)).....ovviiiiiiii i

The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each year. ..................

The amount of further inferest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until
such date when the interest dues as above are actually paid to the small enterprise for the
purpose of disallowance as a deductible expenditure under section 2. .....ooovvvvvviviiiiinn,

31.12.2012
T in crores

31.12.2011
T in crores

0.86
0.01

1.47

0.01

0.35

1.94

During the previous year, the Company became a subsidiary of Holderind Investments Limited, Mauritius and Holcim Limited, Switzerland, the
ultimate holding company.

Capital work in progress includes (a) machinery in fransit ¥ 10.38 crores (previous year- % 11.29 crores) and (b) expenditure during construction
for project ¥ 10.97 crores (previous year - ¥ 5.82 crores).

Sale of products includes Sales tax / VAT remission and subsidy of ¥ 33.48 crores (previous year - ¥ 47.49 crores).
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43. The Company has, the following joint ventures and its proportionate share in the assets, liabilities, income and expenditure of the joint venture
companies are given below :

(@)  Name of the Joint venfure company Wardha Vaalley Coal Field Pvt. Ltd. Counto Microfine Products Pvi. Lid.
(b) Country of incorporation India India
As on and for As on and for As on and for As on and for the
the yearended the yearended the year ended period ended
31.12.2012 31.12.2011 31.12.2012 31.12.2011 *
(c) Percentage of hOIAING .......ocovviviiiiiiiiis 27.27% 27.27% 50.00% 50.00%
¥ in crores % in crores % in crores % in crores
(d) Assefs:
CUIMENT ASSETS... i 0.15 0.11 2.90 2.32
NoN-CUITeNnt ASSets.........ooiiiiiiiii - - 15.64 16.10
TOTAl Lo 0.15 0.11 18.54 18.42
(e) Liabilities :
Current IAbIIITES ..o, 0.01 - 4.99 4.20
Non-current Iabilifies ... - 0.01 3.57 412
TOAl 1o 0.01 0.01 8.56 8.32
() INCOME ..o 0.01 0.01 7.10 2.24
(@) EXPeNndifure ..o 0.65 0.22 7.23 2.65
() Contingent lIAbility..........cooiiiiiiiiii 3.67 3.67 1.46 0.97
(i) Capital and other commitments ... - - - 0.05

* For the period 01.08.2011 to 31.12.2011

As at As at
31.12.2012 31.12.2011
T in crores ¥ in crores
44. Operating lease :
(a) Assets taken on lease

Lease PAYMENTS FOT TN YOOI ..ot 0.34 0.34

Minimum lease payments :
NOT IATEI TNAN ONE YOOI ... i 0.34 0.34
Later than one year but not later than fiVe YEAIS. ... 1.36 1.36
LATEI TNAN fIVE YEAIS 11 vvvitiii i1 2.54 2.87

(b) General description of leasing arrangements :
(i) Leased assets : Water front charges for captive jetty
(i)  Future lease rentals are determined on the basis of agreed terms
(i) At the expiry of lease terms, the Company has an option to return the asset or extend the term by giving notice in writing

2012 2011
T in crores T in crores
45. The Company is eligible for receipt of transport subsidy on inter-state fransport of raw materials, clinker and
cement in certain units. Accordingly, the Company has accrued an amount of ¥ 30.12 crores (previous year
- ¥ 53.14 crores) which has been adjusted against the respective expenses as under :
(i) ROW MAOTENAIS CONSUMEA ...ttt 3.31 1.84
(i) Freight and handling charges on internal Material fTANSTET...........cvvviiiiii 26.34 51.11
(i) Freight ON fINISNEA GOOTS ... .viiiiiiii i 0.47 0.19

46. Excise duty on sales amounting fo % 1,264.74 crores (previous year - % 1,073.81 crores) has been reduced from sales in the Statement of profit
and loss and excise duty on change in inventories of finished goods and work-in-progress amounting 1o ¥ 10.96 crores (previous year - % 2.49
crores) has been considered as other expenses.
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47.

48.

49.

50.

51.

52.

53.

54.

Disclosure in respect of Loans and advances in the nature of Loans pursuant to Clause 32 of the Listing Agreement :

As at 31.12.2012 Asat 31.12.2011

Outstanding Maximum Outstanding Maximum
balance balance during balance balance during
the year the year
% in crores % in crores % in crores % in crores
(@) Loans and advances in the nature of loans given fo
subsidiaries
Loans to subsidiaries :
Chemical Limes Mundwa Private Limited ............ - 1.00 0.44 0.44
Dirk India Private Limited...........ccooovviiiiiiineinn, 10.00 10.00 5.00 5.00
Kakinada Cements Limited..........ccoocvviiinniininnn, - 0.02 - -
(b) Payments made to employees by way of Loans and
advances in the nature of loan where no interest
is charged or charged at a rafe less than the rate
prescribed in Section 372A of the Companies Act,
TOB6. it 5.10 5.25 3.59 3.75

Loss on assets sold, discarded and written off includes preoperative expenses and capital work in progress incurred on certain capital projects
written off during the year amounting to % Nil (previous year - % 8.92 crores).

During the year, the Company through its fraud risk management mechanism, has detected certain instances of misappropriation in the nature
of receiving undue benefit by employees in collusion with vendors / others which has resulted in a loss to the Company of % 0.73 crore in one
instance and amount is not deferminable in other instances, which the management believes are insignificant fo the size and operations of
the Company. Investigations relating to these matters have completed and appropriate actions have been taken by the Company.

In the previous year, prior period expenses amounting to ¥ 3.81 crores and % 7.78 crores are included in Miscellaneous expenses and Legal
and professional fees respectively.

During the previous year, the Company had changed (with retrospective effect) its method of measurement of compensation cost relating to
employee stock options from intrinsic value method to fair value method for all outstanding unvested employee stock options at the beginning
of the year. Accordingly the Company had recognized an additional expense of ¥ 33.12 crores. Amount relating to earlier years of % 24.25
crores had been disclosed as exceptional item in the previous year.

“Provision for doubtful debts and advances (netf)” includes % 31.84 crores pertaining to the period upto 315 December, 2011, fowards claims
in respect of certain incentives receivable from the government, where there exists an uncertainty with respect to its full recoverability due to
government’s contention of non-fulfillment of certain conditions.

Figures less than ¥ 50,000/- have been shown at actuals, wherever statutorily required to be disclosed, as the figures have been rounded off
to the nearest lakh.

Figures of the previous year have been regrouped / rearranged wherever necessary to conform to the current year’s presentation.

As per our attached report of even date

Signatures to Note 1 to 54
For and on behalf of the Board

For S.R. Batliboi & Co.

Firm Registration No. 301003k
Chartered Accountants

per Ravi Bansal
Partner

Membership No. 49365

Mumbai, 7™ February, 2013

Ajay Kapur
Chief Executive Officer

Sanjeev Churiwala
Chief Financial Officer

Rajiv Gandhi
Company Secretary

N.S. Sekhsaria
Chairman

Paul Hugentobler
Vice Chairman

M.L. Bhakta
Director

Bernard Fontana
Director

Haigreve Knhaitan
Director

B.L. Taparia
Director
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Auditors’ Report

The Board of Directors
Ambuja Cements Limited

1.

We have audited the aftached consolidated balance sheet of Ambuja Cements Limited (“the Company”) and its subsidiaries and joint
ventures (“the Group”), as at 31 December 2012, and also the consolidated statement of profit and loss and the consolidated cash flow
statement for the year ended on that date annexed thereto. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Ambuja Cements Limited’s
management and have been prepared by the management on the basis of separate financial statements and other financial information
regarding components. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in India. Those Standards require that we plan and
perform the audit o obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing
the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement
presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

We did not audit total assets of ¥ 70.89 crores, total revenue of ¥ 65.56 crores and cash outflows amounting to ¥ 11.34 crores included in the
accompanying consolidated financial statements in respect of certain subsidiaries and joint ventures, whose financial statements and other
financial information have been audited by other auditors and whose reports have been fumished to us. Our opinion, in so far as it relates to
the affairs of such subsidiaries and joint ventures, is based solely on the report of other auditors.

Without qualifying our opinion, we draw attention to note 30(A)(i)(c)(iv) of the consolidated financial statements, relating to the order of the
Competition Commission of India (CCl), concerning alleged contravention of the provisions of the Competition Act, 2002 and imposing a
penalty of T 1,163.91 crores on the Company. The Company is advised by external legal counsel that it has a good case for the Competition
Appellate Tribunal setting aside the order passed by CCl, and accordingly no provision has been considered necessary by the Company in
this regard.

Based on our audit and on consideration of reports of other auditors on separate financial statements and on the other financial information
of the components, and fo the best of our information and according o the explanations given fo us, we are of the opinion that the attached
consolidated financial statements give a frue and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India:

Q. in the case of the consolidated balance sheet, of the state of affairs of the Group as at 31 December 2012;
b. in the case of the consolidated statement of profit and loss, of the profit for the year ended on that date; and
C. in the case of the consolidated cash flow statement, of the cash flows for the year ended on that date.

For S.R. Batliboi & Co.
Firm registration number: 301003E
Chartered Accountants

per Ravi Bansal
Partner
Membership number: 49365

Place: Mumbai
Date: 7 February 2013
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Consolidated Balance Sheet
As at 315 December, 2012

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Shareholders’ funds

SNAME CAPIAL. .1ttt
Reserves and surplus

MINOTTY INTEIEST ... e e e e r e e e enee
Share application money, pending allotment ............cccooociiiieiiiiiiiiencs
Non-current liabilities...........cccoeeviiiiiiiiiiiiiinnnns
Long-term borrowings........... PR
Deferred tax liabilities (net).... R

Current liabilities................

Other long-term lIADIIIHES ...
LONG-TEIMN PIOVISIONS ...

Short-term borrowings ..
TrAAE PAYADIES ©.vviviiie i
Other curment TADIHES ....vvvviiiic
SNOM-TEIMN PIOVISIONS 11111ttt

ASSETS
Non-current assets

FIXeA QSSETS 1.vvviiiiiiiiii
Tangible assefts...
Intangible assets
Capital work-in-progress (Refer Note 37) ..o

NON-CUIMENT INVESTMENTS ....iiiiiii i
Deferred tax assets (net) (share in joint venture)
Long-term loans and advanCes.............oovveiieen,

Other NON-CUIMENT QISSETS ..vvvviiiiiiiiiiiiccc

CUIMENT ASSETS ... iiiieiieieeiie e e e r e e e e e e e enaanan

Current invesments..
Inventories ...............
TrAAE IECEIVADIES ...
Cash and BANK DAIANCES ....vvviiiiiii
Short-term loans and advances.
OFNEr CUMENT ASSETS ...ttt

Significant aCCOUNTNG PONICIES .........coiviiiiiiiiii

The accompanying notes are integral part of the consolidated financial statements.

As at As at

31.12.2012 31.12.2011

Note < in crores T in crores T in crores
3 308.44 306.87
4 8,488.97 7,757.80
8,797.41 8,064.67

0.84 2.46

- 0.01

5 39.32 50.73
) 548.25 644.51
7 4.91 3.82
8 21.84 18.57
614.32 717.63

9 10.31 7.50
10.1 948.57 961.48
10.2 665.14 649.53
8 1,420.59 1,173.38
3,044.61 2,791.89

12,457.18 11,576.66

11 5,903.75 6,223.34
11 47.02 42.41
523.68 487.52

6,474.45 6,753.27

12 37.10 37.10
0.76 0.70

13 641.39 504.30
14.2 10.74 2.19
689.99 544.29

15 1,543.83 768.94
16 986.93 927.76
14.1 220.54 247.76
17 2,260.17 2,073.18
13 250.91 237.64
14.2 30.36 23.82
5,292.74 4,279.10

12,457.18 11,576.66

As per our attached report of even date

For S.R. Batliboi & Co. Ajo_y Kapur . .
Firm Registration No. 301003E Chief Executive Officer
Chartered Accountants

per Ravi Bansal

Partner

Sanjeev Churiwala
Chief Financial Officer

Rajiv Gandhi
Company Secretary

Membership No. 49365

Mumbai, 7™ February, 2013

For and on behalf of the Board

N.S. Sekhsaria
Chairman

Paul Hugentobler
Vice Chairman

M.L. Bhakta
Director

Bermard Fontana
Director

Haigreve Khaitan
Director

B.L. Taparia
Director
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Director

Naresh Chandra
Director
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Managing Director



Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss
For the year ended 31+ December, 2012

Revenue

Sale of products (gross) (Refer Note 38) ..o

Less : Excise duty (Refer note 40)

Sale Of PrOAUCTS (NET) .vvvviiiiiiiii
Other OPErafing TEVENUES .........coiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiii i

Revenue from operations (net)

OFNEI INCOMIE .
TOTAI TEVENUE ...t

Expenses

Purchase of fraded QOOTS ..o

Cost of raw materials consumed

Changes in inventories of finished goods and WOrk-iN-Progress ...
Employee benefits EXPENSE ..o
Power and fuel (including share in joint venture ¥ 1.17 crores; previous year -
T 048 CIOTE) . oviiiiiiiiiii i
Freight and fOrwarding ....o.vvvvviiiii

Finance costs

Depreciation and amorisation EXPENSE ....vvviiiviieiii
OFNEI EXPENSES ..vviiiiiiiii ettt

Self consumption of cement (net off excise duty ¥ 0.71 crore; previous year -

0.61 crore) ...
Total expenses

Profit before exceptional Hems ANA TOX ....vvviviiiviii

Exceptional items

PrOfit DEFOIE TOX 1vvvviiiiii i

Tax expense :
For the current year

CUMENT TOX 1vviiiiiiii i
Deferred tax (credit) / charge (including share in joint venture X 0.05 crore;
Previous year - T 0.30 CIOMQ) ....viiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieeiiee et .

Relating to earlier years

CUITENT TAX 1oiiiiii e
LESS I MAT CIEAIT 1.1ttt

Deferred tax (Credit) / CNAIge ......occiviiiiiii

Profit for the year before Minority INTErest ........cccccciiiiiiiiiiiiii
MINOTTY INTEIEST L.viiiii i

PrOfit fOF TNE YEAT 1.vvviiiiii

Eamings per equity share of ¥ 2 each :

Significant accouNting PONICIES ..........coiiiiiiiiiii s
The accompanying notes are integral part of the consolidated financial statements.

2012 2011
Note T in crores T in crores T in crores
11,005.96 9,5695.24
1,266.42 1,074.21
9,739.54 8.521.03
18 55.49 49.96
9,795.03 8.570.99
19 348.52 247.76
10,143.55 8,818.75
0.15 -
20 681.23 580.15
21 (200.83) 57.02
22 487.94 435.85
2,333.96 2,002.94
23 2,299.77 1,938.69
24 78.46 53.44
25 568.68 446.20
26 1,726.09 1,585.71
7,975.45 7,100.00
(6.71) (6.74)
7,968.74 7,093.26
2,174.81 1,725.49
27 279.13 24.25
1,895.68 1,701.24
702.00 482.00
(96.32) 59.03
605.68 541.03
(1.45) (120.77)
0.37 -
(1.82) (120.77)
- 53.43
(1.82) (67.28)
603.86 473.75
1,291.82 1,227.49
(1.39) (0.25)
1,293.21 1,227.74
28 4 z
8.41 8.02
8.38 7.99

2

As per our attached report of even date

For S.R. Batliboi & Co.
Firm Registration No. 301003E
Chartered Accountants

Ajay Kapur
Chief Executive Officer

Sanjeev Churiwala
Chief Financial Officer

Rajiv Gandhi
Company Secretary
per Ravi Bansal
Partner
Membership No. 49365

Mumbai, 7™ February, 2013

For and on behalf of the Board

N.S. Sekhsaria
Chairman

Paul Hugentobler
Vice Chairman

M.L. Bhakta
Director

Bermard Fontana
Director

Haigreve Khaitan
Director

B.L. Taparia
Director
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
For the year ended 315 December, 2012

2012 2011

T in crores T in crores T in crores

Cash flow from operating activities
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PrOfit DEFOIE TOX 1.iiiiiii i 1,895.68 1,701.24
Adjustment for :
Depreciation / AmMOSAION ... 568.68 446.20
Depreciation / amortisation (exceptional items) 279.13 -
Profit on sale Of fIXed QSSETS ......covviiiiiiii (1.71) (12.24)
Loss on assets sold, discarded and written off .........ccccovii 8.83 20.89
Capital SPArES CONSUMIEA .....uiiiiiiiiiiiiie e 0.40 0.49
Deferred revenue expenditure, writfen Off ..........ccoiiiii 0.27 0.19
Profit on sale of current investments (71.89) (59.16)
FINANCE COSS ..viiiiiiiii 78.46 53.44
INFEIEST INCOME ..iiiiiiii (233.44) (155.38)
Provision for slow and NON MOVING SPAIES ......vvvvviviiiiiiiniiiii s (0.15) 6.67
Discounting income on Sales TaX [OQN. ..., (15.96) (15.78)
Employee stock compensation expenses under ESOS......oooivviiiiviieeiei - 9.45
Employee stock compensation expenses under ESOS (exceptional items) ......... - 24.25
Sales tax loan liability written back on assessment ... (0.04) (0.34)
Unredlised exchange (gain) /108S, Net ..., (0.22) 0.30
Provisions NO IONGET TEQUIFEA .........vvviiiiiiiiiii (19.78) (7.93)
INVeNTones WIHEN Off ... 18.39 10.61
Bad debts, sundry debit balances and claims written off 1.56 2.36
Provision for doubftful debts and advances (net) (Refer note 47) ..., 31.73 1.08
644.16 324.93
Operating profit before working capital ChANgEes ... 2,539.94 2,026.34
Adjustment for :
Trade receivables, loans and advances and ofther assets ..., (45.07) (247.28)
INVENTOMES ...t (77.41) (40.15)
Trade payables, other liabilities ANA PIOVISIONS ..........cooiiiiiiiiiiiii s 82.41 265.08
(40.07) (22.35)
Cash generated from / (Used iN) OPEIAHONS........ccvviiiiiiiiii 2,499.87 2,003.99
Direct taxes paid (net off refunds T 360.27 crores; previous year -3 104.19 crores). (639.92) (472.21)
Net cash flow from / (used in) operating activities (A) .........ccccevcieriiiiiiiii e 1,859.95 1,631.78
Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of fixed assets, including capital work in progress and capital advances.... (698.99) (657.54)
Proceeds from sale Of fIXed ASSETS.........coiviiiiiiiiiii 4.81 32.09
Acquisition / investment in SUDSIAIQNES ..........vvvviiiiiiiii (6.41) (35.65)
Acquisition / investement in joint ventures - (10.10)
Proceeds from sale / maturity of current investments 71.89 59.16
Unclaimed sale proceeds of the odd lot shares of erstwhile Ambuja Cement Eastern
Limited (ACEL) and Ambuja Cements Rajasthan Limited (ACRL) ..., (0.01) (0.30)
Investrents in bank deposits (having original maturity of more than three months)...... (25.53) (26.97)
Redemption / maturity of bank deposits (having original maturity of more than three
MNONTNS) i 9.46 30.05
INTEIEST TECEIVEA ... i 206.01 145.11
Interest received ON INCOME TAX....viiviiiiiiiiiii 50.62 19.13
Net cash flow from / (used in) investing activities (B) ..........cccocevvevnnninnnine (388.15) (445.02)
Carried FOrward .......ccocoooviiiiniii 1,471.80 1,086.76



Consolidated Cash Flow Statement (Conta.)

Brought FOrward .........cooociiiiii

Cash flows from financing activities

Proceeds from issuance of equity share capital (including securities premium)........
Infusion of capital by MINOIitY INTEIEST ... ...,
Proceeds from [oNG-term DOMOWINGS ... .vvvviiiiiiieei e
Repayment of Iong-term DOMOWINGS ........viiiiiiiii
Proceeds from short-term borrowings ...
Repayment of short-termm DOIMOWINGS ........cooiiiiiiiiiii
INTEIEST QA 11 vviii e

SUDSIAY TECEIVEA 11uiiiiiiiiiiiece e

Dividend paid on equity SNArES ...

Tax on equity dividend paid ...........ccooeeeiiiiiiiininnns
Net cash flow from / (used in) in financing activities (C)

Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A + B + C) ........

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year .............ooovvvvii,
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year ..........c..coe,

Components of cash and cash equivalents

CASh ON NANA ..
With bbanks - in cumrent ACCOUNT ...,
With banks - in deposit ACCOUNT ...

With banks - fixed deposit held as security

With banks - earmarked for specific purposes (Refer note 3 below)
Cash and bank balance as pernote 17 ...,
Share iN JOINT VENTUIES ....vvvviiiiicic s

Less : Fixed deposits not considered as cash and cash equivalents
Add : Deposits with Housing Development Finance Corporation Limited
Add : Investment in mUtual fuNAS ...
Cash and cash equivalents at the yearend .........ccovveeieeiiiieeeveeeccceeeeeeens

Notes :
1)  Figures in brackets represent cash outflow.

2012 2011

T in crores T in crores T in crores

1,471.80 1,086.76

83.07 46.23

0.25 -

0.17 1.04

(4.72) (1.55)

61.04 60.20

(48.79) (56.77)

(31.05) (25.82)

0.30 -

..................... (489.94) (426.81)
(69.54)

(509.43) (473.02)

..................... 962.37 613.74
3,865.68 2,903.31

2,903.31 2,289.57

962.37 613.74

..................... 0.37 0.29
..................... 133.43 154.76
..................... 2,065.60 1,858.61
38.32 38.81

22.38 20.62

..................... 2,260.10 2,073.09
..................... 0.07 0.09
2,260.17 2,073.18

(38.32) (38.81)

100.00 100.00

..................... 1,543.83 768.94
3,865.68 2,903.31

2) Direct taxes paid are freated as arising from operating activities and are not bifurcated between investing and financing activities.

3) These balances are not available for use by the Company as they represent corresponding unpaid dividend liabilities and unclaimed
sale proceeds of odd lot shares belonging to the shareholders of erstwhile ACEL and ACRL.

Significant accounting policies - Note 2

The accompanying notes are infegral part of the consolidated financial statements.
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1.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

(A) Basis of preparation of financial statements :
i. The financial statements have been prepared in compliance with all material aspects with the Accounting Standards notified by

Co

mpanies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006 (as amended) and the relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 1956.

ii. Financial statements are based on historical cost and are prepared on accrual basis.

ii. Accounting policies have been consistently applied by the Company and are consistent with those used in the previous year and
except for the changes in accounting policy stated in 1(B).

iv. The preparation of financial statement in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires management to make
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent liabilities at the
date of financial statements and the results of operations during the reporting period end. Although these estimates are based upon
management’s best knowledge of current events and actions, actual result could differ from these estimates.

(B) Change in accounting policy :

During the year, the Company has retrospectively changed its method of providing depreciation on fixed assets pertaining fo its Captive
Power Plants from the ‘Straight Line” to the ‘Written Down Value’ at the rates prescribed in Schedule XIV to the Companies Act, 1956. This

change
in which

results in more appropriate presentation and gives a systematic basis of depreciation charge, representative of the time pattern
the economic benefits flow to the Company. Accordingly, the Company has recognised additional depreciation charge of

% 320.14 crores. Amount relating to earlier years of I 279.13 crores has been disclosed as exceptional item.

Had the

Company continued to use the earlier method of depreciation, profit after tax for the year ended 31 December, 2012 would

have been higher by ¥ 216.27 crores.
(C) Principles of Consolidations :

i. The Subsidiaries and Joint Ventures (which alongwith Ambuja Cements Limited, the parent, constitute the Group) considered in the
preparation of these Consolidated Financial Statements are :

Name of the Company Country of Holding as on Financial year
Incorporation 31.12.2012 31.12.2011 ending

a. Subsidiary :
Kakinada Cements Limited...........cccoovviiiiiinn, India 100.00% 100.00% 31.12.2012
M.G.T. Cements Private Limited... India 99.99% 99.99% 31.12.2012
Chemical Limes Mundwa Private Limited India 99.99% 99.99% 31.12.2012
Dang Cement Industries Private Limited..............cc.oove. Nepal 91.63% 85.00% 156.07.2012
Dirk Indlia Private Limited..........coooiiiii, India 80.00% 60.00% 31.03.2012
Dirk Pozzocrete (MP) Private Limited..........c.ccooeviiiininn, India 80.00% 60.00% 31.03.2012

(a 100% subsidiary of Dirk India Private Limited)

b. Joint Venture :
Wardha Vaalley Coal Fields Private Limited.......... India 27.27% 27.27% 31.03.2012
Counto Microfine Products Private Limited.................... India 50.00% 50.00% 31.03.2012

ii. The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been prepared on the following basis :

Q.

The Consolidated Financial Statements of the Group are prepared in accordance with Accounting Standard - 21 “*Consolidated
Financial Statements”, Accounting Standard - 23 “Accounting for Investments in Associates in Consolidated Financial
Statements” and Accounting Standard - 27 “Financial Reporting of Interests in Joint Ventures” as notified by Companies
(Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006 (as amended).

The financial statements of the Company and its Subsidiary Companies have been consolidated on a line-by-line basis by
adding together the book value of like items of assets, liabilities, income and expenses, after eliminating intra-group balances
and infra-group fransactions and unrealised profits or unrealised losses.

The financial statements of the Company and its Joint Ventures have been consolidated using the proportionate consolidation
method.

In cases where the financial year of Subsidiary and Joint Venture Companies is different from that of the Company, the
financial statements of the said companies have been drawn up so as to be aligned with the financial year of the Company.

The Consolidated Financial Statements have been prepared using uniform accounting poalicies for like fransactions and other
events in similar circumstances and are presented, to the extent possible, in the same manner as the Company’s Standalone
Financial Statements.

The excess of cost of investment in the Subsidiary and Joint Venture Companies over the Company’s portion of equity of the
Subsidiary and Joint Venture at the date of investment made is recognised in the financial statements as goodwill. This goodwill
is tested for impairment at the close of each financial year. The excess of Company’s portion of equity of the Subsidiary and
Joint Venture over the cost of the investment therein is freated as Capital Reserve.

The financial statements of an infegral foreign operation are translated as if the fransactions of the foreign operation have
been those of the Company itself. For non-integral foreign operation, the assets and liabilities are tfranslated at the closing
rate. Income and expense items of the non-integral foreign operation are translated at exchange rates at the dates of the
fransactions and all resulting exchange differences are accumulated in a foreign currency franslation reserve on consolidation
until the disposal of the net investment.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Contd.)

2.

Significant accounting policies :

a)

b)

<)

d)

Fixed Assets :

Fixed Assets are stated at their original cost of acquisition / installation (net of Modvat / Cenvat credit availed), net of accumulated
depreciation, amortisation and impairment losses, except freehold non mining land which is carried at cost less impairment losses.

ii. Capital work in progress is stated at the amount expended up to the date of Balance Sheet.

Machinery spares which can be used only in connection with a particular item of fixed asset and the use of which is iregular, are
capitalised at cost net of Modvat / Cenvat.

Expenditure during construction period (including financing cost relating to borrowed funds for construction or acquisition of
qualifying fixed assets) incurred on projects under implementation are treated as Pre-operative expenses, pending allocation to the
assets, and are included under “"Capital Work in Progress”. These expenses are apportioned to fixed assefs on commmencement of
commercial production.

Depreciation and Amortisation :
i Tangible Assefts:

I. Premium on leasehold land is amortised over the period of lease.

Il. Depreciation on assets, other than Vehicles and Captive Power Plant related assets consisting of Building, Plant and Machinery
and Electric Installation (CPP assets), is provided on the “Straight Line Method” in accordance with the provisions of Section
205(2)(b) of the Companies Act, 1956, and on Vehicles and CPP assets on the “Written Down Value Method” in accordance
with the provisions of Section 205(2)(a) of the Companies Act, 1956, in the manner and at the rates specified in Schedule
XV to the Companies Act, 1956, except in respect of certain assets at higher rates consequent to management estimate of
useful life. Continuous process plants, are identified based on technical assessment and depreciated at the specified rate as
per Schedule XIV to the Companies Act, 1956. Depreciation on additions to fixed assets is provided on a pro-rata basis from
the date of acquisition or installation, and in the case of a new project, from the date of commencement of commercial
production. Depreciation on assets sold, discarded, demolished or scrapped, is provided upto the date on which the said
asset is sold, discarded, demolished or scrapped.

In respect of an asset for which impairment loss is recognised, depreciation is provided on the revised carrying amount of the
assets over its remaining useful life.

lIl. Machinery spares, which are capitalized, are depreciated over the useful life of the related fixed asset. The written down value
of such spares is charged to the statement of profit and loss, on issue for consumption.

IV. Cost of mineral reserve embedded in the cost of freehold mining land is depreciated in proportion of the actual quantity of
minerals extracted to the estimated quantity of extractable mineral reserves.

V. Fixed assets, constructed by the Company, but ownership of which belongs to Govemnment / Local Authorities :

a) Expenditure on Power Lines, ownership of which belongs to the state electricity boards, is amortised over the period as
permitted in the Electricity Supply Act, 1948 / 2003 as applicable.

b) Expenditure on Marine Structures, ownership of which belongs to the maritime boards, is amortised over the period of
agreement.

c) Expenditure on other fixed assets, is amortised at the rate of depreciation specified in Schedule XIV to the Companies Act,
1956.

i Infangible Assefts :

|. Expenditure to acquire Water Drawing Rights fromn Government / Local Authorities / other parties is amortised on straight line
method over the period of rights fo use the facilities ranging from ten to thirty years.

Il. Expenditure on computer software is amortised on straight line method over the period of expected benefit not exceeding five
years.

Impairment of assets :

The carrying amounts of assets are reviewed at each Balance Sheet date if there is any indication of impairment based on intfemnal
/ external factors. An impairment loss is recognised wherever the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount is greater of the asset’s net selling price and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money
and risks specific to the assets. A previously recognised impairment loss is increased or reversed depending on changes in circumstances.

Investments :

Recognition and Measurement

Investments that are infended to be held for more than a year, from the date of acquisition, are classified as long-term investments
and are carried at cost. However, provision for diminution in value of investments is made to recognise a decline, other than
temporary, in the value of the investments. Investments other than long-term investments being current investments are valued at
cost or fair value whichever is lower, determined on an individual basis.

Presentation and Disclosure

Investments, which are readily redlisable and infended to be held for not more than one year from balance sheet date, are
classified as current investments. All other investments are classified as non-current investments.
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e)

f)

9)

h)

K)

Inventories :
Inventories are valued as follows :
i. Coal, fuel, packing materials, raw materials, stores and spares :

Lower of cost less provision for slow and non-moving inventory, if any, and net redlisable value. However, materials and other items
held for use in the production of inventories are not written down below cost if the finished products in which they will be incorporated
are expected to be sold af or above cost. Cost is defermined on a moving weighted average basis.

ii. Work-in-progress, finished goods and trial run inventories :

Lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost includes direct materials and labour and a proportion of manufacturing overheads
based on normal operating capacity. Cost of finished goods includes excise duty. Cost is determined on a monthly moving
weighted average basis.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of completion and
estimated costs necessary to make the sale.
Provisions / Contingencies :

A provision is recognised for a present obligation as a result of past events if it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to
settle the obligation and in respect of which a reliable estimate can be made. Provisions are not discounted to its present value and are
determined based on best estimate of the amount required to settle the obligation at the Balance Sheet date. A contingent liability is
disclosed, unless the possibility of an outflow of resources is remote.

Foreign Currency Conversion :

Foreign currency transactions are recorded at the rates of exchange prevailing on the date of fransaction. Foreign curency monetary
items are reported using the closing rate. Non-monetary items which are carried in terms of historical cost denominated in a foreign
currency are reported using the exchange rate at the date of the transaction.

Exchange differences arising on the sefflement of monetary items or on reporting Company’s monetary items at rates different from
those at which they were initially recorded during the year, or reported in previous financial statements, are recognised as income or as
expenses in the year in which they arise.

Revenue recognition :

Revenue is recognised to the extent it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the revenue can be reliably
measured

i. Revenue is recognised when the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods have passed to the buyer. Accordingly,
domestic sales are accounted on dispatch of products to customers and Export sales are accounted on the basis of date of Bill of
Lading. Sales are disclosed net of sales tax / VAT, discounts and retums, as applicable. Sales exclude self consumption of cement.

i. Benefit on account of enfitement to import goods free of duty under the “Duty Enfitlement Pass Book under Duty Exemption
Scheme” is recognised in the year of export.

iii. Sales include the amount of remission and subsidy due in accordance with the respective incentive schemes.

iv. Interest income is recognised on a fime proportion basis taking into account the amount outstanding and the rate applicable.
Dividend income is recognised when right to receive the payment is established by the Balance Sheet date.

Mines Reclamation Expenses :

The Company provides for the expenses to reclaim the quarries used for mining. The total estimate of reclamation expenses is apportioned
over the estimate of mineral reserves and a provision is made based on the minerals exiracted during the year.

Mines reclamation expenses are incurred on an ongoing basis and until the closure of the mine. The actual expenses may vary based
on the nature of reclamation and the estimate of reclamation expenditure.

Employee Benefits :
i. Defined Contribution Plan

Employee benefits in the form of confribution to Superannuation Fund, Provident Fund managed by Government Authorities,
Employees State Insurance Corporation and Labour Welfare Fund are considered as defined contribution plan and the same is
charged to the statement of profit and loss for the year when the contributions o the respective funds are due.

ii. Defined Benefit Plan

Retirement benefits in the form of gratuity, shipping staff gratuity, post retirement medical benefit and death and disability benefit
are considered as defined benefit obligations and are provided for on the basis of an actuarial valuation, using the projected unit
credit method, as at the date of the Balance Sheet. Actuarial gains / losses, if any, are immediately recognised in the statement of
profit and loss.

Employee Benefit, in form of contribution to Provident Fund managed by a Trust set up by the Company, is charged to statement of
profit and loss as and when the contribution is due. The deficit, if any, in the accumulated corpus of the Trust at the period end for
which the Company is liable, is recognised as a provision in the statement of profit and loss.

ii. Other long-term benefits

Long-term compensated absences are provided for on the basis of an actuarial valuation, using the projected unit credit method,
as at the date of the Balance Sheet. Actuarial gains / losses, if any, are immediately recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Miscellaneous Expenditure :

Expenses included under the head ‘Miscellaneous Expenditure” are amortised over the period of estimated future benefits not exceeding
ten years.

Employee Stock Compensation cost :
The Company measures compensation cost relating to employee stock option using the fair value method. Discount on Equity Shares as

AMBUJA CEMENTS LIMITED |100



Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Contd.)

m)

n)

o)

P)

S)]

n

s)

compensation expenses under the Employee Stock Option Scheme, is amortised in accordance with Employee Stock Option Scheme
and Employee Stock Purchase Scheme Guidelines, 1999 issued by Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) and the Guidance Note
on Accounting for Employee Share-based payments, issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

Borrowing Costs and Share Issue Expenses :

i. Borrowing cost aftributable to acquisition and construction of assets that necessarily takes substantial period of time are capitalised
as part of the cost of such assets up to the date when such assets are ready for intended use.

ii. Expenses on issue of Shares, Debentures and Bonds as well as Premium on Redemption of Debentures are adjusted to Securities
Premium Account in accordance with Section 78 of the Companies Act, 1956.

iii. Borrowing cost such as discount or premium and ancillary costs in connection with arrangement of borrowings, are amortised over
the period of borrowings.

iv. Other borrowing costs are charged as expense in the year in which these are incurred.
Taxation :

Tax expense comprises of current and deferred tax. Current income tax is measured at the amount expected to be paid to the tax
authorities in accordance with the Income-tax Act, 1961. Deferred income tax reflects the impact of current year timing differences
between taxable income and accounting income for the year and reversal of timing differences of earlier years. Deferred tax is measured
based on the tax rates and the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted af the balance sheet date. Deferred tax assets are recognised
only to the extent there is reasonable certainty that sufficient future taxable income will be available against which these assets can be
realised in future whereas in case of existence of carry forward of losses or unabsorbed depreciation, deferred tax assets are recognised
only if there is virtual certainty of realisation backed by convincing evidence.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date. The Company writes-down the carrying amount
of a deferred tax asset to the extent that it is no longer reasonably certain or virtually certain, as the case may be, that sufficient future
taxable income will be available against which deferred tax asset can be realised. Any such write-down is reversed to the extent that it
becomes reasonably certain or virtually certain, as the case may be, that sufficient future taxable income will be available.

Leases :
Where the Company is the lessee

Leases where the lessor effectively retains substantially all the risks and benefits of ownership of the leased item, are classified as operating
leases. Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense in the statement of profit and loss on a straight-line basis over the lease
tferm.

Where the Company is the lessor

i. Assets given under finance lease are recognised as a receivable at an amount equal fo the net investment in the lease. Lease
rentals are apportioned between principal and interest on the Intemal rate of retum (IRR) method. The principal amount received
reduces the net investment in the lease and inferest is recognized as revenue. Initial direct costs such as legal costs, brokerage
costs, etc. are recognised immediately in the statement of profit and loss.

ii. Assets subject to operating leases are included in fixed assets. Lease income is recognised in the statement of profit and loss on a
straight-line basis over the lease term. Costs, including depreciation, are recognised as an expense in the statement of profit and
loss. Initial direct costs such as legal costs, brokerage costs, efc. are recognised immediately in the statfement of profit and loss.

Segment Reporting Policies :
i. Ildentification of segments

The Company has only one business segment ‘Cementitious Materials” as its primary segment. The analysis of geographical
segment is based on the areas in which major operating divisions of the Company operate.

ii. Segment Policies

The Company prepares its segment information in conformity with the accounting policies adopted for preparing and presenting
the financial statements of the Company as a whole.

Cash and Bank balances :
i. Cash and Bank balances in the Balance Sheet comprise cash at bank including fixed deposits, cheques in hand and cash in hand.

i. Cash and cash equivalents for the purposes of cash flow statement comprise cash at bank and in hand and short-term investments
with an original maturity of three months or less.

Government grants and subsidies :

i. Grants and subsidies from the Government are recognised when there is reasonable certainty that the grant / subsidy will be
received and all attaching conditions will be complied with.

i. When the grant or subsidy relates to an expense item, it is recognised as income over the periods necessary to match them on a
systematic basis to the costs, which it is infended to compensate.

i. Where the grant or subsidy relates to an asset, its value is deducted from the gross value of the asset concerned in arriving at the
carrying amount of the related asset.

iv. Government grants of the nature of Promoters’ contribution are credited to capital reserve and treated as a part of Shareholders’
Funds.

Earnings Per Share :

Basic eamnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders by the weighted
average number of equity shares outstanding during the period.

For the purpose of calculating diluted eamings per share, the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders and the
weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.
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3.

As at As at
31.12.2012 31.12.2011
T in crores T in crores
Share capital
Authorised
2,500,000,000 (previous year - 2,500,000,000) Equity shares of T2 each .........cccovviviiiiiiiiiiinnn, 500.00 500.00
150,000,000 (previous year - 150,000,000) Preference shares of I 10 €0Ch ......cccovviiiiiiiiiiiiiiiinenn, 150.00 150.00
TOMAL 650.00 650.00
Issued
1,542,510,956 (previous year - 1,534,695,781) Equity shares of ¥ 2 each fully paid-up ...........c.ce.... 308.51 306.94
Subscribed and fully paid up
1,542,184,436 (previous year - 1,5634,369,261) Equity shares of ¥ 2 each fully paid-up ............cc.e.. 308.44 306.87
Additional information :
a) Reconciliation of equity shares outstanding
As at 31.12.2012 Asat 31.12.2011
No. of shares T in crores No. of shares < in crores
Af the beginning of the year ..., 1,534,369,261 306.87 1,529,859,086 305.97
Add : Issued against Employee Stock Option Schemes (ESOS)...... 7,815,175 1.57 4,510,175 0.90
Atthe end Of the Year ... 1,542,184,436 308.44  1,5634,369,261 306.87

b)

C

d

e

f)

~—

~

~—

Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to equity shares

The Company has one class of equity shares having a par value of ¥ 2 per share. Each shareholder is entitled to one vote per equity
share. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General
Meeting, except in case of interim dividend. In the event of liquidation of the Company, the equity shareholders are eligible to receive
remaining assets of the Company, after distribution of all preferential amounts, in proportion to their shareholding.

As at As at
31.12.2012 31.12.2011
T in crores T in crores

Equity shares held by holding company, ultimate holding company and their subsidiaries

i) Holderind Investments Limited, Mauritius (HIL), the holding company

629,638,433 (previous year - 621,032,990) equity shares of ¥ 2 each fully paid-up................o... 125.93 124.21
i Holcim India Private Limited (HIPL)*

150,670,120 (previous year - 150,670,120) equity shares of ¥ 2 each fully paid-up................c..... 30.13 30.13

Details of equity shares held by shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company
As at 31.12.2012 As at 31.12.2011

% holding in % holding in

No. of shares the class No. of shares the class

i) Holderind Investments Limited, Maurifius...............ccocovniinn, 629,638,433 40.83% 621,032,990 40.47%

i) Holcim India Private Limited™ ..........cccccooiiviiiiiiiii, 150,670,120 9.77% 150,670,120 9.82%

i) Life Insurance Corporation of INAiQ ..o, 67,525,555 4.38% 126,103,426 8.22%

As per the records of the Company, including its register of shareholders / members and other declarations received from shareholders
regarding beneficial interest, the above shareholding represent both legal and beneficial ownership of shares.

Outstanding employee stock options exercisable info 10,165,025 (previous year - 18,591,025) equity shares of ¥ 2 each fully paid up
(Refer note 33 (b)).

Outstanding tfradable warrants and right shares kept in abeyance exercisable into 186,690 (previous year - 186,690) and 139,830
(previous year - 139,830) equity shares of ¥ 2 each fully paid-up respectively.

*Ason 31.12.2011, equity shares were held by erstwhile Ambuja Cement India Private Limited, subsidiary of HIL, since amalgamated
with HIPL. HIL and HIPL are subsidiaries of Holcim Limited, Switzerland, the ultimate holding company (Refer note 36).
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T in crores

As at As at
31.12.2012 31.12.2011
T in crores T in crores

Reserves and surplus
Subsidies :

a) Cash subsidies fromn Government and other authorities

Balance as per the last financial StAtemMENTS.........vvi 4.83
Addition during the year, as capital investment subsidy from State Government ..... 0.30

5.13

b)  Grant-in-aid subsidy from DANIDA ... ...coiiiiii e 0.12

Capital reserve

Capital redempPlioN IESEIVE ........cciiiiiiiieiiicee et e e e s e e s e e e ranaan s

Securities premium account :

Balance as per the last financial STatemMENts ..., 1,293.04
Add : employee stock options exercised dunng the Year...........cocceiiiiiiiii, 81.50
Add : fransferred from employee stock options outstaNding ..., 7.79
Employee stock option outstanding :
Balance as per the last financial Statements ..., 32.11
Less : transferred o securities premium account on exercise of employee stock
O ONS 1111t 7.79
Less : transferred to general reserve on lapse of employee stock OptioNs............ovw.. 0.46
General reserve :
Balance as per the last financial Statements ..., 5,686.70
Add : fransferred from surplus balance in the statement of profit and 10ss ................. 200.00
Add : fransferred from employee stock options outstanding for lapsed employee stock
O IONS 1ttt 0.46
Surplus in the statement of profit and loss :
Balance as per the last financial Statements ..., 598.72
Profit fOr The YEAI ... 1,293.21
Less : appropriations
Provision for dividend distribution tax written Back.............ccceeiii -
Consequent to change in group’s INTErest ..., 0.96
Interim equity dividend X 1.40 per equity share (previous year - 1.40 per equity
SNIATE) ..ttt ettt ettt (215.52)
Tax on above equity AIVIAENA ..vvvvviiiiiii (34.96)
Proposed final equity dividend ¥ 2.20 per equity share (previous year - ¥ 1.80
PEN E€QUITY SNATE) .11ttt (339.28)
Tax on proposed equity AIVIAENA ...........oiviiiiiiii (565.04)
Transfer 1O GeNErAl TESEIVE ..........vviiiiiii (200.00)
(843.84)
TOTAL o
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4.83

4.83

0.12

5.25 4.95
132.35 132.35
9.93 9.93

1,244.78

45.33

2.93

1,382.33 1,293.04

35.04

2,93

23.86 32.11

4,986.70
700.00

5,887.16 5,686.70
640.44
1,227.74

0.83

(214.50)
(34.80)

(276.19)
(44.80)
(700.00)
(1,269.46)

1,048.09 598.72

8,488.97 7,757.80
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5. Long-term borrowings
Term loans
Secured
Term loan from a bank (Refer note (Q) below).........cccvviiviiiiinn,
Deferred payment liabilities
Unsecured

Sales tax deferment loan under sales tax incentive scheme of State
Government (Refer note (D) PEIOW). .. ...

Share in joint ventures .
L

The above amounts includes
SeCUred DOMOWINGS ....voiviiiiiiiiiis
Unsecured DOMOWINGS. .. .viiiiiiiiiiiiii

Amount disclosed under the head “Other current liabilities”
(Refer NOte T0O.2) wivviiiiiiiiiiiiiiii

Share in joint ventures
NET AMOUNT .
Note

Non-current Current
As at As at As at As at
31.12.2012 31.12.2011 31.12.2012 31.12.2011
T in crores T in crores T in crores T in crores
1.13 3.84 2.55 3.85
34.63 42.80 8.18 6.56
35.76 46.64 10.73 10.41
3.56 4.09 - -
39.32 50.73 10.73 10.41
1.13 3.84 2.55 3.85
34.63 42.80 8.18 6.56
- - (10.73) (10.41)
35.76 46.64 - -
3.56 4.09 - -
39.32 50.73 - -

a) Term loans from a bank carries floating inferest @ 13% p.a. The loan is secured against certain assets of a subsidiary, repayable in
monthly installments in varying amounts from ¥ 0.05 crore to ¥ 0.15 crore upto March 2015.

b) Sales tax deferment loan is interest free and payable in 10 annual installiments starting from April 2007 of varying amount from

T 1.52 crores to ¥ 13.23 crores.

6. Deferred tax liabilities (net)
Deferred tax liabilities, on account of :

Depreciation aNd AmMOMISATION ...

Deferred tax assets, on account of :

EMNPIOYEE DENETIS L.ttt
Provision for sSlow and NON MOVING SPAIES .......vvviiiiiiiiiiiiiii s
OIS ottt

Net defernred taX IADITIES ... ...

7. Other long-term liabilities
Liabilty for capital expenditure
Total

8. Provisions
Provision for employee benefits
Provision for gratuity and staff benefit schemes ............cccoeiiiins
Provision for compensated ASENCES.........vviviiiiiiin

Other provisions
Provision for wealth tax, net off advanCes ............cccoecvviiiiiiiiiiiiinn,

Provision for Income tax, net off advances (including interest
TNEIEON) L.t

Provision for mines reclamation eXpenses* ...........ccooccvveviiiiinnnns
Proposed equity diVIAENd ..........cooiiiiiiiii
Provision for tax on proposed equity dividend...............ooooeviivivinnns

Share iN JOINT VENTUIES. ....vvvviiiiiii
TOTAL

As at As af
31.12.2012 31.12.2011
T in crores < in crores
656.46 727.56
656.46 727.56
35.47 29.58
21.93 21.97
50.81 31.50
108.21 83.05
548.25 644.51
4.91 3.82
4.91 3.82

Long-term Short-term
As at As at As at As at
31.12.2012 31.12.2011 31.12.2012 31.12.2011
T in crores T in crores T in crores < in crores
10.19 7.68 0.15 0.22
- - 67.57 55.50
10.19 7.68 67.72 55.72
- - 0.36 0.34
- - 956.92 795.91
11.63 10.87 1.26 0.41
- - 339.28 276.19
- - 55.04 44.80
11.63 10.87 1,352.86 1,117.65
21.82 18.55 1,420.58 1,173.37
0.02 0.02 0.01 0.01
21.84 18.57 1,420.59 1,173.38

AMBUJA CEMENTS LIMITED |104



Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Contd.)

As at
31.12.2012

T in crores

As at
31.12.2011

T in crores

8. Provisions (Confd.)
* Movement during the year
OPENING DOIANCE .. e 11.28 11.54
Add : ProviSion dUiNG The YEAT . ......iviiiiiiiii e 2.87 0.53
14.15 12.07
Less 1 UtIliSOtoN AUNG T YA ... ..vviiiiiiic 1.26 0.41
12.89 11.66
Less 1 Reversal dUunNg The YEAI .......viiiiiiiii - 0.38
ClOSING DAIANCE ... 12.89 11.28
Mines reclamation expenses are incurred on an ongoing basis and until the closure of mines. The actual expenses may vary based
on the nature of reclamation and the estimate of reclamation expenses.
As at As at
31.12.2012 31.12.2011
Zin crores Zin crores g in crores
9. Short-term borrowings

Cash credit from a BANK (SECUIEA)™ ....iiiiiiiiiiiiiiii
Loan from a bank

SNAE IN JOINT VENTUIES. 1111t
)

* Cash credit from bank is secured against hypothecation of certain inventory and
receivables of a subsidiary. The cash credit is repayable on demand and carries
interest @ 12% p.a.

10. Trade payables and other current liabilities

10.1 Trade payables

Trade payables (Refer note 35 for details of dues to micro and small enterprises) ...
SNAE IN JOINT VENTUIES. ...

10.2 Other current liabilities

Current maturities of long-ferm POIMTOWING ........ovviviiiiiii
Interest accrued but not due on borrowings
Unclaimed AIVIAENAS™ ......c.viiiiiiiii i

Unclaimed sale proceeds of the odd lot shares belonging to the shareholders
of erstwhile ACEL ANA ACRL* ...

Liability for capital EXPENAITUIS..........uviiiiiiiiiii
SECUNMY AEIPIOSITS ..ttt
INTEIEST PAYAIDIE ...
Advance received from customers ...
Excise duty payable.............ccoeevieiiinns
Service tax payable
TDS POYADIE 1.1ttt
SAIES TAX PAYADIE. ...
OIS 11ttt

* Amount to be transferred to the Investor education and protection fund shall be
determined on the respective due dates.
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7.94 2.39
0.10 3.18
8.04 5.57
2.27 1.93
10.31 7.50
947.30 960.43
1.27 1.056
948.57 961.48
10.73 10.41
0.05 0.10
19.75 17.98
2.63 264
22.38 20.62
60.60 88.67
243.50 224.43
21.99 13.59
68.03 65.79
96.94 96.24
5.20 4.80
8.74 7.63
108.88 96.45
16.66 19.58
1.44 1.22
665.14 649.53
1,613.71 1,611.01
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Contd.)

T in crores

As at As at
31.12.2012 31.12.2011

T in crores < in crores

12. Non-current investments

Unquoted
Trade investments (valued at cost, unless stated otherwise)
In fully paid preference shares :

6.50% redeemable cumulative preference shares of ¥10 each in Counto
Microfine Products Private LIMITed ........cccccviiiiiiiiiie e

Redeemable atf par in 3 years from the date of issue, i.e., 19" May, 2010.
The tenure can be extended by a further period of two years.

Other investments (valued at cost, unless stated otherwise)
Government and trust securities

National savings certificate I 31,500/- (previous year - ¥ 31,500/-) deposited
with Government department as security

In fully paid equity shares :
Equity shares of ¥ 10 each in Gujarat Goldcoin Ceramics Limited................. 1.00
1.00

Less: provision for diminution in value of investment

Public sector bonds

5.13% taxable redeemable bonds of ¥ 1,000,000 each of Himachal Pradesh
Infrastructure Development Bonds, redeemable at par on 30™ April, 2014
(Refer NOtE 30 (B)) ..vvvviiiiiiiiii i

7.50 7.50

1.00
1.00

29.60 29.60

37.10 37.10

Book value as on

31.12.2012 31.12.2011

< in crores < in crores
Aggregate amount of unquoted INVESIMENTS ... 38.10 38.10
Less : aggregate provision for diminution in value of investments............cccccovvinen. 1.00 1.00
TOMAL e 37.10 37.10
Non-current Current
As at As at As at As at
31.12.2012 31.12.2011 31.12.2012 31.12.2011
T in crores % in crores T in crores < in crores
13. Loans and advances
Unsecured, considered good
COPIHAl QAVANCES ... 161.24 88.96 - -
SECUNMY AEPOSIT. ..t 64.91 65.19 - -
Deposit given to Housing Development Finance Corporation
LiMited .o - - 100.00 100.00
Advances recoverable in cash or kind...........ccccviiiniii, 3.18 2.02 63.56 64.08
Other Loans and advances
Balances with Statutory / Governnment authorities ................... 4.54 3.80 52.85 35.69
Incentives receivable under Central / State Government
INCENTIVE SChEMES ... ...iiiiiiiiiii 253.59 227.99 17.68 21.16
LOAN T0 €MPIOYEES ......ceiiiiiiiiiiiii e 3.09 1.12 2.08 2.54
Carried Forward 490.55 389.08 236.17 223.47

AMBUJA CEMENTS LIMITED |107



Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Contd.)

Non-current Current
As at As at As at As at
31.12.2012 31.12.2011 31.12.2012 31.12.2011
< in crores % in crores T in crores g in crores
13. Loans and advances (Confd.)
Brought Forward .............ccoeviiiiiiiniinn 490.55 389.08 236.17 223.47
Surplus of plan assets over plan liabilities of gratuity.............. - - - 1.70
Prepaid EXPENSES. ... iviiiiiiiii e 31.37 29.90 14.08 11.80
Income tax advances (net off Provision)...........cccooviiinnns 119.42 85.20 - -
641.34 504.18 250.25 236.97
Unsecured, considered doubitful
COPHAl AAVANCES ... 3.21 2.96 - -
Incentive receivable under Central / State Government incentive
SCNIEIMNIE L.t 31.84 - - -
Advances recoverable in cash or KiINd...........ccccooviiiiiiiiiiiiiin, - - 9.26 9.88
35.05 2.96 9.26 9.88
Provision for doubtful adVaNCes ..., (35.05) (2.96) (9.26) (9.88)
641.34 504.18 250.25 236.97
Share in joiNt VENTUIES. ... 0.05 0.12 0.66 0.67
TOTAL 1o 641.39 504.30 250.91 237.64
14. Trade receivables and other assets
14.1 Trade receivables
Outstanding for a period exceeding six months from the date they
are due
Secured, considered QOO ...........oiiiviiiiiiiii - - 0.33 0.28
Unsecured, considered gOOd .........cuviiiiiiiiiiiii s - - 1.95 1.80
Unsecured, considered doubtful...........cooivviviiiiiiin - - 7.40 7.14
- - 9.68 9.22
Provision for doubtful receivables..............cov - - (7.40) (7.14)
- - 2.28 2.08
Others
Secured, considered QOO ...........oiiiiiiiiiiii - - 83.35 85.49
Unsecured, considered gOOd .......covvviviiiiiiiiiii - - 133.61 1569.35
- - 216.96 244.84
- - 219.24 246.92
Share iN JOINT VENTUIES. ... ... - - 1.30 0.84
TOTAL 1o - - 220.54 247.76
14.2 Other assets
Unsecured, considered good unless stated otherwise
Non-current bank balance (Refernote 17) ..., 10.70 2.15 - -
Interest accrued on fixed AEPOSIT ...vvvvviiiiiii - - 22.97 18.20
Interest accrued on INVESTMENTS ... .vvvvvivii - - 1.02 1.02
Deferred revenue expenditure to the extent not adjusted written
O 1ttt - - - 0.27
Scrapped assets awaiting disposal (at net book value or estimated
net redlisable value whichever is less) - - 0.82 0.84
OFNEIS 1ottt - - 5.55 3.49
10.70 2.15 30.36 23.82
Share iN JoINT VENTUIES. ... ... 0.04 0.04 - -
TOTAL 1o 10.74 2.19 30.36 23.82
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15. Current investments

Current investments (valued at lower of cost and fair value, unless
stated otherwise) :

Unquoted :

As at
31.12.2012

T in crores

As at
31.12.2011

T in crores

In units of MutuAl fuNAS fUlY PAIA UD .o 1,543.83 768.94
TO A et 1,543.83 768.94
16. Inventories
(At cost, less provision for slow and non moving inventory and net realisable value whichever is lower)
Raw materials (including in fransit - ¥ 2.08 crores; previous year - I 0.99 Crore).........cccccvvvivvniinnn, 53.84 45.48
WOTK-IN-POTOGIESS ..ttt 303.04 161.67
FINISNEA GOOMTS .11t 145.30 85.77
Stores and spares (including in transit - ¥ 8.51 crores; previous year - T 3.35 Crores).........ccvovivvveienns 228.73 238.55
Coal and fuel (including in transit T 5.11 crores; previous year - T 71.78 CIOres).......c.coovviiiiviinienn, 240.48 381.11
Packing materials (including in fransit - ¥ 0.60 crore; previous year - T Nil) 14.52 14.35
985.91 926.93
SNAIE IN JOINT VENTUIES. .11ttt a1 e e et et e bbbt e e e e e e e e e e ne s 1.02 0.83
TORAL 986.93 927.76
Non-current Current
As at As at As at As at
31.12.2012 31.12.2011 31.12.2012 31.12.2011
T in crores T in crores T in crores T in crores
17. Cash and bank balances
Cash and cash equivalents
Balances with bank :
IN CUIMENT ACCOUNTS ... 133.43 154.76
Deposit with original maturity upto 3 months ... 2,065.60 1,858.61
2,199.03 2,013.37
CASN ON NANA.... i 0.37 0.29
Earmarked balances With DANKS ... 22.38 20.62
2,221.78 2,034.28
Other bank balances :
Fixed deposit with banks *
Original maturity more than 3 months and upto 12 months.. - - 37.79 30.65
Original maturity more than 12 months..........cocvinnnn 10.70 2.15 0.53 8.16
10.70 2.15 2,260.10 2,073.09
Amount disclosed under non-current asset (Refer note 14.2) ........ (10.70) (2.15) - -
- - 2,260.10 2,073.09
Share iN JOINT VENTUIES. ..vvvvviiiiiriic e 0.04 0.04 0.07 0.09
Amount disclosed under non-current asset (Refer note 14.2) ........ (0.04) (0.04) - -
TOMAD i - - 2,260.17 2,073.18
* Margin money deposits given as security against bank guarantees
and others.
2012 2011

18. Other operating revenues
SAIE Of POWET ..ttt
Provision no longer required ...
Sale of SCrap.......ccoeevviiiinns
MISCEIIANEOUS INCOMIE ...ttt 111t

SNAME IN JOINT VENTUIES. ...t
Total
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T in crores

Tin crores

2.55 8.12
19.78 7.93
17.53 18.25
15.58 15.66
55.44 49.96

0.05 -
55.49 49.96
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19. Otherincome
Interest income on
BANK AEPOSITS ...
Long-term investments....
Income tax refund ....
OB NI 11ttt

Discounting income 0N SAIESs TOX IOON ......viiiiiiiiiiiiii
Profit on sale of current investments...
Profit 0N sAle Of fIXEA QSSETS.....iiiiiiiiiiiiiii
INSUIGAINCE CIOIMIS ..ttt
BT 11ttt

SNAME IN JOINT VENTUIES. ...t
TO QI

20. Cost of raw materials consumed (Refer note 45)
OPENING STOCK 1.ttt
A PUICNIGSES. ...t
LeSS: ClOSING STOCK .....viiiiiiiiii i

Share in joint ventures
TO QL

Break-up of raw materials consumed

Total

21. Changes in inventories of finished goods and work-in-progress
Closing stock :
WOTIK-IN-Progress = CHNKET ..vvvviiiiiiiiii
WOrIK-IN-Progress - OIS, ......iiiiiiiiiii
FINISNEA GOOAS ...t

Opening stock :
WOTK-IN-Progress = CHINKET ..uvvviiiiiiiiii
WOTIK-IN-Progress - OIS, ....uiiiiiiiii
FINISNEA GOOTS ...t

Stock on acquisition of subsidiary
FINISNEA GOOTS .. .vvviiiiiiiiii i

Share in joint ventures
TOTAL et

22. Employee benefits expense
SQIAMES ANA WOGES 1.t
Contribution to provident and other fuNd.. ... ..,
Employee compensation expenses under ESOS (Refer note 33(d), 33(e) and 44)....
STOff WEIFAIE EXDENSES ...

Share in joint ventures
TO QL

23. Freight and forwarding expenses (Refer note 45)
On infernal MAterial TTANSTE ..o
ON fINISNEA PIOAUCTS .11

SNAME IN JOINT VENTUIES. ...t
TOTAD e
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2012
T in crores

2011
T in crores

145.30

85.77

204.60 146.57
1.52 1.52
23.80 3.83
3.67 3.46
23359 ~ 155.38

15.96 15.78

71.89 59.16

1.71 12.24

11.66 5.18

13.69 -

348.50 247.74

0.02 0.02

348.52 247.76

45.48 52.46

687.97 572.53

53.84 45.48

679.61 579.51

1.62 0.64

681.23 580.15

305.92 221.06

236.20 200.19

137.49 158.26

679.61 579.51

1.62 0.64

681.23 580.15

283.08 139.29
19.96 22.38
85.77

448.34 247.44

139.29 203.39
22.38 25.86
74.95

247.44 304.20

- 0.23

(200.90) 56.99

0.07 0.03

(200.83) 57.02

411.97 363.79

45.71 35.60

- 9.45

29.72 26.74

487.40 435.58

0.54 0.27

487.94 435.85

584.35 480.69

1,715.30 1,457.91

2,299.65 1,938.60

0.12 0.09

2,299.77 1,938.69
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24.

25.

26.

27.

Finance costs
Interest :
ON TEIMN IOOINS 1.1

On Income tax (net off interest income on refund X 26.81 crores; previous year
-3 15.50 crores)

(10T £ PP PP

Share in joint ventures
Total

Depreciation and amortisation expense
Depreciation on tangible assets (Refer note 11(q))
Amortisation ON INTANGIDIE ASSETS ... .viiiiiiiiii i

SNAE IN JOINT VENTUIES. 1111t
O Al e

Other expenses

ROYAIMY QGNA CESS ...ttt

Stores and SPArES CONSUMIEA .....vioiiiviiiiiiiiie ettt

Provision for slow and non MoviNg SPArES (NE1)......ccivviiieiiii

Packing materials consumed

Mines reclamation expenses

Repairs and maintenance :
BUIIING et
Plant and machinery
OFNEIS ettt

Excise duty (Refer note 40) :
Excise duty on captive consumption of CINKET ..........cccveviiiiiiiii
Excise duty variation on opening / ClosiNg STOCK ..o

Rates and taxes :
RATES ANA TAXES ...t
Wealth tax
Entry tax, additional tax and purchase 1aX €1C...........ccoooiiiiiiiiiiiiii

INSUIOINCE L.t
Legal and professional fees (Refer Note 42) ..o,
DireCtors’ fees ANA EXPENSES ......o.vviiiiiiiiii s
Commission to non-executive directors....
Advertisement and publicity ....................
Commission ON SAIES ..........ovvees
Discount on sales..............oovvne.
Selling and distribution expenses.....
Exchange rate difference (nef) ...
DONATONS 1ttt
Loss on assets sold, discarded and written off (Refernote 41) ...,
Bad debts, sundry debit balances and claims written off
Provision for doubtful debts and advances (net) (Refer note 47).........cccvviiiiiinnn,
Deferred revenue expenditure, written Off .........ccccoiiiiiii
Miscellaneous expenses (Refer NOte 42) ...,

SNAE IN JOINT VENTUIES. ...vviiiiii
TOMAL et
Exceptional items

Depreciation on tangible assets (Refer note 1(B)).......cocvvvivviiiiiiiiiiii,
Employee compensation expenses under ESOS (Refer note 33(d), 33(e) and 44)....
TO Al
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2012
T in crores

2011
T in crores

37.74

16.36

10.96

0.07 0.30
39.72 24.06
28.69

77.53 53.05

0.93 0.39

78.46 53.44

566.38 435.60

1.48 10.21

567.86 445 81

0.82 0.39

568.68 446.20

142.29 127.63

327.89 305.67

- 6.67

342.06 288.15

2.87 0.15

4.09 7.91
136.68 126.29
15.45

157.13 — 149.65

44.58 51.98
2.90

55.54 54.88

28.84 25.66

9.14 4.45
0.18 0.17
8.27 12.56
17.59 17.18

26.43 23.27

77.50 88.95

0.27 0.19

1.86 1.71

90.32 76.04

23.27 22.59

45.71 69.74

16.76 17.55

2.59 2.31

40.09 32.65

8.83 20.89

1.57 2.36

31.73 1.08

0.27 0.19

282.00 249.67

1,723.41 1,584.83

2.68 0.88

1,726.09 1,685.71

279.13 -

- 24.25

279.13 24.25




Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Conta.)

28. Earnings per equity share (EPS) :
Profit affributable to equity shareholders for basic and diluted EPS ............cccooeiiiiiiiiiiiiiinininnn,

U

(i)

(i)

Weighted average number of equity shares for DAsiC EPS............ccccoviii

Add : Potential equity shares on exercise of Option Of ESOS...........cooiiiiiiiiiiiiiiii i

Add : Potential equity shares on exercise of rights and warrants kept in abeyance out of the
OIS ISSUE 1N TOD2. ..ttt

Weighted average number of shares for dilufed EPS ...

Nominal value Of €@QUITY SNAME ......viiiiiii i
(iv) Eamnings per equity share :

29. Segment reporting :

The Company has only one business segment ‘Cementitious Materials” as primary segment. The

secondary segment is geographical, which is given as under :
Revenue from operations

(@

o)

(1)

(i)

Outside India

Outside India

Sale of products (Net off excise duty)
Within India ...

Other operating revenue
Within India ...

2012
T in crores

2011
T in crores

1,293.21 1,227.74

Nos. Nos.
1,537,900,433 1,531,526,874
4,554,733 4,718,193
278,802 261,677
1,542,733,968 1,536,506,744
4 4

2.00 2.00

8.41 8.02

8.38 7.99

2012 2011

T in crores

T in crores

9,659.36 8,410.53
73.13 108.27
9,732.49 8,518.80
7.05 2.23
9,739.54 8,5621.03
55.25 47.99
0.19 1.97
55.44 49.96
0.05 -
55.49 49.96

All the assets of the Company, except the investments , frade receivables and loans and advances amounting to ¥ 32.22 crores
(previous year - ¥ 45.28 crores), including share in joint venture ¥ 0.12 crore (previous year - ¥ 0.01 crore) are within India.
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30. (A)

(B)

Contingent liabilities and commitments (fo the extent not provided for)

U]

(m

Contingent liabilities

(@)

(o)

(c)

Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debts

(i)  Disputed liability relating 1o Iabour MAOHErS... ...
(i) FOr acqUISIION Of IONA. ...uiviiiiiiii e
) OHNBIS ..ottt ettt ettt ettt et ettt
Guarantees

Guarantees given on behalf of a joint venture COMPANY.........coocvviiiiis
Other matters for which the company is contingently liable

(i)  Tox matters

(a) Disputed liability in respect of Income-tax demands (including interest) -
MAHErS UNAET QPPREAL .. iiiiiiiiieie e

(o) Disputed Sales-tax demands (including inferest and penailty)

(c) Disputed Excise demands - matters under appeadl....
(d) Disputed Customs demands - matters under appedl ...
(e) Disputed liabilities of RTO Tax on mining machinery ...
(f)  Disputed Land taX AeMANGS. ..ot

(i) Disputed liabilities relating to railway freight on cement - matter once decided in
favour of the Company by the Honourable High Court of Gujarat was remanded
back by the Honourable Supreme Court pursuant to a Special Leave Petition filed
DY e TQIWAYS ..

(i) Disputed liabilities relating fo coal claims- matters pending in the Honourable
High Court :

(@) Railway freight ON COQL......vviiiiiiii i
(b) Penal freight on excess weight Of COQl... ...
(€) Inferest on PremMium ON COAl w.iviiiiiiiiiii

(iv)  The Competition Commission of India issued an order dated 20™ June, 2012, imposing
penalty oncertain cementmanufacturers, including the Company, conceming alleged
contravention of the provisions of the Competition Act, 2002, andimposed a penalty of
¥ 1,163.91 crores on the Company. The Company has filed an appeal against
the said order with the appropriate authority, which is pending for disposal. .........

(V) OIS it

In respect of items above, future cash outflows in respect of contingent liabilities are
determinable only on receipt of judgements / decisions pending at various forums /
authorities.

Commitments

Estimated amount of confracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not
provided for (Net Of AAVANCES) .......viiiiiiiiiiiii

SNAE IN JOINT VENTUIES .11ttt

The Honourable High Court of Himachal Pradesh has passed an order in favour of the Company
for its claim in respect of power subsidy in the form of Power Tariff Freeze (PTF) and Peak Load
Exemption Charges (PLEC). Against this, Government of Himachal Pradesh on 15 May, 2004 has
issued 296, 5.13% H P Infrastructure Development Bonds of face value of ¥ 10 lacs each, having
a value of ¥ 29.60 crores redeemable after 10 years and balance of ¥ 0.08 crore was refunded
to the Company.

The Government of Himachal Pradesh has filed Special Leave Petition in the Honourable Supreme
Court against the decision of the Honourable High Court of Himachal Pradesh. The Company
has given an undertaking to refund ¥ 29.68 crores paid by the State Government together with
interest thereon upto the date of final judgement in time bound manner, in the event that the
matter is decided against the COMPDONY. ... .iiiiiiiiiii i

AMBUJA CEMENTS LIMITED 113

As at As at
31.12.2012 31.12.2011
T in crores g in crores
18.95 17.25
67.03 64.77
34.74 22.66
3.67 3.67
5.37 65.49
16.24 16.31
27.81 23.97

- 0.52

0.80 0.80
14.38 16.38
7.65 7.38
1.60 1.60
0.24 0.24
3.29 3.29
1,163.91 -
- 5.61
680.87 326.86
0.10 0.10
29.68 29.68
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31.

As at As at
31.12.2012 31.12.2011
T in crores T in crores
(C) The Government of Rajasthan has granted 75% exemption from Sales Tax in respect of Rabriyawas
unit. However, the eligibility of exemption in excess of 25% has been contested by the State
Government in a similar matter of another company and the matter is pending before the
Honourable Supreme Court. The Company has given an undertaking to the Government of
Rajasthan that the Company will deposit the differential amount of Sales tax, in case the Supreme
Court’s decision goes against in the matter referred above. ............cc 82.16 82.16
(D) Wit petition filed against the order of Madhya Pradesh State Mining Department demanding
% 4.76 crores excluding interest of % 1.13 crores towards payment of additional royalty on limestone
based on the ratio of 1.6 tonnes of limestone to 1 tonne of cement produced at its factory in
Chhattisgarh. The matter is now pending before Honourable High Court at Bilaspur. ..................... 85.02 69.58
Related party disclosure :
(A) Names of the related parties where control exists : Nature of relationship
(i) Holcim Limited, SWitzerland...........ccccovviiiiii, Ultimate holding company
(i)  Holderfin BV, Netherlands ............ccociiiiiiiiiin Infermediate holding company
(i) Holderind Investments Limited, MAuritius...........ccccceiviiiininnnn, Holding company
(B) Others-with whom fransactions have taken place during the year
(i) Names of other related parties Nature of relationship
(@) ACC Concrete Limited, INdiQ..........cccoviiviiiiiiiiins Fellow subsidiary (merged with ACC Limited w.e.f. 01.01.2012)
(b)  ACC Limited, INAIQ.......coooiiiiiiiiiii Fellow subsidiary
(c)  Holcim (India) Private Limited, INAid ..., Fellow subsidiary
(d)  Bulk Cement Corporation (India) Limited, India............ Fellow subsidiary
(e)  Holcim (Lanka) Limited, Sri Lanka..........ccocvviiiiiinninnnn, Fellow subsidiary
() Holcim Malaysia SDN BHD, MalQySia .....vvvvvviiireeeeienienn, Fellow subsidiary
(@) Holcim (Vietnam) Limited, Vietnam............ccocoeevviinnn, Fellow subsidiary

(h)  Holcim Environment Services SA, Belgium....... ...  Fellow subsidiary

i) Holcim Group Support Limited, Switzerland..... Fellow subsidiary
0] Holcim Philippines Inc. Philippings ................... Fellow subsidiary
(k) Holcim Services (South Asia) Limited, India................... Fellow subsidiary
) Holcim Services Asia Limited, Thailand.................cceve, Fellow subsidiary
(M)  Holcim Trading FZCO, UAE.........ccocovviiiiiiiiiiiiieee Fellow subsidiary
(n)  Holcim Trading Pte Limited, SINQOpOore............cccvveevee. Fellow subsidiary
(0)  Holcim Trading SA, SPQIN.......coiiiiiiiiiiiiii Fellow subsidiary
(P)  PT Holcim Indonesia Tok., Indonesia..............ccccvvveennne. Fellow subsidiary
(@  Siam City Cement Public Co. Limited, Thailand........... Fellow subsidiary

(i) Key management personnel :
Name of the related party : Nature of relationship
Mr. Onne van der Weiide ..., Managing Director

(iii) Enterprises over which significant influence exercised by directors
Names of related party Name of the director
GACL Finance Limited, INdiQ............ccoovviiiiiis Mr. N. S. Sekhsaria
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31. Related party disclosure : (Confd.)
Details of related party transactions

Sr. Description

2012

2011

No. T in crores < in crores
A) Transactions with fellow subsidiaries

T PUICNOSE Of GOOTS .. vttt 65.36 110.34
ACC LIMITEA ..t 7.54 6.57
HOICIM TrAAiNG FZCO ... 57.82 103.77

2 SAIE OFf GOOTS. ... vtvvteie ittt 49.59 136.94
ACC CoNCrete LIMITEA .....viviiiii e - 39.13

ACC LIMIFEA 1ttt 24.66 21.63
HOICIM TrAAING FZCO .. 23.27 15.68
HoICIM (LANKA) LIMITEA ... v 0.17 -

PT HOICIM INAONESIA TIOK. ..t 0.11 -
Holcim Trading PTe LIMITEA ....viiiiiiici e 1.38 60.50

3 Sale of fixed assets 0.38 13.98
ACC LImifed ... 0.38 13.96

Bulk Cement Corporation (India) Limited ... - 0.02

4 RENAENNG Of SEIVICES ... ittt - 0.01
ACC LIMIEA 1.t - 0.01

5 RECEIVING Of SEIVICES 1..viiiiiiiiiii i 69.78 65.83
ACC LIMIFEA 1ttt 4.43 6.30
HOICIM (LANKQA) LIMITEA ...t 0.11 0.16
Holcim MalQysia SDN BHD ... ...uviiiiiiiiiiiis et - 0.03
Holcim (VIetnam) LIMITEA. ......vviiiiiiii 0.11 0.01
Holcim Group SURPROM LIMITEA . 11vvviviiiiiiiececcece i1 32.13 32.10
Holcim Philippines INC. ..o - 0.01
Holcim Services Asia Limited................ 0.11 -
Holcim Services (South Asia) Limited.... 32.42 24.93
HOICIM TIATING SA .. 0.41 -
HOICIM TrAAING FZCO ..t - 2.15
Holcim Trading Pte LIMITEA (T 44,372) ..uvviiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiee e -

PT HOICIM INAONESIA TIOK. ..t 0.01 0.14

Siam City Cement PUDIIC CO. LIMITEd.........oooiiiiiiiiiiii 0.05 -

6 INTEIEST TECEIVEA .. it 0.02 0.06
ACC CONCrete LIMITEA .....viiiiiiiiii - 0.06

ACC LIMIEA 1.t 0.02 -

7 OFNEI TECOVEIES. ...ttt 3.00 2.33
ACC LIMIFEA 1ttt 1.71 0.13
Holcim (Lanka) Limited 1.23 0.28
Holcim Environment Services, SA - 1.67
Holcim Group SURPOI LIMITEA. .. ...viiiiiiiiiii i 0.02 0.25
Holcim Trading Pte LIMITEA ......viiiiiiii 0.04 -
Holcim Services (South Asia) Limited (T 33,605) ....ccvvviiiiiiiiiiiiiii -

8 OFNET POYIMENTS ...t 0.05 5.23
ACC Concrete LIMITEA .....viviiiiiiiii i - 0.01

ACC LIMIFEA (T 7,303) 11ttt 0.27
Holcim Group SURPROM LIMITEA. . 11vvviriiiiiiieieccccci 11 - 0.13
HOICIN TITAAING FZCO 11t 0.05 4.82

9 Amounts receivable at the YEAr €NA .........vvviiiiii 3.03 22.34
ACC Concrete Limited ................. - 2.05

ACC Limifed ... 0.79 0.18
Holcim (Lanka) Limited.......coccoiiiiiii, 0.32 0.28
Holcim Services (South Asia) Limited (X 11,236) -
HOICIMN TrIAAING FZCO 1ot 1.80 3.81
Holcim Trading Pte LIMITEA ....oiiiiiiici e 0.12 16.02
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31. Related party disclosure : (Confd.)
Details of related party transactions
Sr. Description 2012 2011
No. < in crores g in crores
A) Transactions with fellow subsidiaries (Contd.)

10 Amounts payable at the year end.. 14.45 45.10
ACC CoNnCrete LIMITEA .....vviiiiiiii - 0.01
ACC LIMIFEA 1.t 1.81 1.26
HOICIM (LANKA) LIMEA ..ot 0.10 0.14
Holcim (VIEtNAm) LIMITEA. ....iiiiiiiiii e - 0.01
Holcim Group SURPROM LIMITEA. . ..vvvvviriiii i 8.11 11.44
HOICIM PhIlIDIDINES INC. vttt e e 0.01 0.01
Holcim Services ASIO LIMIFEA.......o.viiiiiiiii 0.11 -
Holcim Services (South Asia) Limited 2.13 0.99
Holcim Trading SA ... 0.41 -
Holcim Trading FZCO 1.62 31.11
PT Holcim Indonesia Tk 0.15 0.13

B) Transactions with joint ventures
T PUICNASE Of GOOTS ...ttt 0.04 0.01

Counto Microfine Products Private Limited. 0.04 0.01
2 Guarantees given outstanding ... 3.67 3.67
Wardha Vaalley Coal Field Private LIMIEd ... 3.67 3.67
C) Transactions with key management personnel
T REMUNEIOTION™ it 3.69 3.33
M ONNE VAN AEI WEIAE ... 3.69 3.33
2 Amounts payable at the YEAr €NA .. ... 0.80 0.68
M ONNE VAN AEI WEIAE ... 0.80 0.68
* Remuneration excludes shares worth ¥ 0.18 crore (previous year X 0.13 crore) allotted as non-
monetary perquisite by Holcim Limited, Switzerland, the ultimate holding company.
D) Transactions with Enterprises over which significant influence exercised by Directors and
major shareholders
T RECEIVING OF SEIVICES ..t 1.11 1.06
GACL FINANCE LIMITEA ...t 1.11 1.06
2 Amounts payable at the YEAr €NA.. ...t - 0.09
GACL FINANCE LIMITEA ...vviiiiiiiiiii i - 0.09

Notes :

1 Related party relationship is as identified by the Company on the basis of available information.

2 During the previous year, the Company became a subsidiary of Holderind Investments Limited, Mauritius (HIL), Holderfin BV, Netherlands and
Holcim Limited, Switzerland (Holcim group companies) and accordingly all other Holcim group companies have been reported as fellow
subsidiaries.

3 The Company carries its Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) activities through Ambuja Cement Foundation (ACF) and runs schools at plant locations
through Ambuja Vidya Niketan Trust (AVN), charitable organisation registered under Bombay Public Trust Act, 1950. The Company has contributed
¥ 35.00 crores (previous year - X 28.10 crores) to ACF and X 4.80 crores (previous year - X 4.38 crores) to AVN during the current year.

32. Gratuity and other post-employment benefit plans :

a) Defined Conftribution Plans
The Company has recognised expenses fowards the defined contribution plans as under :

2012 2011

< in crores < in crores

Contribution 10 SUPEIANNUGTION TUNGD ...uvviiiriiiss e 8.20 7.29
Contribution to provident fund (GOVEINMENT) #......ooiiiiiiii 15.33 13.73
OTNIBIS e 0.82 0.18
24.35 21.20

# Does not include share in joint ventures - ¥ 0.02 crore (previous year - X 0.01 crore)

b) Defined benefit plans - as per actuarial valuation

The Company has defined benefit gratuity plan. Every employee who has completed five years or more of service gets a gratuity on
departure at 15 days salary (last drawn salary) for each completed year of service. The scheme is funded with Life Insurance Corporation
of India.

The Company has also agreed to provide certain additional post-employment healthcare benefits to senior employees. These benefits
are unfunded.
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32. Gratuity and other post-employment benefit plans : (Confd.)

The following tables summarise the components of net benefit / expense recognised in the statement of profit and loss and the funded
status and amounts recognised in the balance sheet for the respective plans :

T in crores
2012 2011
Gratuity Death and Post Gratuity Death and Post
Funded Non Disability Retirement Funded Non Disability — Retirement
Particulars Funded Scheme  Medical Funded  Scheme Medical
(Shipping Benefits (Shipping Benefits
Staff) Non (PRMB) Non StaffyNon  (PRMB) Non
Funded Funded Funded Funded
| Expense recognised in the Statement of profit and loss
1 Current ServiCe COSt...vvivviviiiiiiii s 6.74 0.14 0.03 0.49 6.10 0.07 0.03 0.40
2 INtEIEST COSt...uviviiiiiii 6.34 0.11 0.02 0.55 5.21 0.06 0.02 0.39
3 Employee contioutions ... - - - - - - -
4 Expected return on plan assets..........cviiiins (6.67) - - - (6.33) - - -
5  Actuarial (Qains) / losses ........ 8.29 0.19 (0.04) 1.00 1.59 0.08 (0.06) 0.76
6  Past service cost......... - - - - - - -
7 Sefflement COSt......ooviiiiii - - - - - -
8  Losses/ (gains) on acquisition / divesture .............. - - - - - - - -
Q9  TOMOl €XPENSE ...t 14.70 0.44 0.01 2.04 7.57 0.21 0.01) 1.55
I Net Asset / (Liability) recognised in the Balance Sheet
1 Present value of defined benefit obligation .......... 95.09 1.53 0.28 8.38 77.91 1.26 0.27 6.38
2 Fairvalue of plan assets........c.coviiviiiiiiiiiinin 95.09 - - - 79.61 - - -
3 Funded status [surplus / (AefiCit)] .o - (1.53) (0.28) (8.38) 1.70 (1.26) (0.27) (6.38)
4 Net asset/ (liability) # * (1.53) (0.28) (8.38) 1.70 (1.26) (0.27) (6.38)
Il Change in obligation during the year
1 Present value of defined benefit obligation at the
beginning of the Year ... 77.91 1.25 0.27 6.38 65.10 1.156 0.28 4.85
2 Current service cost ... 6.74 0.14 0.03 0.49 6.10 0.07 0.03 0.40
3 Interest cost............ 6.34 0.11 0.02 0.55 5.21 0.06 0.02 0.39
4 Seftlement cost... - - - - - - -
5 Past serviCe COoSt.....ovviiii - - - - - -
6 Employee contributions ..., - - - - - -
7 Liabilities assumed on acquisition/(settled on
AIVESTUIE). .. - - - - - - - -
8  Actuarial (Qains) /10SS€S .....ccvvviiiiiiiiiii 8.85 0.19 (0.04) 1.00 5.45 0.08 (0.06) 0.76
9 Benefits payments..........ocovviiiii (4.75) (0.16) - (0.04) (3.95) (0.10) (0.02)
10 Present value of defined benefit obligation af the
end of the Year ..., 95.09 1.53 0.28 8.38 77.91 1.26 0.27 6.38
IV Change in assets during the year
1 Plan assets at the beginning of the year............... 79.61 - - - 67.14 -
2 Assets acquired on amalgamation in previous
VEAM. 1ttt - - - - - -
3 Sefflements.......ocoviiiin - - - - - -
4 Expected return on plan assets...........cooeiinnn, 6.67 - - - 5.33 -
5  Contribution by employer ..o, 13.00 - - - 7.23 -
6 Actual benefit paid ..., (4.75) - - - (3.95) -
7 Actuarial gains / (I0SSES) ......vieviviiiiiiiiiiiiiiiis 0.56 - - - 3.86 -
8  Plan assets af the end of the year............covviin 95.09 - - - 79.61 -
9 Actual return on plan Assets.........ocovvveiiiiiiinins 7.22 - - - 9.19 -
As at As at
31.12.2012 31.12.2011
V  The major categories of plan assets as a percentage of total plan
QUAlIfyiNG INSUIANCE PONICY 1..vvvviviiiiiis i 100% 100%

VI Effect of one percentage point change in the assumed medical inflation rafe

Increase / (decrease) on aggregate service and interest cost

Increase / (decrease) on present value of defined benefit obligation

* Net liability is ¥ 31,941,
# Does not include share in joint venture expenses X 0.01 crore and liability ¥ 0.02 crore for the current year.

1 % decrease

1 % increase

1 % decrease

1 % increase
0.17
1.12
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32. Gratuity and other post-employment benefit plans : (Confd.)

As at As at
31.12.2012 31.12.2011
VI Actuarial assumptions :
T DISCOUNT FAT .. vtttk 8.25% p.a. 8.60% p.a.
2 Expected rate of refurn on plan asSets.........ocvvi 8.50% p.a. 8.00% p.a.
3 MOMAIY. et LIC (1994-96) mortality tables LIC (1994-96) mortality tables
4 TUMOVET TATE ittt Age 21-44 - 2%, Age 45 -57 - 1%  Age 21-44 - 2%, Age 45 -57 - 1%
5 Medical premium iNfIatioN ... 12% p.a. in the first 5 years 12% p.a. in the first 5 years
and 8% thereafter and 8% thereafter
6 SAlANY €SCAITTION. ... 7% p.a. 7% p.Q.
2012 2011
g in crores g in crores
VI Amounts recognised as an expense in respect of defined benefit plans as under
Q) GTOTURY ® i 15.03 7.65
D) ShIPPING ST GIOTURY ... 0.09 0.05
C)  Post refirement MEdiCOl DENEIIS ... ... 1.99 1.54
d)  Death ANA QISADIITY ....vuvviiiiisii 0.01 (0.01)
17.12 9.23

* Net off ¥ 0.02 crores (previous year - T 0.08 crore) capitalised as pre-operative expenses.
** Net off ¥ 0.05 crore (previous year - T 0.01 crore) capitalised as pre-operative expenses.

c) Basis used to determine expected rate of return on assets :

To develop the expected long-term return on assets assumption, the company considered the current level of returns declared on its
insurance policy. The fund manager is weighing the expected return for each asset class to determine the actual return on asset for the
portfolio. This resulted in the selection of the 8.50 % assumption for gratuity (funded) plan and 8.52% assumption for provident fund plan
managed by a trust set by the company.

d) The estimates of future salary increases, considered in actuarial valuation, take account of inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant
factors, such as supply and demand in the employment market.

e) The Company expects to contribute ¥ 7.50 crores (previous year - ¥ 6.00 crores) to gratuity fund in the next year.
(f)  Amount for the current and previous four years are as follows :

i)

i)

iv)

As at As at As at As at As at
31.12.2012 31.12.2011 31.12.2010 31.12.2009 31.12.2008
T in crores Tin crores T in crores T in crores T in crores
Gratuity - Funded
Defined benefit obligation ..., 95.09 77.90 65.10 57.28 63.21
PlaN ASSets ..o, 95.09 79.61 67.14 59.85 50.04
SUPIUS / (AEFICH) vvvvveviiiiiec * 1.71 2.04 2.57 (13.17)
Experience adjustments on plan assets............ 0.55 3.86 0.17) 0.74 0.19
Experience adjustments on plan liabilities......... 6.15 7.46 3.50 2.08 4.48
Gratuity - Non Funded
Defined benefit obligation ..., 1.53 1.26 0.64 0.56 0.74
PlON ASSETS ..o - - - - -
SUrplus / (AEfiCit) v.vvvviiiiiii (1.53) (1.26) (0.64) (0.56) (0.74)
Experience adjustments on plan assets............ - - - - -
Experience adjustments on plan liabilities......... (0.06) (0.13) 0.08 (0.14) (0.03)
Death and Disability Scheme (Shipping Staff)
Defined benefit obligation ..., 0.28 0.27 0.28 0.26 0.33
PlAN QSSETS ..vvvviiiiiiiiici - - - - -
SUrplus / (AefiCit) v.vvvviiiiiiii (0.28) (0.27) (0.28) (0.26) (0.33)
Experience adjustments on plan assets............ - - - - -
Experience adjustments on plan liabilities... (0.04) (0.06) (0.03) 0.11) (0.18)
Post Retirement Medical Benefit (PRMB)
Defined benefit obligation 8.38 6.38 4.85 4.35 2.29
PlAN QSSETS ©.vvvviiiiiiiiiii - - - - -
SUrplus / (AEfiCt) ..vvvvviii (8.38) (6.38) (4.85) (4.35) (2.29)
Experience adjustments on plan assets............ - - - - -
Experience adjustments on plan liabilities......... (0.27) 0.92 (0.40) 0.62 (0.02)
*3 31,941
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32. Gratuity and other post-employment benefit plans : (Confd.)

g) Amount recognised as an expense in respect of compensated absences is T 18.59 crores (previous year - ¥ 14.02 crores).

(h)  Provident fund managed by a trust set up by the Company

The Company has contributed X 6.33 crores (previous year - X 6.66 crores) towards provident fund liability. During the year, in accordance
with guidance issued by Actuarial Society of India for measurement of interest shortfall of provident fund liabilities, interest shortfall
of ¥ 0.15 crore is charged fo Statement of profit and loss. During the previous year, ¥ 0.76 crore was recognised towards deficit of
provident fund liabilities.

Details of the fund and asset position :

Plan assets at the year end, at fair value
Present value of benefit obligation at year end
Liability recognised in the Balance sheet

As at
31.12.2012
T in crores

84.96
85.11
0.15

Assumption used in determining the present value obligation of the interest rate guarantee under the deterministic
approach

DISCOUNT TOTE ..ttt
INTEIEST TATE QUAIAINTEE ... e ettt
Expected rate of retumn of assets

33. Employee stock option schemes :
a) The Company has provided various share based payments to its employees. During the year the following schemes were in operation:

8.25%
8.50%
8.52%

Particulars 2007* 2008 # 2009 2010
a)  Date of grant ... 07.06.2007 01.07.2008 19.06.2009 22.04.2010
b) Date of Board Approval.........ccccoeiiviviniiiiiiiinniinnn, 11.01.2007 01.07.2008 06.02.2009 04.02.2010
c) Date of Shareholders approval ..........cccccevvieniins 26.03.2007 22.04.2008 06.04.2009 05.04.2010
d)  Number of options granted ... 7,497,900 7,498,150 7,499,600 9,998,900
e) Method of sefflement (cash / equity) .......oooevvvviins Equity Equity Equity Equity
f)  Vesting period from the date of grant.................... 1 year 1 year 1 year 1 year
g) Exercise period from the date of vesting................ 4 years 4 years 4 years 4 years
* Includes 111,150 options in tranche 2 granted on 1¢" July 2008 @ X 82/- per option.
# Includes 113,850 options in franche 2 granted on 19™ June 2009 @ X 96/- per option.
b)  The details of activity under the ESOS are as below :
2012 2011
Number of Weighted Number of Weighted
Parficulars shares exerc;‘e’e::ig: sneres exerc(i]s\éeﬁgz
®) ®
a) Outstanding at the beginning of the year 18,591,025 107.36 24,915,750 106.53
b) Granted during the year ... - - -
c) Forfeited during the year... 244,400 110.88 1,814,550 108.05
d) Exercised during the year.............ccoeeiviiiiiiiinnnn, 7,815,175 106.28 4,510,175 102.50
e) Expired durng the year ..........cccccvvii, 366,425 113.00 -
f)  Oufstanding at the end of the year ..............cccon 10,165,025 107.91 18,591,025 107.36
0) Exercisable atthe end of theyear..........c..cooevviinnn 10,165,025 107.91 18,591,025 107.36
h)  Weighted average remaining contractual life (in years) 1.84 2.30

The weighted average share price af the date of exercise for stock options was I 188.56 (previous year - T 148.94)
The weighted average share price for the period over which stock option were exercised was T 177.49 (previous year - ¥ 139.07)
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33. Employee stock option schemes : (Confd.)

34.

c) The details of exercise price for stock options outstanding at the year end :
As at 31.12.2012 As at 31.12.2011
Employee stock option Number Weighted Weighted Number Weighted Weighted
schemes of options average average of options average average
outstanding remaining exercise price outstanding remaining  exercise price
contractual (nominal confractual life  (nominal value
life of options value of T 2 of options of % 2 per
(in years) per share) (in years) share)
2007
Tranche 1., - - - 3,618,550 0.43 113.00
Tranche 2., 16,300 0.50 82.00 31,550 1.50 82.00
2008
Tranche 1., 1,291,750 0.50 82.00 2,670,250 1.50 82.00
Tranche 2o, 47,350 1.46 96.00 71,775 2.47 96.00
2,750,225 1.46 96.00 4,043,550 2.47 96.00
6,059,400 2.30 119.00 8,155,350 3.31 119.00
d) Effect of the employee share based payment plans on the profit and loss account and on its financial position :
2012 2011
Particulars
< in crores < in crores
Total Employee Compensation Cost pertaining to share based payment plans (Refer note 44) ............. - 33.70
Compensation cost pertaining to equity settled employee share based payment plan included above - 33.70
(REFEINMOTE A4 .o e
Liability for employee stock options outstanding as at year end...........c.cooovviiiiiiii 23.86 32.11
e) Expenses on employee stock option scheme exclude cost relating fo shares granted to the employees of the Company by Holcim Limited,
Switzerland, the ultimate holding company.
As at As at
31.12.2012 31.12.2011
Amount in Amount in
crores crores
Unhedged foreign currency exposure :
1. Outstanding trade payables for purchase of raw material and spares
Q) 0.36 1.57
o) 0.05 0.01
C) -
d) 0.02 0.01
e) 0.63 0.65
f) -
2. Outstanding liabilities for purchase of capital goods
Q) BN EUROD i 0.01 -
D) iNUSD 36,551 (previous Year - Nil) ....ccviiiiiiiiiiiii -
C) N U PY ettt 0.14 0.72
3. Outstanding trade payables for expenses
a) in USD (previous year - 47,622)... 0.03
D) TN EUROD L.ttt 0.03 0.04
C) N CHE e 0.13 0.21
) N THB ettt 0.06 -
4. Outstanding trade receivables
Q) NUSD .o 0.02 0.39
b) in EURO 7,376 (previous year - Nil) - -
5 Advance to vendors
Q) N USD (DIreVioUS YEAT = Q,870) ...iiiiiiiiiiiii ittt 0.01
D) INEURO i 0.13 0.08
c) in GBP 187 (previous year - 33,441)...
Q) TN DKK ettt 0.07 -
€) IN CHF 5,140 (Drevious YEAT = Nil)......iiiiiiiiiiiii -
B I Y - 0.02
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35. Disclosure of frade payables under liabilities is based on the information available with the Company regarding
the status of the suppliers as defined under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act,
2006.

31.12.2012 31.12.2011

T in crores T in crores
a) The principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end of
each year
[ ([T @ | PP PP 0.86 0.35
INfErest (PIEVIOUS YEAI = T 32,55 T ) 11 iuiiiiiiiiiiiiiit it 0.01

b)  The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 along with the amounts of the payment

made to the supplier beyond the appointed day during €aCh Year. ..., 1.47 1.94
c) The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which has

been paid but beyond the appointed day during the year) but without adding the interest specified.

(X 887; previous Year = Nil) .......cviiiiiiiiii
d) The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each year.
e) The amount of further interest remnaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until such date

when the interest dues as above are actually paid to the small enterprise for the purpose of disallowance

as a deductible expenditure UNAEr SECHON 2. ... . .iiiiiiiiiiii e - -

36. During the previous year, the Company became a subsidiary of Holderind Investments Limited, Mauritius and Holcim Limited, Switzerland, the
ultimate holding company.

0.01 -

37. Capital Work in Progress includes (a) machinery in fransit ¥ 10.38 crores (previous year - X 11.29 crores) and (b) expenditure during construction
for project ¥ 11.76 crores (previous year - X 5.82 crores).

38. Sale of products includes Sales tax / VAT remission and subsidy of ¥ 33.48 crores (previous year - X 47.49 crores).

As at 2012 As af 2011
T in crores g in crores
39. Operating Lease :
(a) Assets taken on lease

Lease pPAYMENTS FOr The YEAI ........viiiii 0.34 0.34

Minimum lease payments :
NOT IGTEr TNAN ONE YEA 111t 0.34 0.34
Later than one year but not later than five years . 1.36 1.36
LATEN TNAN fIVE YEAIS 1111ttt a1 2.54 2.87

(b) General description of leasing arrangements :
(i) Leased assets : Water front charges for captive jetty
(i)  Future lease rentals are determined on the basis of agreed terms
(i) At the expiry of lease ferms, the Company has an option fo return the assetor extend the terms
by giving nofice in writing

40. Excise duty on sales amounting fo ¥ 1,266.42 crores (previous year - ¥ 1,074.21 crores) has been reduced from sales in consolidated Statement
profit and loss and excise duty on change in invenfories of finished goods and work-in-progress amounting to ¥ 10.96 crores (previous year -
% 2.90 crores) has been considered as other expenses.

41. Loss on assets sold, discarded and written off includes preoperative expenses and capital work in progress incurred on certain capital projects
written off during the year amounting to ¥ Nil (previous year - X 8.92 crores).

42. In the previous year, prior period expenses amounting to ¥ 3.81 crores and X 7.78 crores were included in Miscellaneous expenses and Legal
and professional fees respectively.

43. Information relating to Subsidiaries including subsidiaries of subsidiaries :
(In ferms of Government of India, Ministry of Corporate Affairs general Circular No : 2/2011, No : 5/12/2007-CL-lll dated 8™ February, 2011)

< in crores
Name of Ason & for Share Reserves Total Total Investments Turnover Profit / Provision Profit / Proposed
subsidiary the year capital & surplus assets liabilities (excluding (loss) for tax (loss) dividend
company ended investments before after tax
in tax
subsidiary
companies)
M.G.T. Cements 31.12.2012 0.75 0.69 0.06 < 3,921 - - (0.02) - (0.02) -
(Private) Limited 31.12.2011 075  (0.67) 0.08 % 3,921 - - (0.02) - (0.02) -
Chemical Limes 31.12.2012 5.14 (3.71) 4.86 3.43 - - 0.40 - 0.40 -
Munawa (Private) 31.12.2011  0.14 (3.32) 0.35 3.53 - - 0.11) - 0.11) -
Limited
Kakinada Cements  31.12.2012 0.10 (0.06) 0.04 311,236 - - (0.01) - (0.01) -
Limited 31.12.2011 0.05 (0.04) 0.01 11,520 - - (X26,268) - €26,268) -
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43. Information relating to Subsidiaries including subsidiaries of subsidiaries : (Contd.)

T in crores
Name of Ason & for Share Reserves Total Total Investments Turnover Profit / Provision Profit / Proposed
subsidiary the year capital & surplus assets liabilities (excluding (loss) for tax (loss) dividend
company ended investments before after tax

in tax
subsidiary
companies)

Dirk Indlia (Private) 31.12.2012 2.08 2.20 39.88 35.60 - 57.10 (3.03) (0.86) (2.17) -
Limited (w.e.f. 1¢ 31.12.2011 2.08 4.37 34.64  28.20 - 149 (0.16) 0.04 (0.20) -
October, 2011)
Dirk Pozzocrete (MP)  31.12.2012 0.01 (3.38) 5.09 8.46 - 1.85 (1.83) - (1.83) -
Private Limited * 31.12.2011 0.01 (1.56) 3.94 5.49 - 0.50 (0.40) - (0.40) -
(w.e.f. 1 October,
2011)
Dang Cement 31.12.2012 13.84 (5.56) 8.28 ¥ 11,875 - - 0.10 - 0.10 -
Industries 31.12.2011 9.09 (6.66) 0.01 ¥43,750 - - (0.02) - (0.02) -
(Private) Limited
(w.e.f. 6" May,
2011)
* Subsidiary of Dirk India (Private) Limited

44. During the previous year, the Company had changed (with refrospective effect) its method of measurement of compensation cost relating to
employee stock options from intrinsic value method fo fair value method for all outstanding unvested employee stock options af the beginning
of the year. Accordingly, the Company had recognized an additional expense of ¥ 33.12 crores. Amount relating to earlier years of X 24.25
crores had been disclosed as exceptional item.

2012 2011
T in crores < in crores

45. The Company is eligible for receipt of fransport subsidy on the infer-state fransport of raw materials, clinker
and cement in certain units. Accordingly, the Company has accrued an amount of ¥ 30.12 crores (previous
year - ¥ 53.14 crores) which has been adjusted against the respective expenses as under :

(i)  ROW MATENAIS CONSUMED ....iiiiiiiiiiii i 3.31 1.84
(i) Freight and handling charges on internal Matenal fTANSIEr..........ooviii 26.34 51.11
(iii)  Freight ONn fINISNEA GOOTS ... .viiiiiii i 0.47 0.19

46. During the year, Ministry of Coal has issued an order de-allocating the coal block allocated to the Company along with the other joint venture
partners in Wardha Vaalley Coal Fields Private Limited and has ordered invocation of bank guarantee of X 2.56 crores (Company’s proportionate
share ¥ 0.70 crores). The said order has been challenged by the Company through a writ petition before the Hon'ble High Court of Delhi and
a stay has been granted against invocation of bank guarantee.

47. “Provision for doubtful debts and advances (net)” includes X 31.84 crores pertaining to the period upto 315 December, 2011, fowards claims
in respect of certain incentives receivable from the government, where there exists an uncertainity with respect to its full recoverability due to
government’s contention of non-fulfilment of certain conditions.

48. Figures less than ¥ 50,000/- have been shown at actual, wherever statutorily required to be disclosed, as the figures have been rounded off to
the nearest laknh.

49. These financial statements have been prepared in the format prescribed by the Revised Schedule VI fo the Companies Act, 1956. Figures of
the previous year have been regrouped / rearranged wherever necessary 1o conform to the current year’s presentation.

Signatures to Note 1 fo 49

As per our attached report of even date For and on behalf of the Board

For S.R. Batliboi & Co. Ajay Kapur N.S. Sekhsaria Shailesh Haribhakdi

Firm Registration No. 301003k Chief Executive Officer Chairman Chairman-Audit Committee

Chartered Accountants

Sanjeev Churiwala Paul Hugentobler Nasser Munjee
Chief Financial Officer Vice Chairman Director

per Ravi Bansal Rajiv Gandhi M.L. Bhakta Rajendra P Chitale

Partner Company Secretary Director Director

Membership No. 49365

Bemard Fontana Omkar Goswami
Director Director

Haigreve Khaitan Naresh Chandra
Director Director

B.L. Taparia Onne van der Weijde
Director Managing Director

Mumbai, 7™ February, 2013
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AMBUJA CEMENTS LIMITED

Registered Office: P O. Ambujanagar, Taluka: Kodinar, District: Junagaadh, Gujarat - 362 715

Notice

NOTICE is hereby given that the THIRTIETH ANNUAL GENERAL
MEETING of the Members of the Company will be held on
Thursday, 4™ April, 2013 at 10.00 a.m. af the Registered
Office of the Company at RPO. Ambujanagar, Taluka: Kodinar,
District: Junagadh, Gujarat - 362 715, to transact the following
business:-

Ordinary Business

1. To receive, consider and adopt the Profit & Loss Account
for the Corporate Financial Year ended 31 December,
2012 and the Balance Sheet as at that date and the
Reports of the Directors and Auditors thereon.

2. To declare a dividend on equity shares.

3. Toresolve not to fill the vacancy for the time being in the
Board, caused by the refirement of Mr. Mansingh L. Bhakta,
who retires by rotation atf the conclusion of this meeting
and does not seek re-appoinfment.

4, To resolve not to fill the vacancy for the time being in the
Board, caused by the retirement of Mr. Naresh Chandra,
who retires by rotation at the conclusion of this meeting
and does not seek re-appointment.

5. To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Onne van der Weijde,
who retires by rotation and being eligible, offers himself for
re-appointment.

6. To consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without
modification(s), the following Resolution as an Ordinary
Resolution:-

“RESOLVED that pursuant to Section 224 and other
applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act,
1956, M/s. S.R. Batliboi & Co. (Membership No. 301003E),
Chartered Accountants, be and are hereby appointed
as Statutory Auditors of the Company, to hold the office
from the conclusion of this meeting until the conclusion
of the next Annual General Meeting of the Company af
such remuneration and reimbursement of expenses in
connection with the audit as the Board of Directors may fix
in this behalf.”

Special Business

7. To consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without
modification(s), the following Resolution as an Ordinary
Resolution:-

“RESOLVED that pursuant to the provisions of Section
260 and all other applicable provisions, if any, of the
Companies Act, 1956, Mr. Haigreve Khaiton who was
appointed as an Additional Director of the Company and
who holds office only up to the date of this Annual General
Meeting and being eligible, offers himself for appointment
and in respect of whom the Company has received a
notice in wiiting from one of the members, pursuant to
the provisions of Section 257 of the Companies Act, 1956,
signifying his infention to propose the candidature of Mr.
Haigreve Khaitan for the office of the Director, be and is
hereby appointed as a Director of the Company, liable to
retire by rotation.”

8. To consider and if thought fit, fo pass, with or without
modification(s), the following Resolution as an Ordinary

Resolution:-

“RESOLVED that pursuant to the provisions of Section
260 and all other applicable provisions, if any, of the
Companies Act, 1956, Mr. B.L. Taparia who was appointed
as an Additional Director of the Company and who holds
office only up to the date of this Annual General Meeting
and being eligible, offers himself for appointment and in
respect of whom the Company has received a notice in
writing from one of the members, pursuant to the provisions
of Section 257 of the Companies Act, 1956 signifying his
intention fo propose the candidature of Mr. B.L. Taparia for
the office of the Director, be and is hereby appointed as a
Director of the Company, liable to retire by rotation.”

9. To consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without
modification(s), the following Resolution as a Special
Resolution:-

"RESOLVED that the consent of the Company be and
is hereby accorded for the payment of following
remuneration and other perquisites in terms of Section
309 (4) (a) and other applicable provisions, if any, of the
Companies Act, 1956, to Mr. B. L. Taparia, for a period
of 3 (three) years with effect from 15 November, 2012 to
315" October, 2015 in terms of the Agreement dated 5"
November, 2012,

(i)  Remuneration:

T 9.00,000/- (Rupees Nine Lacs) per month, with
such increase as may be decided by the Board of
Directors (which shall be deemed to include any
committee which the Board has or may constitute to
exercise its powers including powers conferred by this
resolution) from time to time.

(i)  Reimbursement and Other Facilities:

Mr. Toparia shall be entitled for the following
reimbursements and other facilities:

(@) Company maintained car;

(b) Reimbursement of travel, lodging, boarding,
entertainment and other expenses incurred for
the Company’s work;

(c) Mobile phone with the expenses to be borne by
the Company;

(d) Reimbursement of felephone expenses of his
landline or personal mobile phone incurred for
the Company’s work;

(e) Mr Taparia shall be provided with such other
faciliies as may be thought expedient for the
Company’s work and as may be approved by
the Managing Director or the Chief Executive
Officer.”

"RESOLVED further that the Board of Directors or a Committee
thereof be and is hereby authorized to alter or vary the
remuneration to the extent, as may be permitted or authorized
in accordance with any provisions under the Companies Act,
1956, for the time being in force, or any statutory modification
or re-enactment thereof and/or any rules or regulations there
under and to do all such acts, deeds and things as may be
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required in order to give effect to this resolution or as otherwise
considered by the Board to be in the best interest of the
Company, as it may deem fit.”

By Order of the Board of Directors

Rajiv Gandhi
Place : Mumbai Company Secretary
Date : 7™ February, 2013
Notes:

1.

8.

Explanatory statement as required under Section 173(2) of
the Companies Act, 1956 is annexed hereto.

A MEMBER ENTITLED TO ATTEND AND VOIE IS ENTITLED TO
APPOINT A PROXY TO ATTEND AND VOTE INSTEAD OF HIMSELF
AND THE PROXY NEED NOT BE A MEMBER. PROXIES IN ORDER
TO BE VALID MUST BE RECEIVED BY THE COMPANY NOT LESS
THAN 48 HOURS BEFORE THE MEETING.

Disclosure pursuant to Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement
with respect to the Directors seeking appointment and
re-appointment at the forthcoming Annual General
Meeting is given in the annexure.

The Register of Members and the Share Transfer Books
of the Company shall remain closed from Thursday, the
21 February, 2013 to Thursday, the 28" February, 2013
(both days inclusive) for payment of final dividend.

Final dividend in respect of equity shares held in electronic
form will be payable to the beneficial owners of shares as
on 20™ February, 2013 as per the downloads furnished to
the Company by Depositories for this purpose.

In case of shares held in physical form, dividend will be
paid to the shareholders, whose names shall appear on
the Register of Members as on 28™ February, 2013.

Members are requested to fumnish their Bank Account
details, change of address efc. to the Registrar and
Share Transfer Agents in respect of shares held in physical
form. If the shares are held in electronic form, then the
said particulars should be furnished to their respective
Depository Paricipants (DPs).

a) Members holding the shares in electronic mode
may please note that their dividend would be paid
through National Electronic Clearing System (NECS)
or Electronic Clearing Services (ECS) af the available
RBI locations. The dividend would be credited to their
bank account as per the mandate given by the
members to their DPs. In the absence of availability
of NECS/ECS facility, the dividend would be paid
through warrants and the Bank details as furnished
by the respective Depositories to the Company will
be printed on their dividend warrants as per the
applicable Regulations.

b) Members are requested to send their Bank Account
particulars (viz. Account No., Name & Branch of the
Bank and the MICR Code) to their DPs in case the
shares are held in electronic mode or to the Registrar
and Share Transfer Agents in case the shares are held
in physical mode for prinfing on dividend warrant to
ensure that there is no fraudulent encashment of the
warrants.

The Ministry has allowed paperless compliances by the
companies through electronic mode with an intention

to reduce paper consumption and contribute towards
a greener environment. It has issued two Circulars in
this regard viz circular no.17/2011 dated 21.04.2011
and 18/2011 dated 29.04.2011. According to these
circulars, Companies can now send various notices/
documents to their shareholders through electronic
mode, at the registered email addresses of the
shareholders. It includes notice calling Annual General
Meeting, Audited financial statements, Directors’
Report, Auditors’ Report etc.

We at Ambuja welcome this move from the Government
and see this as a Golden opportunity not only for the
Company but also for every shareholder of the Company
to contribute its might to the greener environment. This
will also help in prompt receiving of communications
and reduce paper consumption.

The Notice of the Thirtieth Annual General Meeting
along with the Annual Report for the Corporate Financial
Year 2012 is sent to all the Members whose e-mail id is
registered with the Company. Such Members who wish
to receive the Notice and the Annual Report copy in
physical form may follow the instructions given in the
e-mail sent to their registered e-mail id.

Members who have not registered their e-mail
address so far are requested to register their e-mail
address, by filling in the enclosed registration form
giving their e-mail id and send it o us or log onto
http://www.shareproservices.com to register. The
form can also be downloaded from our website
www.ambujacement.com.

Members are requested to send all communications
relating to shares, bonds and unclaimed dividends to
the Registrar and Share Transfer Agents at the following
address:

SHAREPRO SERVICES (INDIA) PVT. LTD.

(Unit : Ambuja Cements Ltd.)

13 AB Samhita Warehousing Complex,

2nd floor, Near Sakinaka Telephone Exchange,

Andheri — Kurla Road, Andheri (East), Mumbai - 400 072
Tel. No. (022) 67720300

. Important:

Members are informed that the interim dividend amount
remaining unclaimed, relating to the year ended
315" December, 2006 shall become due for transfer on
15 May, 2013 and 18™ November, 2013 respectively to
the Investor Education and Protection Fund established by
the Central Government in terms of Section 205C(2)(a) of
the Companies Act, 1956 on expiry of 7 years from the
date of its declaration.

Members are requested to note that no claim shall lie
against the Company or the aforesaid fund in respect of
any amount of dividend remaining unclaimed / unpaid for
a period of 7 years from the dates they became first due
for payment. Any member, who has not claimed dividend
in respect of the financial year ended 31% December,
2006 is requested to approach the Company/the Registrar
and Share Transfer Agents of the Company for claiming
the same as early as possible but not later than 315 March,
2013 and 30™ September, 2013 for interim dividend.

The Company has already sent reminders to all such
members at their registered addresses in this regard.

AMBUJA CEMENTS LIMITED 1124



Explanatory Statement
(Pursuant to Section 173(2) of the Companies Act, 1956)

The following Explanatory Statement sets out all the material
facts relating to the Special Business under ltem No.7, 8 and 9
of the accompanying Notice dated 7™ February, 2013.

In respect of ltem No.7

The Board of Directors has appointed Mr. Haigreve Khaitan as
Additional Director on 27™ July, 2012,

Mr. Khaitan is a law graduate and is a Partner of reputed law
firm, Khaitan & Co. He started his career in litigation and has over
the years been involved in many Mergers and Acquisitions and
Private Equity as well as Project Finance transactions. He has rich
experience in all aspects of Mergers & Acquisitions, Corporate
Restructuring, Demergers, Spin-offs, Sale of Assets, Foreign
Investments, Joint Ventures and Foreign Collaborations. He
advises arange of large Indian conglomerates and multinational
clients in various business sectors including infrastructure,
power, telecom, automobiles, steel, software and information
technology, retail, etc.

Looking at his vast and rich experience in Commercial and
Corporate Laws, Mr. Haigreve Khaitan was appointed on the
Board as Non-Executive, Independent Director w.e.f. 27™ July,
2012,

The other particulars of the Mr. Khaitan are given in the annexure
to this Notice.

Pursuant to Section 260 of the Companies Act, 1956 read
with Article 130 of the Articles of Association of the Company,
Mr. Haigreve Khaitan holds office as Additional Director only up
to the date of the forthcoming Annual General Meeting and
being eligible, offers himself for appointment as a Director of
the Company, liable to retire by rotation.

The Company has received a notice pursuant to Section 257 of
the Companies Act, 1956 from one of the members signifying
his intenfion to propose the appointment of Mr. Haigreve
Khaitan as a Director.

The Board of Directors recornmend passing of the Resolution
at item no.7.

Mr. Haigreve Khaitan is concerned or interested in the Resolution
at item no. 7 of the Notice. None of the other Directors are,
in any way, concerned or interested in passing of the said
Resolution.

Notice received under Section 257 of the Companies Act,
1956 is available for inspection by the members at the
Registered Office of the Company during the business hours on
any working day up to the date of the Annual General Meeting.

In respect of ltem No. 8 and 9

The Board of Directors has appointed Mr. B.L Taparia as
Additional Director on 15 September, 2012.

Mr. Taparia, aged 62 years is a Commerce and Law graduate
and a fellow member of the Institute of Company Secretaries
of India. He has more than 40 years of experience in the
fields of Legal, Secretarial, Corporate Govermnance, Finance &
Accounts, HR, Health & Safety, Sustainability etc.

He joined the Company in the year 1983 as a Deputy
Company Secretary and after working in different positions,
he was appointed as the Whole-time Director in the year 1999
where he served fill the year 2009.

After stepping down from the Board, Mr. Taparia contfinued
as Executive Committee member (the highest decision

making body of the Company) as a Legal Head, Company
Secretary and Head of some of the key corporate functions. He
superannuated from the Company in July, 2012.

Considering his more than 29 years of association with the
Company and his vast knowledge, experience and
expertise in handling critical functions, the Board decided to
once again induct him as a Director and he has since been
appointed as Non-Executive Director on the Board of the
Company w.e.f. 15" September, 2012.

Pursuant fo Section 260 of the Companies Act, 1956 read
with Article 130 of the Articles of Association of the Company,
Mr. B.L. Taparia holds office as Additional Director only up to the
date of the forthcoming Annual General Meeting and being
eligible, offers himself for appointment as a Director of the
Company, liable to retire by rotation.

The Company has received a nofice pursuant to Section
257 of the Companies Act, 1956 from one of the members
signifying his intention to propose the appointment of
Mr. B.L. Taparia as a Director.

The Board atthe same time also decided to avail his professional
services on part fime basis and pay monthly remuneration and
other perquisites in terms of Section 309 (4) (a) and as set out in
the said resolution. A suitable Agreement dated 5™ November,
2012 to that effect has also been entered info between the
Company and Mr. Taparia.

The payment of monthly remuneration and other perquisites
to a Non-Executive Director only requires prior approval
of the Central Government under Section 309(4)(a) of the
Companies Act, for which necessary application has already
been made with the Ministry of Corporate Affairs. At the same
time, approval of the Shareholders is also sought as a good
Corporate Governance practice.

The other particulars of the Mr. B. L. Taparia are given in the
annexure to the Notice.

Nofice received under Section 257 of the Companies Act,
1956 and the copy of the Agreement dated 5" November,
2012 entered by the Board of Directors with Mr. B. L. Taparia
is available for inspection by the Members at the Registered
Office of the company during the business hours on any
working day up to the date of the Annual General Meeting.

This Explanatory statement together with the accompanying
Notice may also be regarded as an abstract under Section
302 of the Companies Act, 1956.

The Board of Directors recommend passing of the Resolution
at itfem no.8 and 9.

Mr. B.L. Taparia is concerned or interested in the Resolution af
item no. 8 and 9 of the Notice. None of the other Directors are,
in any way, concerned or interested in the Resolution.

By Order of the Board of Directors

Rajiv Gandhi
Company Secretary
Place : Mumbai
Date : 7™ February, 2013
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Annexure to ltems 5, 7 & 8 of the Notice

Details of Directors seeking appointment and re-appointment at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting
(in pursuance of Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement)

(As on 31¢ December, 2012)

Name of the Director Mr. Onne van der Weijde Mr. Haigreve Khaitan Mr. B.L.Taparia
Date of Birth 09.01.1964 13.07.1970 05.07.1950
Nationality Dutch Indian Indian

Date of appointment on the |09.01.2009 27.07.2012 01.09.2012
Board

Qualifications Bachelors Degree in Economics | LL.B B.Com, LL.B, F.C.S

and Accounting from
Rotterdam, Netherlands.

MBA from Bradford University, U.K.

Expertise in functional area | Vast and rich experience in Commercial & Corporate Vast and rich experience in
finance, Accounting and Laws, Tax laws, Mergers and Corporate Laws and other Legal
Taxation acquisitions, Restructuring, fields, Accounts Finance and

Foreign Collaboration, Licensing | Corporate Management.

Number of shares held in the | Nil Nil 3.42,250

Company

Directorships held in other Holcim Services (South Asia) Ltd. | Bajoj Corp Ltd. Kakinada Cements Ltd.
companies Ceat Lid.

Firstsource Solutions Ltd.
Harrisons Malayalam Ltd.
Inox Leisure Ltd.

JSW Ispat Steel Ltd.
Jindal Steel & Power Ltd.

National Engineering Industries
Ltd.

Sterlite Technologies Ltd.

The West Coast Paper Mills Ltd.
Torrent Pharmaceuticals Ltd.
Xpro India Ltd.

Chairman/Member of Chairman Chairman Chairman
the Committees of the Nil Nil Nil
Boards of Directors of Other
Companies in which he is Member Member Member
Director . . . .

Nil Audit Committee — Nil

Harrisons Malayalom Ltd.
Inox Leisure Ltd.

JSW Ispat Steel Ltd.

Jindal Steel & Power Ltd.
Sterlite Technologies Ltd.
Torrent Pharmaceuticals Ltd.

National Engineering Industries
Ltd.

Shareholders and Investors
Grievance Committee —

JSW Ispat Steel Ltd.

National Engineering Industries
Ltd.

Directorships / Committee memberships exclude Directorships in private / foreign companies and companies incorporated under Section
25 of the Companies Act, 1956.
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AMBUJA CEMENTS LIMITED

Registered Office: P O. Ambujanagar, Taluka: Kodinar, District: Junagadh, Gujarat - 362 715

THIRTIETH ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING
ATTENDANCE SLIP

Name of the Shareholder .........cccoiiii FOlIO NO./ ClIent ID NO. ..vvvviiiiiiiiii

NO. Of SNAMES ....vviiiiiii
(To be filled in by the Member)

I hereby record my presence at the THIRTIETH ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING of the Company being held at the Registered Office of the
Company on Thursday, 4™ April, 2013 at 10.00 a.m.

Member's Signature
Notes:
1. A Member/Proxy attending the meeting must complete the Attendance Slip and hand it over at the entrance.

2. Member intending to appoint a Proxy, should complete the Proxy Form given below and deposit it at the Company’s Registered
Office not later than 48 hours before the commmencement of the Meeting.

Proxy’s Signature

——————————————————————————————————————— TEARHERE - = = = = = = = = — o e e e e e e e mmm— -

AMBUJA CEMENTS LIMITED

Registered Office: P O. Ambujanagar, Taluka: Kodinar, District: Junagadh, Gujarat - 362 715

THIRTIETH ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING
PROXY FORM

FOlIO NO./ ClIENt ID NO. ©vvvvvviiiiiiiiiii i

NO. Of SNAMES ...
(To be filled in by the Member)

IV .. being a Member/Members
of AMBUJA CEMENTS LIMITED, hereby QRPOINT ....oviiiiiiiiiii Of i
iN the dIStCT Of ..o, OF TAIING MM Lo
Of iN the dISTCT Of oo as my/our Proxy to

vote for me/us on my/our behalf at the THIRTIETH ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING of the Company to be held on Thursday, 4™ April, 2013 at
10.00 a.m. and at any adjournment thereof.

Affix Re. 1
Signed this ..o, day Of v 2013 Revenue

Stamp

SIGNATUIE L.

N.B.: The proxy should be deposited at the Registered Office of the Company not later than 48 hours before the commencement of the
Meeting.
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21 Mar 2013 2:50PM HP LASERJET FAX P-

FORM A
1 Name of the Company: , Ambuja Cements Limited
2 Annual financial statements for the Iyear ended 31st December 2012
3 Type of Audit observation Matter of Emphasis
4 Frequency of observation Appeared in the audit report on the
~ financial statements for the year
ended 31st December 2012
Also appeared in the limited review
report on the statement of
unaudited financial results for the
quarters ended 30th June 2012 and
repeated in quarter ended 30th
September 2012
s-R. Lshibas, ‘&M&M
For S.R. Batliboi & Co.
Firm Registration No. 301003E Shailesh Haribhakti
Chartered Acgountants ' : Chairman-Audit Committee
@%”g" | o [
pet-Ravi Bansal \L
Partner _ Onne van der Weijde
Membership No. 49365 Managing Director
Statutory Auditor '
Place: Mumbai ] .
Date: 8th March,2013 o Sanjeev Churiwala

Chief Financial Officer-
Place: Mumbai
Date: 28th February 2013




